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PART
NOTIFICATION

Item Significant Parties

List the full names and business and residential addresses as applicable for the following persons

and The Issuers Directors and Officers

Name Business Address Residence Address

Robert Blades Jr Blades Holding Company Inc 1609 Heather Heights

Director Hornell New York 14843 Hornell New York 14843

Brenda Copeland One Steuben Square 5863 Dineen Road

President Chief Executive Homell New York 14843-1699 Hornell New York 14843

Officer and Director

Michael Davidson Davidsons Furniture 212 Main Street

Director 161 Main Street Hornell NY 14843

HornellNY 14843

Charles Edmondson Alfred University 71 Pine Hill Drive

Director Saxon Drive Carnegie Hall Alfred New York 14802

Alfred New York 14802

Maiy Hilfiger One Steuben Square 80 Bennett Street

Corporate Secretary Hornell New York 4843 4699 Hornet New York 14843

Stoner Horey Not applicable 3461 Pierce Road

Director Canisteo New York 14823

Victor Myers Not applicable 8067 Gleason Road

Director Lima NY 14485

James Nicoloff One Steuben Square 62 Maple Street

Executive Vice President Hornell New York 4843-1699 Hornell New York 14843

Treasurer and

Chief Financial Officer

Charles Oliver Charles Oliver Son North Street

Director 17 South Church Street Canaseraga New York 14822

Canaseraga New York 14822

Amanda Parker The Bonadio Group 68 Covington Street

Director Lake Street Suite 203 Perry New York 14530

Perry New York 14530

David Shults Shults Shults 66 Maple Street

Chairman of the Board Seneca Street Hornell New York 14843

and Director Hornell New York 14843

Eric Sliu Its Shults Shu Its 427 Seneca Road

Director Seneca Street Hornell New York 14843

l-lornell New York 14843

Sherry Walton not applicable 4165 Grandview Avenue

Director WeUsville New York 14895

The Issuer has no general partners

The record owners of 5% or more of any class of the Issuers equity securities
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Name Business Address Residence Address

Steuben Trust Company One Steuben Square not applicable

as Trustee for Richard New York 14843-1699

Bradley QTIP Trust

David Shults Seneca Street 66 Maple Street

1-lornell New York 14843 Hornell New York 14843

Dick Hollands Not applicable 900 Taylor St 238

McLean Virginia 22102-3419

The beneficial owners of 5% or more of any class of the Issuers equity securities

See responses under above

Promoters of the Issuer Not applicable

Affiliates of the Issuer Affiliates of the issuer are its banking subsidiary Steuben Trust Company

and subsidiary trust Steuben Statutory Trust II

Counsel to the issuer with respect to the proposed offering

Underberg Kessler LLP 300 Bausch Lomb Place Rochester New York 14604

through

Each underwriter with respect to the proposed offering the underwriters directors the underwriters

officers the underwriters general partners and counsel to the underwriter

In each case not applicable

Item Application of Rule 262

No person identified in response to Item is subject to any of the disqualification provisions

set forth in Rule 262

Not applicable

Item Affiliate Sales

Not applicable

Item Jurisdictions in Which Securities Are to be Offered

None

The Conimon Stock to be offered by the Issuer in its Share Owner Dividend Reinvestment

and Stock Purchase Plan Plan will be offered to the Issuers existing shareholders who reside in the states

of Arizona Arkansas California Colorado Connecticut Florida Georgia Illinois Maryland

Massachusetts Michigan Minnesota Mississippi New Jersey New York North Carolina Ohio Oregon

Pennsylvania Tennessee Texas Virginia and Washington The Plan and any shares of Common Stock

purchased by the Issuer for such Plan are being offered to existing shareholders of the Issuer by delivery of

the final Offering Circular by United States mail

Item Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year

Not applicable

Item Other Present or Proposed Offerings

None

Item Marketing Arrangements

None not applicable

Item Relationship With Issuer of lLxperts Named in Offering Statement

Not applicable

Item Use of Solicitation of Interest Document

No not applicable
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OFFERING CIRCULAR

STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION

SHARE OWNER DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

500000 shares of Common Stock

$1.00 par value

TO THE COMMON SHAREHOLDERS OF STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION

SIC or the Company Share Owner Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan the Plan
The Plan offers our shareholders who own the Companys Common Stock the opportunity to

automatically reinvest any cash dividends on your Common Stock in the purchase of additional shares

of Common Stock No brokerage commissions fees or service charges will be paid by shareholders

participating in the Plan for purchases of shares made under the Plan

Dividends will be reinvested on quarterly basis as paid The Plan may purchase shares of

.E Common Stock on the open market or from the Company for the accounts of participants in the Plan as

further described herein

Shareholders may enroll in the Plan by completing the enclosed Authorization Form and

returning it to American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC 6201 15th Avenue Brooklyn New

York 11219 the Companys Agent for administering the Plan Shareholders enrolled in the Plan will

continue in the Plan until they notify American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC in writing that

they wish to withdraw from participation in the Plan

If you do not wish to participate in the Plan you do not need to take any action You will

continue to receive your cash dividends if and when declared by check

Additional information about the Plan is provided in question-and-answer form in this

Prospectus Should any additional questions arise please contact us

Sincerely

Brenda Copeland

President and Chief Executive Officer

This Offering Circular relates to 500000 shares of Common Stock par value $1.00 per share of the

Company registered for sale under the Plan Please retain this Offering Circular for future reference

The date of commencement of this offering is 2013
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STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION

One Steuben Square

1-lornell New York 14843-1699

607 324-50W

500000 shares of Common Stock

All the shares of Common Stock offered hereby are being sold by Steuben Trust Corporation STC
or the Company There is no public market for the Common Stock and it is unlikely that public market

will develop as result of this Offering The Company does not intend to list the Common Stock on any

securities exchange or the NASDAQ Stock Market The offering price will be determined as set forth in the

Plan copy of which is attached hereto as Annex

THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION DOES NOT PASS

UPON THE MERITS OF OR GIVE ITS APPROVAL TO ANY SECURITIES OFFERED OR THE
TERMS OF THE OFFERING NOR DOES IT PASS UPON THE ACCURACY OR
COMPLETENESS OF ANY OFFERING CIRCULAR OR OTHER SELLING LITERATURE
THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION WITH THE COMMISSION HOWEVER THE COMMISSION HAS NOT MADE
AN INDEPENDENT DETERMINATION THAT THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREUNDER ARE
EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION

SEE RISK FACTORS BEGINNENG ON PAGE FOR INFORMATION THAT SHOULD BE

CONSIDERED BY PROSPECTIVE iNVESTORS

Underwriting

Discounts and Proceeds to the

Price to Public Commissions Company

Per Share $30.00 -0- 3000

Total $30.00 -0- 30.00

The date of this Offering Circular is August 22 2013

THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK OFFERED HEREUNDER ARE NOT DEPOSIT OR AN ACCOUNT OF OUR

BANK SUBSIDIARY AND ARE NOT INSURED BY THE FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION OR

ANY OTHER GOVERNMENT AGENCY

THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR IS NOT AN OFFER TO SELL OUR COMMON STOCK AND IS NOT SOLICITING AN

OFFER TO BUY OUR COMMON STOCK EXCEPT TO OUR EXISTING SECURITY HOLDERS
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SUMMARY

The Plan provides all holders of the Companys Common Stock the ability on quarterly basis to

automatically reinvest all or portion of any cash dividends declared by the Company or to voluntarily invest

certain additional cash payments into additional shares of Common Stock This Offering Circular explains

the potential risks to those investing funds through the Plan and provides detailed information with
respect to

the purpose advantages administration participation and costs associated with investing through the Plan

In addition the Offering Circular gives detailed information with respect to making purchases under the

Plan and how and when an investor may withdraw from the Plan

Finally the Offering Circular gives detailed information with respect to the Company its business

and competition This information includes statistical financial and descriptive detail of the Companys

lending activities as well as the regulation and supervision of the Company by Federal and New York State

authorities The capitalization of the Company is also discussed as well as its management
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SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA

The following tables set forth our selected consolidated historical financial and other data for the years

and at the dates indicated The information at June 30 2013 and 2012 and December 31 2012 and

2011 and for the years or periods then ended is derived in part from and should be read together with

our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto beginning at page F-i of this offering circular

The selected consolidated financial data below should be read in conjunction with our consolidated 11-

nancial statements and the accompanying notes and Managements Discussion and Analysis of Finan

cial Condition and Results of Operations The historical results are not necessarily indicative of results

that may be expected for any future period

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Condition

December 31 June 30
2012 2011 2013 2012

Dollars in Thousands

Assets

Cash and Due From Banls 15008 17237 13509 11512

Loans net 240476 218782 233820 222076

Investment Securities 141010 133659 153142 143651

Premises Equipment 7497 6561 7357 7420

Other Assets 15498 14412 16090 14037

Total Assets 419489 390651 423918 398696

Liabilities

Deposits 330034 314435 352065 338698

Borrowings 41500 29250 25000 13000

Subordinated Debentures 2062 2062 2062 2062

Accrued Interest Payable 97 161 91 148

Other Liabilities 5073 5656 5155 4975

Total Liabilities 378766 351564 384373 358883

Shareholders Equity

Common Stock 1728 1707 1728 1712
Additional Paid-In Capital 4469 3865 4494 4017

Non-controlling interest 314 314 314 314

Undivided Profits 33464 32358 35703 33587

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 2559 2161 526 2123

TreasuryStock 1811 1318 2168 1940
Total Shareholders Equity 40723 39087 39545 39813

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity 419489 390651 423918 398696
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Interest Income

Interest Expense _______________

Net Interest Income

Provision for Loan Losses
_____________

Net Interest Income After Provision

for Loan Losses

Other Operating Income

Operating Expenses ____________
Income Before Income Tax

Income Tax
____________

Net Income

Less net inc attrib to non.controiling interest

Net income available to common shareholders

Basic Earnings Per Share

Diluted Earnings Per Share

Return on Average Equity

Dividend Payout Ratio

Includes SI .00 accelerated dividend regular dividend 37.14%

Six month period results are annualized in computing ratios

RISK FACTORS

Six Months Ending

6/30/13 6/30/12

7857 7841

523 771

7334 7070

34 26

7300 7044

2302 2171

6425 6373

3177 2842

910 779

2267 2063

28 28

2239 2035

1.36 1.24

1.36 1.24

Six Months Ended June 30

PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD CONSIDER CAREFULLY THE FOLLOWING
FACTORS IN ADDITION TO THE OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING THE COMPANY
AND ITS BUSINESS CONTAINED IN THIS OFFERING CLRCULAR BEFORE PURCHASING
THE SHARES OFFERED HEREBY

THE COMPANY MAY BE UNABLE TO PAY DIVIDENDS OR ITS ABILITY TO PAY
DIVIDENDS MAY BE RESTRICTED

The Companys ability to pay dividends to holders of its Common Stock is dependent on receipt of

cash dividends from its wholly-owned subsidiary Steuben Trust Company the Bank Federal regulations

limit the amount of cash dividends which the Bank may pay to the Company and may restrict the amount of

dividends payable by the Company Failure to obtain sufficient funds from the Bank to make periodic divi

dend payments will adversely affect the Companys ability to pay dividends to the holders of the Common

Stock The Banks ability to make dividend payments is subject to the Bank maintaining profitable opera

tions There can be no assurance that future earnings will support dividend payments to the Company

The Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System the Federal Reserve Board has the power

to prohibit the payment of dividends by bank holding company if actions by such company constitute an

unsafe or unsound practice The Federal Reserve Board has issued policy statement on the payment of cash

dividends by bank holding companies which
expresses

the Federal Reserve Boards view that bank holding

company should pay cash dividends only to the extent that the companys net income for the past year is

sufficient to cover both the cash dividends and rate of earnings retention that is consistent with the

companys capital needs asset quality and overall financial condition The Federal Reserve Board indicated

that it would be inappropriate for company experiencing serious financial problems to borrow funds to pay

dividends Federal Reserve Board policy also requires that bank holding company serve as source of

financial strength to its subsidiary banks by standing ready to use available resources to provide adequate

capital funds to those banks during periods of financial stress or adversity These policies could affect the

ability of the Company to pay cash dividends
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Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income

Dollars in Thousands Except Per Share Data

Twelve Months Ending

12/31/12 12/31/11

15730 16045

1389 1838

14341 14207

166 583

14175

4546

12696

6025

1626

4399

28

4371

2.66

2.66

13624

4680

12459

5845

1585

4260
28

4232

2.58

2.58

Other Financial Information

Return on Average Assets

Year ended December

2012

1.09%

10.90%

74.70%

20
Ll3%

11.67%

37.05%

2013

l.05%

10.8 8%

0.00%

2012

1.03%

10 .34%

39.63%



Federal legislation also prohibits depository institutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation the FDIC such as the Bank from paying dividends or making capital distributions that

would cause the institution to fail to meet minimum capital requirements In addition under the New York

Banking Law the Bank may only pay dividends up to an amount equal to its net profits for the current year

combined with its retained net profits of the preceding two years

NO PUBLIC MARKET FOR STOCK COMPANY NOT REQUIRED TO FILE PERIODIC

REPORTS WITH THE SEC

There is no public market for the Conipanys Common Stock offered hereby and there can be no

assurance that any trading market will develop at any time in the future Additionally the Common Stock

offered hereby is offered pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements under the Securities

Act pursuant to SEC Regulation The Company is not and will not be required to file periodic reports with

the SEC as result of this Offering or otherwise be subject to the provisions of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act or the rules of the SEC applicable to reporting companies Such

reporting obligation would not arise unless and until the Company has 2000 shareholders of record In order

to avoid the direct and indirect costs of being reporting company the Company intends to attempt to stay

below 2000 record shareholders

SIGNIFICANT COMPETITION FROM BAJ44KS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

OFFERING SIMILAR SERVICES

The Company faces significant competition from many banks savings institutions and other finan

cial institutions which have branch offices or otherwise operate in the Companys market area as vell as

many other companies now offering variety of financial services Many of these competitors have substan

tially greater financial resources than the Company including larger capital base that allows them to attract

customers seeking larger loans than the Bank is able to make

LOCAL NATIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND GOVERNMENT
MONETARY AN FISCAL POLICIES MAY ADVERSELY IMPACT PROFITABILITY

Commercial banking is affected directly and indirectly by local domestic and international eco

nomic and political conditions and by government monetary and fiscal policies Conditions such as infla

tion recession unemployment volatile interest rates tight money supply real estate values international

conflicts and other factors beyond the control of the Company and the Bank may adversely affect the poten

tial profitability of the Company and the Bank The Company is not immune from the effects of the current

global economic downturn Maintaining profitability may become increasingly challenging until these con

ditions improve It should be noted that the recent recovery in the stock market has improved the overall

wealth of many households However most of this additional wealth is in 401k plans or other retirement

accounts Therefore the spending power of these households has not been greatly increased Volatility in

the stock market remains risk to household wealth levels as vell as consumer confidence The umiemnploy

merit rates are still at very high levels both nationally and locally but off their historic highs from few

years ago

FEDERAL AND STATE REGULATIONS COULD AFFECT THE COMPANY AND THE BANK
BY INCREASING COSTS OF OPERATIONS

The operations of the Company and the Bank are heavily regulated and will be affected by present

and future legislation and by the policies established from time to time by various federal and state regulatory

authorities In particular the monetary policies of the Federal Reserve Board have had significant effect on

the operating results of banks in the past and are expected to continue to do so in the future In addition the

Company is regulated by the Federal Reserve Board under the federal Bank Holding Company Act of 1956

as amended and the Bank is regulated both by the New York State Department of Financial Services and by

the FD Changes in applicable laws and regulations resulting from the current turmoil in the financial

markets are anticipated These may result in increased cost of operations for the Company Increased

regulation is highly likely and as result the Banks operations may be affected and its costs of compliance

may rise
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The Dodd-Frank Act enacted in July 2010 represents comprehensive overhaul of the US financial

services industry and requires federal agencies to implement new rules These new rules will include among

other things changes to consumer and mortgage origination requirements

In July 2013 the Federal Reserve and the Banks primary federal regulator the FDIC and other

regulatory agencies published final rules the Basel III Capital Rules that will revise their leverage and risk-

based capital requirements and the method for calculating risk-weighted assets to make them consistent with

agreements that were reached by the Basel Committee on Banking.Supervision and certain provisions of the

Dodd-Frank Act Among other things the rule establishes new common equity Tier minimum capital

requirement 4.5% of risk-weighted assets increases the minimum Tier capital to risk-based assets

requirement from 4% to 6% of risk-weighted assets and assigns higher risk weight 150% to exposures

that are more than 90 days past due or are on nonaccrual status and to certain commercial real estate facilities

that finance the acquisition development or construction of real property The final rule also requires

unrealized gains and losses on certain available -for-sale securities holdings to be included for purposes of

calculating regulatory capital requirements unless one-time opt-in or opt-out is exercised The rule limits

banking organizations capital distributions and certain discretionary bonus payments if the banking

organization does not hold capital conservation buffer consisting of 2.5% of common equity Tier

capital risk-based weighted assets in addition to the amount necessary to meeting its minimum risk-based

capital requirements

The final rule becomes effective for the Bank on January 2015 The capital conservation buffer

requirement will be phased in beginning January 2016 and ending January 2019 when the full capital

conservation buffer requirement will be effective The final rule also implements consolidated capital

requirements effective January 2015

OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY AND THE BANK DEPEND IN LARGE PART ON EXISTING

MANAGEMENT

The operations of the Company and the Bank to date have been largely dependent on existing

management The loss to the Company or the Bank of one or more of its existing executive officers could

have material adverse effect on the Companys business and results of operations

GEOGRAPHIC CONCENTRATION OF LOAN PORTFOLIO

The banks primary lending markets are the New York counties of Steuben Allegany Livingston

Wyoming and Monroe Therefore despite the banks diversification efforts we are still reliant on the

economy in this region as well as at risk to any natural disasters in the area

MANAGEMENT THROUGH LARGE PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP COULD CONTROL

CERTAIN SHAREHOLDER VOTES

As of June 30 2013 Directors and officers of the Company and their affiliates owned or had power

to vote approximately 24.5% of the Companys outstanding shares of Common Stock Management by

virtue of this concentration of stock ownership may be able to control the election of the Companys

Directors and to control the outcome of actions requiring shareholder approval

CERTAIN PROVISIONS MAY DETER OR DISCOURAGE CHANGE IN THE CONTROL OF
THE COMPANY

The Companys Certificate of Incorporation Bylaws and the New York Business Corporation Law

contain certain provisions which may have the effect of deterring or discouraging among other things non-

negotiated
tender or exchange offer for shares of Common Stock proxy contest for control of the

Company the assumption of control of the Company by holder of large block of Common Stock or

removal of the Companys management
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TEN LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS MAY BE LIABLE FOR UNPAID WAGES AND SALARIES

New York Business Corporation Law Section 630 holds the ten largest shareholders of New York

corporation liable for any wages or salaries that an employee or laborer is unable to collect from the

Company Under Section 630 each of the ten largest shareholders of the Company could be personally

liable for any wages or salaries earned for services provided to the Company for which the Company fails to

make payment

OUR ALLOWANCE FOR POSSIBLE LOAN LOSSES MAY BE INSUFFICIENT

We maintain an allowance for loan losses which is reserve established through provision for loan

losses charged to expense This reserve represents our best estimate of probable losses that have been

incurred within the existing portfolio of loans The allowance in our judgment is necessary to reserve for

estimated loan losses and risks inherent in the Loan portfolio The level of the allowance reflects our ongoing

evaluation of various factors including growth of the portfolio an analysis of individual credits adverse

situations that could affect borrowers ability to repay prior and current loss experience the results of

regulatory examinations and current economic conditions The determination of the appropriate level of the

allowance for loan losses inherently involves high degree of subjectivity and requires us to make

significant estimates of current credit risks and future trends all of which may undergo material changes

Changes in economic conditions affecting borrowers new information regarding existing loans

identification of additional problem loans and other factors both within and outside our control including the

possible collapse or insolvency of major area employers as result of the current recession may require an

increase in the allowance for loan losses In addition bank regulators periodically review our allowance for

loan losses and may require an increase in the provision for loan losses or the recognition of further loan

charge-offs based on judgments different than those of management In addition if charge-offs in future

periods exceed the allowance for loan losses we will need additional provisions to increase the allowance for

loan losses Any increases in the allowance for loan losses will result in decrease in net income and

possibly capital and may have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

OUR INFORMATiON SYSTEMS MAY EXPERIENCE AN iNTERRUPTION OR BREACH IN

SECURITY

We rely heavily on communications and information systems to conduct our business Any failure

interruption or breach in security of these systems could result in failures or disruptions in our general ledger

deposit loan and other systems including risks to data integrity While we have policies and procedures

designed to prevent or limit the effect of the failure interruption or security breach of our information

systems there can be no assurance that any such failures interruptions or security breaches will not occur or

if they do occur that they will be adequately addressed The occurrence of any failures interruptions or

security breaches of our information systems could damage our reputation result in loss of customer

business subject us to additional regulatory scrutiny or expose us to civil litigation and possible financial

liability any of which could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of

operations

The Bank has comprehensive Business Resumption Contingency Plan that sets forth plans and

procedures for various types of identified risks including but not limited to fire flooding environmental

disasters and technical causes The plan is updated periodically and approved by the Board of Directors on

an annual basis key component of the plan includes backup and recovery procedures for our core

operating system The Bank has contract with third party Sungard for this service which includes the

use of test site in the event of an emergency Employees of the Bank perform restoration of the core

system on an annual basis at the test site

OUR RESULTS MAY BE AFFECTED BY TUE SOUNDNESS OF OTHER FINANCIAL

INSTITUTIONS

We engage in trading clearing counterparty and other types of transactions with other financial

services institutions We regularly review our exposure to these other institutions However default by one

or more of these institutions could adversely affect our results from operations and financial condition
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

SHARE OWNER DWJEND REiNVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

The provisions of the Plan are discussed in question-and-answer form below Holders of shares of

the Companys Common Stock that do not wish to participate in the Plan will continue to receive cash

dividends if and when declared by check as in the past Shareholders that wish to participate in the Plan

will need to complete and submit an Authorization Form as discussed below The Plan copy of which is

attached as Annex to this Offering Circular is incorporated herein by reference All recipients of this

Offering Circular are urged to read the Plan in its entirety

The Plan provides holders of the Companys Common Stock with simple and convenient method

of purchasing additional shares of Common Stock without fees of any kind Any holder of record of shares

of Common Stock is eligible to join the Plan

Participants in the Plan may

Reinvest dividends on all shares held by participant

Reinvest dividends on less than all of the shares minimum of 10% of share balance held by

participant and continue to receive cash dividends on the other shares

Invest by making voluntary additional cash payments at any time in an amount not less than

$100.00 but up to $5000.00 per quarter whether or not dividends are being reinvested and provided the

Plan participant does not reside in the state of Pennsylvania

Cash payments will be invested on the dividend payment date of each quarter after they are received

Shares purchased will also be entitled to subsequent dividends

Purpose

What is the purpose oft/ic Plan

The purpose of the Plan is to provide holders of record of the Companys Common Stock with

simple convenient and inexpensive method of investing cash dividends and additional voluntary cash

payments in the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock without payment of any brokerage

commissions or service charges

Advantages

What are the advantages oft/ic Plan

Plan participants may purchase additional shares of Common Stock quarterly
with reinvested cash

dividends on all or less than all of the shares minimumof 10% of share balance of the Companys Common

Stock which they own Except for Plan participants residing in Pennsylvania participants also may elect to

purchase additional shares of Common Stock quarterly with voluntary additional cash payments of

minimum of $100.00 per quarter up to maximum of $5000.00 per quarter
No commissions or service

charges are paid by participants in connection with purchases under the Plan Full investment of funds is

possible under the Plan because the Plan permits fractions of shares as vell as full shares to be credited to

participants account In addition dividends in respect of such fractions as well as full shares will be

credited to participants account Dividends on the shares in the participants account are automatically

reinvested in the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock Participants are assured of safekeeping of

shares credited to their accounts under the Plan Regular statements of account provide simplified record

keeping The participants equity in the Company will increase with each dividend payment thereby

generating additional dividend income to be invested

10
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Administration

Who administers the Plan for participants

American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC the Agent 6201 15Ih Avenue Brooklyn

New York will administer the Plan for participants including all record keeping sending statements of

account to participants and performing other duties relating to the Plan Shares of Common Stock purchased

under the Plan vi1l be held by and registered in the name of the Agent or its nominee as agent for the

participants in the Plan

Participation

How does shareholder participate

holder of record of shares of Common Stock may join the Plan by signing the Authorization Form

copy of which is enclosed with this Offering Circular as Annex and returning it to American Stock

Transfer and Trust Company LLC 6201 15 Avenue Brooklyn New York 11219 An Authorization Form

and return envelope may be obtained at any time by calling 1-800-937-5449 Written requests for

Authorization Forms and return envelopes should be mailed to the Agent All holders of record of shares of

Common Stock are eligible to participate in the Plan If shareholders shares are held in the name of

broker or nominee the ownership of the number of shares that the shareholder wishes to have participate in

the Plan must first be transferred into the shareholders name in order to participate in the Plan To affect

such transfer shareholder should contact his/her/its broker or nominee

Whez may shareholder join the Plan

holder of record of shares of Common Stock may join the Plan at any time An optional cash

payment may be made at any time including when joining the Plan by enclosing check or money order

with an Authorization Form

The Authorization Form must be received by the Agent no later than five business days prior to

record date for dividend in order to reinvest that dividend through the Plan With respect to any

Authorization Form received after such date the reinvestment of dividends through the Plan will begin with

the next succeeding dividend

What does the Authorization Form provide

The Authorization Form provides for the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock through

the following investment options

Reinvest dividends paid on all shares held by participant

Reinvest dividends paid on less than all of the shares held by participant and continue to

receive cash dividends on the other shares

Invest by making voluntary additional cash payments at any time of not less than $100.00

per quarter and not exceeding $5000.00 per quarter whether or not dividends are being reinvested

Cash dividends on shares credited to participants account under the Plan are automatically

reinvested in the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock

How may participant change options under the Plan

participant may change his/her/its investment option at any time by signing new Authorization

Form and returning it to the Agent Any change in option with respect to reinvestment of dividends must be

received by the Agent at least five business days prior to the record date for the next succeeding dividend to

allow sufficient time for processing participant also must submit an appropriately completed form at any

time that participant desires to make additional voluntary purchases of shares of Common Stock under the

Plan
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Costs

Are there any expenses to participanis in connection with purchases under the Plan

No All brokerage commissions or service charges will be paid by the Company for open market or

negotiated purchases of shares No brokerage fees or service charges will be charged for purchases of shares

under the Plan directly from the Company All costs of administration of the Plan are paid by the Company

Purchases

What will be the price of shares of common Stock purchased under the Plan

If original issue or treasury shares are purchased under the Plan directly from the Company the per

share price of the shares so purchased will be the then-current price per share of the Companys Common

Stock as determined by committee appointed by the Companys Board of Directors or the Board of

Directors itself the Committee This Committee determines what in its best judgment the Committee

believes to be the fair market value of share of the Companys Common Stock from time to time The

Committee may determine such fair market value from any reasonable criteria it elects to use such as recent

sales of shares of Common Stock in the marketplace of which it is aware the fair market value and recent

sales of shares of comparable institutions other measures such as return on equity return on assets and book

value and any other reasonable criteria the Committee determines Only the shares that may be sold by the

Company to the Plan are the subject of this Offering Circular and the Company will only receive the

proceeds from the sales of any such shares

If shares are purchased under the Plan in the market such purchases will be made at prevailing

market prices and the price to each participants Plan account will be based on the average price of all shares

so purchased The Company will not receive the proceeds from any such purchases

If shares are purchased under the Plan in privately negotiated transactions such purchases will be

made at prices not exceeding the then-fair market value of the Companys Common Stock as determined by

the Committee and the price to each participants account will be based on the average price of all shares so

purchased

As of the date of this Offering Circular the current fair market value of the Companys Common

stock is $30.00 per share as determined by the Committee From tune to time the Committee may determine

new fair market value for the Companys Common Stock Plan participants will be so notified by

supplement to this Offering Circular

JO Hots many shares of common Stock will be purchasedfor particip ants

The number of shares to be purchased for participant depends on the amount of participants

dividends and the prevailing market price or fair market value as applicable of the Common Stock on the

relevant purchase date As soon as possible following each dividend payment date each participants Plan

account will be credited with that number of shares including fractional shares computed to three decimal

places equal to the amounts to be invested for participant divided by the applicable purchase price

ii When will purchases of shares zinc/er the Plan be made

On each dividend payment date the cash dividends payable on all shares held in participants Plan

account together with any voluntary additional cash payments that have been received from participant at

least five business days prior to the record date for such dividend will be applied by the Agent to the

purchase of additional shares of Common Stock Cash dividends on all shares of Common Stock purchased

for each participants Plan account will automatically be reinvested in additional shares of Common Stock

a2 How iillshares be purchased

The Agent will use funds from cash dividends and voluntary additional cash payments to acquire

shares of Common Stock under the Plan in any of four ways as directed by the Company purchase

newly issued shares directly from the Company purchase Treasury shares directly from the Company

purchase outstanding shares in the market purchase shares in negotiated transactions The Agent may
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also use any combination of these methods as directed by the Company If the Company sells newly issued

and/or Treasury shares under the Plan participants will become owners of such shares as of the dividend

payment date To the extent shares are purchased in the open market and/or in negotiated transactions such

shares will usually be purchased within ten business days following dividend payment date subject to the

availability of shares in the market and to any regulatory restrictions on such purchases to which the

Company may be subject Plan participants will become owners of shares purchased for their accounts upon

settlement of open market or privately negotiated purchases

The Company will make every effort to reinvest all dividends promptly after receipt No interest

vill be paid on dividends or on voluntary additional cash payments pending investment of such funds To

the extent that any dividends and/or any voluntary additional cash payments cannot be reinvested in shares of

Common Stock within 45 days following dividend payment date then the Company reserves the right to

distribute the uninvested dividends to the participants and to return any voluntary additional cash payments

received

Voluntary Additional Cash Payments

13 How are voluntaty additional cash payments made

Except for Plan participants residing in Pennsylvania see Page 39 of the Offering Circular

voluntary additional cash payments may be made at any time and the amount each time may be varied

voluntary additional cash payment may be made when enrolling by enclosing check or money order with

an Authorization Form Payments may not be less than lOO.OO per quarter and cannot exceed S5000.OO per

quarter The Agent will send receipt for each voluntary additional cash payment together with statement

for use in making the next such payment Note that purchases of shares with voluntary additional cash

payments will only be made quarterly as well and that no interest will be paid on such voluntary cash

payments received pending the investment of such funds Accordingly it is suggested that shareholders

desiring to make voluntary additional cash purchases of shares under the Plan submit such payments together

with an appropriately completed form to the Agent toward the end of
quarter

Withdrawal From Participation

/4 How does participant sithdrawfron the P/an

In order to withdraw from the Plan participant must send written request to the Agent When

participant withdraws from the Plan certificates for whole shares credited to the participants account under

the Plan will be issued and cash payment will be made for any fraction of share based upon the most

recent average per share purchase price of Common Stock made under the Plan prior to the effective date of

the withdrawal multiplied by the fractional interest

15 3Tjpj may participant withdraw from the Plan

participant may withdraw from the Plan at any time To be effective for given dividend payment

date the withdrawal notice must be received by the Agent at least five business days prior to the record date

for that dividend Any notice of withdrawal received less than five business days prior to dividend record

date will not be effective until dividends paid for that record date have been reinvested and the shares

credited to the participants Plan account

16 Can participant reeuler the Plan after withdrawing

Yes by following the procedure for initial enrollment see Question

Other Information

17 Will certflcates automatically be issued for shares of common Stock purchased under the Plan

No Unless requested by participant certificates for shares of Common Stock purchased under the

Plan will not be issued All shares purchased will be held by the Agent as nominee of and for the benefit of

Plan participants The number of shares purchased for each participants Plan account will be shown on

statement of account that each participant will receive at least quarterly from the Agent This feature also

protects against loss theft or destruction of stock certificates

13
Pagel7ofl82



Certificates for any number of full shares credited to participants Plan account will be issued

without charge upon written request Such shares remain eligible to participate in the Plan and if

participant remains in the Plan any remaining full shares and fractional interests in the participants Plan

account will continue to participate in the Plan as well

The noncertificated shares credited to participants Plan account cannot be pledged as collateral for

loan or other obligation of participant participant that wishes to pledge such shares must request that

certificates for such shares be issued in his/her/its name Certificates representing fractional interests will not

be issued under any circumstances

18 What happens when participant iho is reinvesting the cash dividends on shares registered in the

participants izame sells or transfers portion of such shares

if participant who is reinvesting the cash dividends on shares of Common Stock registered in

his/her/its name disposes of portion of such shares with respect to which he/she/it is participating in the

Plan the Agent wilt continue to reinvest the dividends on the remainder of such shares that are participating

in the Plan

19 What happens ihen participant se/Is or ransfei.s all of the shares registered in the participants

izame

If participant disposes of all shares of Common Stock registered in his/her/its name the Agent will

continue to reinvest the dividends on any remaining shares credited to the participants Plan account unless

the participant also withdraws those shares held in his/her/its Plan account as well

2Q Hoi may participant tran3fer shares held in the participants Plan account

Plan participant that wishes to transfer shares held in his/her/its Plan account must first withdraw

those shares from the Plan Upon the receipt of the certificates representing such shares the participant

may then transfer those shares as the participant would any other securities including without limitation

compliance with applicable federal and state laws

ff1/ic Company has rights offering how will
participant entitlement be computed

participants entitlement in rights offering will be based on the participants total holdings just

as the participants dividend is computed each quarter Rights certificates will be issued for the number of

whole shares only however and rights based on fraction of share held in participants Plan account will

be sold for the participants account and the net proceeds will be treated as an optional cash payment

22 What happens tf the Company issues stock dividend or dec/ares stock split

Any shares of Common Stock distributed as result of stock dividend or stock split by the

Company on shares credited to the account of participant under the Plan will be added to the participants

Plan account Stock dividends or split shares distributed on shares registered in the name of the participant

will be mailed directly to the shareholder in the same manner as to shareholders who are not participating in

the Plan

23 How will participant Plazi shares be voted at meetings of shareholders

All shares of Common Stock credited to participants Plan account will be voted as the participant

directs if on the record date for meeting of shareholders there are shares credited to participants Plan

account the participant will be sent the proxy material for that meeting If the participant returns an

executed proxy card in timely fashion it will be voted in accordance with the instructions so received with

respect to all shares credited to the participants Plan account All such shares may also be voted in person at

any meeting of shareholders If the participant does not execute and return proxy card in timely fashion

and does not attend the meeting and vote such shares in person such shares will not be voted at that meeting
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24 What are the federal income lax consequences ofparlicipation in the Plan

The Company has not received ruling from the Internal Revenue Service concerning the federal

income tax consequences of participating in the Plan Participants are urged to consult their own tax advisers

before joining the plan However general discussion of certain tax consequences follows

participant in the Plan will be treated for federal income tax purposes as having received

on the dividend payment date dividend in an amount equal to the fair market value on the dividend

payment date of the shares of Common Stock credited to the participants Plan account To the extent that

dividends paid by the Company to its shareholders are treated as made from the Companys earnings and

profits those dividends are taxed in accordance with the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code for federal

income tax purposes The Company has sufficient earnings and profits such that participants can expect that

the full amount of any dividends paid vill be currently taxable to Plan participants

The tax basis of shares purchased with reinvested dividends will equal the average price at

which all shares were acquired with respect to specific dividend payment Likewise for each quarterly

purchase of shares made with voluntary additional cash payments the tax basis of such shares will equal the

average price at which all such shares were acquired

participants holding period for shares acquired pursuant to the Plan both with reinvested

dividends and voluntary additional cash payments will begin on the day following the purchase of such

shares

participant will not realize any taxable income when the participant receives certificates

for whole shares credited to the participants account either upon the participants request for certain of those

shares or upon withdrawal from or termination of the Plan

participant will realize long term or short-term gain or loss when shares are sold or

exchanged depending upon whether the shares have been held for more than one year at the time of

disposition In the case of fractional share when the participant receives cash adjustment for fraction of

share credited to the participants account upon withdrawal from or termination of the Plan the amount of

such gain or loss will be the difference between the amount which the participant receives for the shares or

fraction of share and the tax basis therefor

25 What are the responsibilities of I/ic Company and the Agent under the Plan

The Agent receives the participants dividend payments and voluntary additional cash payments if

any invests such amounts in additional shares of the Companys Common Stock maintains continuing

records of each participants account and advises participants as to all transactions in and the status of their

accounts The Agent acts as agent
for the participants

As soon as practical after each purchase for the account of Plan participant each participant will

receive statement of account from the Agent showing the total number of shares held in the participants

Plan account the amount of dividends received on the shares held in the participants Plan account the

amount invested on the participants behalf including any voluntary additional cash payments received the

number of shares purchased the price per share and the acquisition date of such shares Additionally each

participant will continue to receive copies of the Companys annual and other periodic reports to

shareholders proxy statements and information for income tax reporting purposes

The Company reserves the right to interpret and regulate the Plan as necessary or desirable in

connection with the administration of the Plan In administering the Plan neither the Company nor the

Agent will be liable for any act done in good faith or for any good faith omission to act including without

limitation any claim of liability arising out of failure to terminate participants account upon such

participants death prior to receipt of notice in writing of such death nor shall they have any duties

responsibilities or liabilities except as expressly set forth in the Plan

Participants must recognize that neither the Company nor the Agent can provide any assurance that

shares of Common Stock purchased under the Plan will at any particular time be worth more or less than

their purchase price

15
Pagel9ofl82



26 May the Plan be changed or discontinued

While the Company currently expects to continue the Plan indefinitely it reserves the right to

suspend modify or terminate the Plan at any time All participants will receive notice of any such

suspension modification or termination All notices from the Agent or the Company to participant will be

addressed to the participants last address of record with the Agent The mailing of notice to participants

last address of record will satisfy the Plan requirement of giving notice to such participant Therefore

participants must promptly notify the Agent in writing of any change of address

27 To whom do iirite for additional information concerning the Plan

The Plan is administered by the Agent and all correspondence should be directed to

American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC

Attention Dividend Reinvestment Department

6201 15th Avenue

Brooklyn New York 11219

-80O-9375449
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INFORMATION RWARDING THE COMPANY

GENERAL

The Company is bank holding company incorporated under the New York Business Corporation

Law on February 1990 and headquartered in Hornell New York It is the sole shareholder of Steuben

Trust Company the Bank New York chartered commercial bank that commenced operations in 1902

The Banks deposits are insured by the FDIC The Bank is not member of the Federal Reserve System

The Company also has subsidiary trust Steuben Statutory Trust II see Subordinated Debentures

on page 25 The Company is exploring opportunities in other financial services

The Bank is locally managed and community oriented commercial bank which provides loans both

residential and commercial and other traditional financial services to customers consisting principally of

individuals and small to medium-sized businesses The Bank attracts deposits from the general public

business and government entities through its offices and uses these funds and other available sources of

funds to originate loans The Bank seeks to provide personal attention and professional financial assistance

to customers The Banks philosophy includes providing friendly informed and courteous service local and

timely decision making flexible and reasonable operating procedures and consistently applied credit

policies

The Banks market primary market area is located in Western New York State Steuben County

branches Allegany County branches Livingston County branch Monroe County branch and

Wyoming County branch Overall the combined population of the Banks primary and extended markets

was approximately million based on 2010 census data The three counties representing the majority of the

Banks business Steuben County Allegany County and Livingston County had combined population of

approximately 209000 based on 2010 census data The City of Hornell where the administrative offices are

located has population of approximately 9000 based on 2010 census data

As of June 30 2013 the Bank had total of approximately 118 full-time equivalent employees

BUSINESS AND COMPETITION

Lending Activities

General

At June 30 2013 the Banks net loan portfolio totaled $233.8 million representing approximately

55.2% of its $423.9 million of total assets at that date The principal segments of loans in the Banks

portfolio are commercial loans residential mortgage loans and consumer loans

Commercial Loans

The Bank originates secured and unsecured loans for commercial corporate agricultural and

business purposes At June 30 2013 5136.4 million or 57.6% of the Banks total loan portfolio consisted of

commercial and agricultural loans The Banks commercial loans consist primarily of loans secured by real

estate equipment machinery and other corporate assets Commercial loans are also made to provide

working capital to businesses in the form of lines of credit which may be secured by real estate accounts

receivable inventory equipment or other assets The Bank had approximately $1.7 million of vehicle

dealership floor plan loans to finance retail inventory outstanding at June 30 2013 versus $1.6 million at

December 31 2012 The financial condition and cash flow of commercial borrowers are monitored by the

submission of quarterly semi-annual and annual corporate financial statements personal financial

statements and tax returns The frequency of required financial information depends on the size and

complexity of the credit and the collateral which secures the loan
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The Bank does not have any concentrations of loans exceeding 10% of loans to borrowers engaged

in similar activities which would cause them to be similarly affected by economic or other conditions

Residential Mortgage Loans

The Bank originates adjustable and fixed-rate residential mortgage loans and home equity loans and

lines of credit to its retail customers The Bank has historically been portfolio lender The Bank originates

loans both for sale to the secondary market and to hold in its portfolio At June 30 2013 $85.0 million or

35.9% of the Banks total loan portfolio consisted of one to four family residential mortgage loans and home

equity loans and lines of credit Most of these loans are secured by property
located in the Banks immediate

market area

Although the Bank typically originates loans to hold in its portfolio from time to time the Bank sells

such loans on the secondary market For example during the six months ended June 30 2013 the Bank

originated and sold $2.6 million of residential mortgage loans in the secondary market As of June 30 2013
the Bank was servicing $23.1 million in residential mortgage loans previously sold to Federal Home Loan

Mortgage Corporation FHLMC As noted earlier there are new regulatory requirements regarding

residential mortgages and for the most part the Bank previously adhered to these requirements Thus there

was not great deal of change required to remain in compliance

The Bank originates residential mortgage loans in accordance with guidelines adopted by the Board

of Directors and modified from time to time Pursuant to these underwriting guidelines the Bank will

lend up to 80% of the appraised value of the property securing single-family residential mortgage loan

under certain circumstances Generally loans up to 95% of appraised value may be granted to borrowers

who obtain private mortgage insurance

Home equity loans which are fixed rate term loans are generally originated by the Bank for up to

75% of appraised value less the amount of any existing prior liens on the property The Bank typically also

offers home equity lines of credit typically variable rate open-end loans in amounts up to 75% of appraised

value less the amount of any existing prior liens Home equity loans generally have maximum term of

fifteen years The Bank secures these loans and lines with first or second mortgages If the Bank has the

first mortgage the home equity loan can generally be up to 85% of appraised value in aggregate Exceptions

can be approved by officers designated by the Board of Directors

Typically the Bank requires either title insurance or an attorneys opinion letter insuring the priority

of the mortgage lien as well as fire and extended coverage casualty insurance in order to protect the property

securing its residential and other mortgage loans The properties securing all of the Banks residential

mortgage loans are typically appraised by appraisers approved by the Board of Directors from time to time

Consumer Loans

The Bank offers full range of consumer loans in order to meet demand for such financial services

from its customers and because such loans typically have shorter terms and higher interest rates than

commercial or residential mortgage loans Consumer loans are made on both direct and indirect basis and

may be secured or unsecured and include motor vehicle loans personal loans overdraft protection and

recreational vehicle loans

The Banks underwriting guidelines for such loans generally require that borrower have been in his

or her present job for minimum of two years credit report is obtained on each borrower Generally the

borrowers total debt to income ratio should not exceed 40% Loans secured by motor vehicles may require

10% down payment However the ability of the borrower to repay is the primary consideration At June

30 2013 $15.2 million or 6.5% of the Banks total loans consisted of consumer loans
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Composition

The following table sets forth the Banks loans by major categories as of the dates indicated

At June 30 At Deccm her

2013 312012
Consumer Dollars in Thousands

Installment 15169 15091

Residential Mortgages

includes home equity loans 84671 91811

Commercial

Business and agricultural 136431 136024

Total loans gross 236271 242926

Net unearned loan origination fees and costs 424 425

Total loans 236695 243351

Allowance for loan losses 2875 2875
Net Loans 233820 240476

Policies and Procedures

The Banks written lending policies require underwriting loan documentation and credit analysis

standards to be met prior to funding any loan Lending authorities for the Banks officers are established by

the Banks Board of Directors consistent with the knowledge training experience and lending record of

each officer Loan decisions for credits in excess of $750000 are made by the Banks Board of Directors or

Loan Committee comprised largely of Directors After the loan has been approved and funded continued

periodic review is required Due to the secured nature of residential mortgage loans and the smaller balances

of individual installment loans sampling techniques are used on continuing basis for credit reviews of these

loan types The Bank has policy of discontinuing accrual of interest income at the time the loan becomes

90 days delinquent unless the loan is well secured and in process of collection If circumstances warrant

accrual of interest may be discontinued prior to 90 days If loss of loan principal is anticipated any

payments received on that non-accrual loan is credited to principal until full recovery of past due payments

has been recognized The loan is not restored to accrual status until the customer demonstrates the ability to

service the loan over its remaining life in accordance with the underlying note agreement Loans are charged

off in whole or in part upon determination that loss will occur The Bank considers loan impaired

when based on current information and events it is probable that it will be unable to collect all amounts of

principal and interest under the original terms of the agreement Accordingly the Bank measures certain

impaired commercial loans based on the present value of future cash flows discounted at the loans effective

interest rate or at the loans observable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral

dependent The Bank collectively evaluates large groups of small balance homogeneous loans which include

commercial loans less than $100000 all residential mortgages automobile and other consumer loans Non
accrual and delinquent loans are reviewed on monthly basis to determine potential losses from impairment
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The following table sets forth information concerning loan delinquency and other non-performing assets

At June 30 At December 31
2013 2012

Dollars in Thousands

Loans accruing but past due

30 to 89 days 1473 1492

Loans accruing but past due

90 days and over 23 87

Total non-accrual loans 1492 1946

Other real estate owned net of valuation allowance 1332 1203

Total non-performing assets 2847 3236

Non-accrual loans as percentage of total

loans net of unearned loan premiums

and fees 0.63% 0.80%

Non-performing assets as percentage of

total assets 0.67% 0.77%

Non-performing assets are comprised ofi loans accruing but past due 90 days and over ii non-

accrual loans and iii other real estate owned OREO
At June 30 2013 and December 31 2012 the Bank had $1264000 in loans that were considered

impaired and had an allocation allowance for probable losses Impairment applies to loans that are identified

for evaluation on an individual basis Loans are considered impaired when based on current information and

events it is probable that the creditor will be unable to collect all interest and principal payments due

according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement The impairment allowance associated with these

loans at June 30 2013 was $493000 compared to $448000 at December 31 2012 There were no loans

considered impaired that did not require an allocated reserve at June 30 2013 compared to $208000 at

December 31 2012 At June 30 2013 and December 31 2012 non-accmal loans were 0.63% and 0.80%

respectively of total loans while non-performing assets were 0.67% and 0.77% respectively of total assets

At both June 30 2013 and December 31 2012 all problem loans were either classified as impaired or non-

performing Potential problem loans are loans which management has serious doubts as to the borrowers

ability to comply with the present repayment terms and loans which management is actively monitoring due

to changes in the borrowers financial condition Impaired loans non-performing loans and potential

problem loans have been considered in managements analysis of the adequacy of the allowance for loan

losses

At June 30 2013 and December 31 2012 there were no other interest-bearing assets that would be

classified as impaired non-performing or potential problem loans if such assets were loans Other interest-

bearing assets include investment securities federal funds sold and interest-bearing balances with other

banks

Real estate acquired by the bank as result of foreclosure and/or deed in lieu of foreclosure is

classified as OREO until it is sold Write-downs from cost to estimated fair value which are required at the

time of foreclosure are charged to the allowance for loan losses After transfer the property is carried at the

lower of cost or fair value less estimated selling expenses Adjustments to the carrying value of such

properties that result from subsequent declines in value are charged to operations in the period in which the

declines occur As of June 30 2013 and December 31 2012 the Bank had $1569000 and $1440000

respectively in OREO The valuation allowance as of both June 30 2013 and December 31 2012 was

$237000
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Allowance for Loan Losses

Management makes continuing determination as to an appropriate provision from earnings to

maintain an allowance for loan losses that is adequate for probable incurred losses in the loan portfolio In

making the determination management utilizes loan loss reserve analysis format which considers several

factors including loans criticized internally and/or externally by regulators and/or the Banks independent

loan review firm delinquent loans to include the amount and trends in delinquencies projected future losses

based upon historical data for loans which are currently performing as agreed growth in the various

segments of the Banks loan portfolio analytical review of loan charge-off experience other relevant

historical and
peer

statistical ratios and managements judgment with respect to local and general economic

conditions and their impact on the existing loan portfolio

The Bank has no credit exposure to foreign countries or foreign borrowers or to highly leveraged

transactions as defined by the Federal Reserve Board

Although the Bank uses its best judgment in underwriting each loan industry experience indicates

that portion of the Banks loans nevertheless will become delinquent Regardless of the underwriting

criteria utilized by banks losses may be experienced as result of many factors beyond their control

including among other things changes in market conditions affecting the value of collateral and unrelated

problems affecting the repayment capacity of the borrower

The following table sets forth year-end balances and changes in the allowance for loan losses and

certain ratios for the six months ended June 30 2013 and year ended December 31 2012

Balance at end of period

As percent of average loans

Net charge-offs annualized

Provision for loan losses annualized

Allowance for loan losses

Allowance as percentage of

each of the following

At or For the At or For the Year

Period Ended June 30 Ended December 31
2013 2012

Dollars in Thousands

237916 227478

2875

2875 2815

28 92
48
12 129

88 221

18 34

36 81

54 115

34 106
34 166

Average recorded investment in loans outstanding

Balance at beginning of year

Charge-offs

Commercial

Real estate-mortgage

Consumer

Total charge-offs

Recoveries

Commercial

Real estate-mortgage

Consumer

Total recoveries

Net charge-offs

Provision for loan losses

Total loans net of unearned

loan premiums and fees

Total non-accrual and delinquent loans 90 days

and over and still accruing

Total non-accrual loans

0.03%

0.03%

1.21%

1.21%

189.77%

192.69%

2875

0.05%

0.07%

1.26%

1.1 8%

14 1.42%

147.74%
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The Banks management is unable to determine in what loan category future charge-offs and recover

ies may occur However the following schedule sets forth the allocation of the allowance for loan losses

among various categories The allocation is based upon historical experience The entire allowance for loan

losses is available for probable incurred losses which may occur in any loan category

At June 30 2013 At December 31 2012

Percent Percent

of Loans of Loans

in Each in Each

Category Category
Amount to Loans Amount to Loans

Dollars in Thousands

Allocation of allowance

for loan losses

Commercial 2388 58% 2126 56%

Mortgage 119 36% 153 38%

Consumer 191 6% 223 6%

Unallocated 177 nla 373 n/a

Total 2875 100% 2875 100%

Securities Portfolio

The Bank maintains securities portfolio for the secondary application of funds as well as source

of Liquidity The Bank classifies its securities as either available for sale or held to maturity and does

not hold any securities considered to be trading Held to maturity securities are those securities that the Bank

has the positive intent and the ability to hold until maturity All other securities not included in held to

maturity are classified as available for sale

Available for sale securities are recorded at fair value Held to maturity securities are recorded at

cost adjusted for the amortization or accretion of premiums or discounts Unrealized holding gains and

losses net of the related tax effect on available for sale securities are excluded from earnings and are

reported as accumulated other comprehensive income loss as separate component of shareholders equity

Transfers of securities between categories are recorded at fair value at the date of transfer The unrealized

holding gains or losses included in the separate component of equity for securities transferred from available

for sale to held to maturity are maintained and amortized into earnings over the remaining life of the security

as an adjustment to yield in manner consistent with the amortization or accretion of premium or discount

on the associated security decline in the fair value of any available for sale or held to maturity security

below cost deemed other than temporary is charged to earnings for the portion related to credit and the

portion related to other factors is recognized in other comprehensive income
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The following table sets forth the amortized cost and fair value of securities as of June 30 2013 and

December 31 2012

At June 30 2013 At December 31 2012

Amortized Fair Amortized Fair

Available-for-sale Cost Value Cost Value

Dollars in Thousands

Debt Securities

US Agency 38326 39777 29938 33243

State Municipal 47340 48196 46779 49287

U.S Agency MBS 56240 56528 49352 51151

Corporate Bonds 1022 1045 1024 1062

Total Securities 142928 145546 127093 134743

At June 30 2013 At December 31 2012

Amortized Fair Amortized Fair

Held-to-maturity Cost Value Cost Value

Dollars in Thousands

Debt Securities

State Municipal 7596 7743 6267 6424

Total Securities 7596 7743 6267 6424

As of June 30 2013 26.0% of the Banks total securities portfolio was held in U.S Government

Sponsored Agency Securities 36.9% in U.S Government Sponsored Agency mortgage-backed securities

36.4% was held in municipal securities and 0.7% was held in US Corporate Bonds All mortgage-backed

securities are issued by or collateralized by U.S Government Sponsored Agencies and backed by residential

loans The total carrying value of securities increased from $141.0 million at December 31 2012 to $153.1

million at June 30 2013 due to growth in deposits At June 30 2013 securities having fair value of

$142.4 million were pledged as collateral for public funds and other purposes as required or permitted by

law According to the following tables 257% of the debt securities in the portfolio have contractual

maturities within five years Debt securities are shown at their stated maturity dates for the purposes of this

table

At June 30 2013

After After

Year But Years But

Within Within Within 10 After 10

Available-for-sale Year Years Years Years Total

Dollars in Thousands

Amortized Cost

U.S Agency 1001 13230 22057 2038 38326

State Municipal 2944 11571 26021 6804 47340

U.S Agency MB 10 1151 8047 47032 56240

Corporate Bonds 526 496 1022

Total debt securities

at amortized cost 3955 26478 56621 55874 142928
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At June 30 2013

After After

Year But Years But

Within Within Within 10 After 10

Available-for-sale Year Years Years Years Total

Dollars in Thousands

Fair Value

U.S Agency 1015 13980 22504 2278 39777

State Municipal 2990 12160 26473 6573 48196

U.S Agency MB II 1222 8337 49958 56528

Corporate Bonds 531 514 --- 1045

Total debt securities

at lair value 4016 27893 57828 55809 145546

Weighted average interest rate

of debt securities 3.33% 322% 3.04% 2.48% 2.86%

At June 30 2013

After After

Year But Years But

Within Within Within 10 After 10

Held-to-maturity Year Years Years Years Total

Dollars in Thousands

Amortized Cost

State Municipal 6205 1169 222 7596

Total debt securities

at amortized cost 6205 1169 222 7596

Fair Value

State Municipal 6231 1249 263 7743

Total debt securities

at fair value 6231 1249 263 7743

Weighted average interest rate

of debt securities 1.47% 3.86% 4.90% 1.94%

Deposits

The following table sets forth the breakdown of deposits as of June 30 2013 and December 31
2012 The Banks total deposits increased to $352.1 million at June 30 2013 from $330.0 million at Decem

ber 31 2012 The change was spread throughout the categories listed below

At June 30 At December 31
2013 2012

Dollars in Thousands

Non-interest bearing 83994 79997

Interest bearing NOW and Money Market 92056 92472

Savings 58031 60064

Time deposits 117984 97501

Total deposits 352065 330034

24
Page 28 of 182



Included in time deposits are certificates of deposit of $100000 and brokered deposits Brokered

deposits amounted to $29.4 million at June 30 2013 compared to 8298 million at December 31 2012 The

following table breaks out these higher balance accounts and also the maturities of the categories Of the

Banks certificates of deposit of $100000 or more at June 30 2013 $27.2 million are from local public

entities such as counties school districts villages These deposits are considered stable source of funding

for the Bank

Certificates Certificates

$100000 or more at less than $100000 at

June 30 December 31 June 30 December 31
2013 2012 2013 2012

Maturing in Dollars in Thousands

months or less 30143 10002 12961 9130

12 months 29146 23560 22094 30735

Over 12 months 1882 4259 21758 19815

Total 61171 37821 56813 59680

Borrowings

The Bank has the ability to borrow money from the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York the

FHLB This source of funds is used as liquidity tool for the Bank At June 30 2013 the Bank had

$25.0 million in borrowings from the FHLB compared to $41.5 million at December 31 2012 The follow

ing is tabulation of outstanding advances from the FE-ILB as of June 30 2013

Weighted Average

Maturity Year Amount Interest Rate

un Thousands

2013 8000 1.52%

2014 7000 1.77%

2015 5500 2.03%

2016 4500 0.98%

Total $25000 1.52%

Subordinated Debentures

On July 16 2007 Steuben Statutory Trust II trust formed by the Company completed pooled

private offering of $2000000 of trust preferred securities The Company issued $2062000 of subordinated

debentures to the trust in exchange for ownership of all common security of the trust and the proceeds of the

preferred securities sold by the trust The trust is not consolidated with the Companys financial statements

but rather the subordinated debentures are shown as liability The Companys investment in the common
stock of the trust was $62000 and included in Other Assets

The Company may redeem the subordinated debentures in whole or in part in principal amount

with integral multiples of $1 on or after September 15 2012 at 100% of the principal amount plus accrued

and unpaid interest The subordinated debentures are also redeemable in whole or in part from time to time

upon occurrence of specific events defined within the trust indenture The Company has the option to defer

interest payments on the subordinated debentures from time to time for period not to exceed five

consecutive years

The subordinated debentures may be included in Tier capital with certain limitations applicable

under current regulatory guidelines and interpretations The subordinated debentures have variable rate of

interest equal to the three month London Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR plus 1.55% This rate resets on

quarterly basis and was 1.82325% at June 30 2013
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Interest Rate Risk Management

Asset/liability management involves managing the extent to which interest-sensitive assets and inter

est-sensitive liabilities are matched The Bank typically defines interest-sensitive assets and liabilities as

those that reprice within one year or less Maintaining an appropriate match is method of avoiding wide

fluctuations in net interest margin during periods of changing interest rates

The difference between interest-sensitive assets and interest-sensitive liabilities is known as the

interest sensitivity gap GAP positive GAP occurs when interest-sensitive assets exceed interest-

sensitive liabilities repricing in the same time periods and negative GAP occurs when interest-sensitive

liabilities exceed interest-sensitive assets repricing in the same time period negative GAP ratio suggests

that financial institution may be better positioned to take advantage of declining interest rates rather than

increasing interest rates and positive GAP ratio suggests the converse

The Bank attempts to manage its assets and liabilities in manner that stabilizes net interest income

and net economic value over broad range of interest rate environments Adjustments to the mix of assets

and liabilities are made periodically in an effort to give the Bank dependable and steady growth in net

interest income regardless of the behavior of general interest rates in the economy The Bank did take

$149000 in gains on sales of securities during 2012 compared to none for the six months ended June 30
2013 This was done to restructure the investment portfolio to help mitigate the overall interest rate risk of

the Bank The following table presents summary of the Banks interest rate sensitivity at June 30 2013

Interest Rate Sensitivity at June 30 2013

Dollars in Thousands

Over year

One year through Over

or less years years
Total

Interestearnine assets 111 Dollars in Thousands

Loans 119207 90357 25215 234779

Securities 22.212 71.843 59087 153142

Total 141419 162200 84302 387921

Interest-bearing liabilities

Interest-bearing deposits 241911 26160 ---- 268071

Borrowings 11000 14000 ---- 25000

Trust Preferred Securities 2.062 ---- ---- 2062

Total 254973 40160 ---- 295133

Interest rate sensitivity gap

Interval 113554 122040 84302 92788

Cumulative 113554 8486 92788 N/A

Ratio of cumulative gap to total rate sensitive assets 29.27% 2.19% 23.92% N/A

Adjustable and floating-rate assets are included in the period in which interest rates are next scheduled to

adjust rather than in the period in which they are due and fixed-rate assets are included in the periods in which

they are anticipated to be paid based on amortization schedules and prepayment histories

Balances exclude unearned loan fees and costs of $424000 and have also been reduced for non-accruing

loans which amounted to $1492000 at June 30 2013

The Banks negotiable order of withdrawal NOW accounts statement savings accounts and money market

deposit accounts are generally subject to immediate withdrawal and are included in the one year or less

category

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the foregoing table For

example although certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods to repricing they may

react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates Also the interest rates on certain types
of assets

and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates while interest rates on other types

may lag behind changes in market rates Additionally certain assets such as adjustable-rate mortgage loans

have features which restrict changes in interest rate on short-term basis and over the life of the assets

Further in the event of change in interest rates prepayment and early withdrawal levels would likely

deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating the table Finally the ability of many borrowers to

service their debt may decrease in the event of an interest rate increase
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Averae Balances and Yields

The following table presents the total dollar amount of interest income from average interest-earning

assets and the resulting rates as well as the interest expense on average interest-bearing liabilities expressed

both in dollars and rates and the net interest margin Net interest margin is influenced by the level and

relative mix of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities All average balances are daily average

balances Nonaccrual loans are included in
average loan balances The average balance of investment

securities is presented at fair value for available for sale securities and amortized cost for held-to-maturity

securities

Six Months Ended June 30

2013 2012

Average Average Average Averagc

Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate

Dollars In Thousands

Interest-Earning Assets

Loans 237916 5911 4.97% 221150 5856 5.30%

InvestrnentSecurities 151801 1946 2.56% 139968 1985 2.84%

Other 1366 --- 0.03% 877 --- 0.03%

Total Interest-Earning Assets 391083 7857 4.02% 361995 7841 4.33%

Non-earning Assets 33967 31733

Total Assets 425050 393728

InterestBearing Liabilities

NOW MMA and Savings Deposits 157348 20 0.03% 142034 19 0.03%

TimeDeposits 109725 301 0.55% 111927 466 0.83%

Borrowings 27953 183 1.31% 16827 218 2.59%

Subordinated Debentures 2062 19 1.84% 2062 68 6.60%

Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities 297088 523 0.35% 272850 771 0.57%

Non-Interest Bearing Deposits 81803 76297

Other Non-Interest Bearing Liabilities 4674 4893

Shareholders Equity 41485 39688

Total Liabilities and

Shareholders Equity 425050 393728

Net Interest Income 7334 3.67% 7070 3.76%

Net Yield on Interest Earning Assets 3.75% 3.91%

Average Interest-Earning Assets to

Average Interest-Bearing Liabilities 131.64% 132.67%
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table describes the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes in volume of

interest-related assets and liabilities have affected the Banks interest income and expense during the periods

indicated For each category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities information is

provided on changes attributable to changes in volume change in volume multiplied by prior year rate

changes in rate change in rate multiplied by prior year volume and total change in rate and volume

The combined effect of changes in both rate and volume has been allocated proportionately to the change due

to rate and the change due to volume

For Six Months Ended June 30

2013 vs 2012 2012 vs 2011

Increase Decrease Total increase Decrease Total

Due To Increase Due To increase

Volume Rate Decrease Volume Rate Decrease

Dollars in Thousands

InterestEarning Assets

Fed Funds and Interest Bearing Deposits

U.S Agencies MBS 39 135 96 116 214 98
State Municipal 109 60 49 84 49 35

Other Stocks and Bonds 20 12 13 16

Total investments and Other 168 207 39 213 261 48

Commercial Loans 367 87 280 368 109 259

Mortgage Loans 95 191 96 100 193 93
Consumer Loans md H/E Lines 51 78 129 112 85 197

Total Loans 411 356 55 356 387 31
Total Interest-Earning Assets 579 563 16 569 648 79

Interest-Bearing Liabilities

NOW MMA and Savings Accounts

Time Deposits 159 165 21 125 104
Total Deposits 160 164 22 127 105

FI-ILB Advances 73 108 35 43 35 78
Subordinated Debentures 49 49
Total Borrowings 73 157 84 43 35 78

Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities 69 317 248 21 162 183

Increase Decrease in Net Interest Income 510 246 264 590 486 104
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REGULATION AND SUPERVISION

The references under this heading to various aspects of supervision and regulation are brief summar

ies which do not purport to be complete However to the knowledge of the Companys management the

summaries provide all material disclosure with respect to such supervision and regulations

The Bank is chartered under the Banking Law of New York State and as such is examined and

supervised by the New York State Department of Financial Services The Banks deposits are insured by the

FDIC to the extent provided in the Federal Deposit Insurance Act The Bank has elected not to be state

member bank of the Federal Reserve System Therefore as state non-member bank the FDIC is the

federal agency responsible for regulation of the Bank and the Bank is subject to examination and supervision

by the FDIC

As New York State chartered non-member bank the Bank is subject to numerous New York

State and federal laws regulating among other things the Banks conduct of its banking business including

loans deposits and trust business the capitalization and liquidity of the Bank the opening and closing of

branch offices the issuance of Bank securities and the Banks engagement in activities closely related to

banking

The Company is bank holding company within the meaning of the federal Bank Holding Company

Act and thus it is subject to the provisions of that Act This requires the Company to be registered as bank

holding company with the Federal Reserve Board which in turn requires it to file periodic and annual reports

and other information concerning its own business operations and those of its subsidiaries with the Federal

Reserve Board Generally the Company is subject to the Federal Reserve Boards ongoing supervision and

examination

En addition under the Bank Holding Company Act bank holding company must obtain Federal

Reserve Board approval before it acquires directly or indirectly ownership or control of any voting shares of

second or subsequent bank if after such acquisition it would own or control more than 5% of such shares

unless it already owns or controls majority of such shares Federal Reserve Board approval must also be

obtained before bank holding company acquires all or substantially all of the assets of another bank or

merges or consolidates with another bank holding company Furthermore any acquisition by bank holding

company of more than 5% of the voting shares or of all or substantially all of the assets of bank located in

another state may not be approved by the Federal Reserve Board unless the laws of that second state

specifically authorize such an acquisition

The Bank Holding Company Act also prohibits bank holding company with certain limited

exceptions from acquiring or retaining direct or indirect ownership or control of more than 5% of the voting

shares of any company which is not bank or from engaging in any activities other than those of banking or

of managing or controlling banks or furnishing services to or performing services for its subsidiaries The

principal exception to these prohibitions involves certain specified activities which may be engaged in by the

Company and its subsidiaries including those activities which the Federal Reserve Board may find by order

or regulation to be so closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be proper incident

thereto

bank holding company may not without providing 45-days prior notice to the Federal Reserve

Board purchase or redeem its own stock if the gross consideration to be paid therefore when added to the

net consideration paid by the Company for all purchases or redemptions by the Company of its equity

securities within the preceding twelve months will equal 10% or more of the Companys consolidated net

worth

The Federal Reserve Board possesses cease and desist powers over bank holding companies and

their non-bank subsidiaries if their actions represent an unsafe or unsound practice or violation of law

In addition the Company is required under the New York State Banking Law to obtain the prior

approval of the New York State Department of Financial Services Board by three-fifths vote of all the

members thereof before the Company obtains directly or indirectly ownership or control of including the

power to vote more than 10% of the voting stock of second banking institution located in New York State
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In 1999 Congress passed the Gramin-Leach-Bli Icy Act This law enables affiliations among banks

securities firms and insurance companies that would allow bank holding companies to offer their customers

broad range of non-banking services that are however financial in nature such as securities undenvriting

insurance and merchant and investment banking In order to engage in these activities bank holding

company must qualify with the Federal Reserve Board as financial holding company The Company has

qualified with the Federal Reserve as financial holding company

In 2010 the President signed into law the Dodd-Frank Act This law resulted in significant changes

to the banking industry The provisions that have received the most public attention have been those that

apply to larger financial institutions however the Dodd-Frank Act does contain numerous other provisions

that affect all banks and bank holding companies and will impact how the Company and the Bank handle

their operations The Dodd-Frank Act requires various federal agencies including those that regulate the

Company and the Bank to promulgate new rules and regulations and to conduct various studies and reports

for Congress The federal agencies are in the process of promulgating thee rules and regulations and have

been given significant discretion in drafting such rules and regulations Several of the provisions of the

Dodd-Frank Act may have the consequence of increasing the Banks expenses decreasing its revenues and

changing the activities in which it chooses to engage The specific impact of the Dodd-Frank Act on our

current activities or new financial activities we may consider in the future our financial performance and the

markets in which we operate will depend on the manner in which the relevant agencies develop and

implement the required rules and regulations and the reaction of market participants to these regulatory

developments

The Dodd-Frank Act includes provisions that among other things

Change the assessment base for federal deposit insurance from the amount of insured deposits to

consolidated assets less tangible capital eliminate the ceiling on the size of the Department

Insurance Fund DIF and increase the floor applicable to the size of the DIF

Make permanent the $250000 limit on deposits for federal deposit insurance retroactive to January

12008

Repeal the federal prohibitions on the payment of interest on demand deposits thereby permitting

depository institutions to pay interest on business transaction and other accounts

Centralize responsibility for consumer financial protection by creating new agency responsible for

implementing examining and enforcing compliance with federal consumer financial laws under the

newly created Consumer Financial Protection Bureau CFPB
Promulgate or revise regulations relating to the origination and servicing of cons umer obligations

including residential mortgages

Oti July 10 2013 the FDIC adopted new rules for risk-based and leverage capital requirements for banks

The interim final rule implements revised definition of regulatory capital new common equity tier

minimum capital requirement higher minimum tier capital requirement and changes to the risk-based

capital rules In addition the interim final rule establishes limits on banks capital distribution and certain

discretionary bonus payments if the bank does not hold specified amount of common equity tier capital in

addition to the amount necessary to meet its minimum risk-based capital requirements The interim final rule

amends the methodologies for determining risk-weighted assets for all FDIC supervised institutions The

rule applies to all banks and to bank holding companies with assets of more than $500 million The final rule

will be effective on January 2015 It is anticipated that both the Company and the Bank will exceed the

measures to be considered well-capitalized

Future Legislation and Regulatory Initiatives

It is likely that additional legislation will be considered by Congress that if enacted could have

significant impact on the operations of banks and bank holding companies including Steuben Trust

Corporation and the Bank
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PROPERTIES

As of June 30 2013 the Bank has branch office network of fourteen offices Of this total the

Bank owns eleven of such properties including that in which its main office is located in Hornell New York

The remaining branch locations are leased

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the sale of any shares of Common Stock by the Company to the Plan will be

used for the Companys general corporate purposes including investments in extensions of credit or

advances to the Bank

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The Company is authorized to issue up to 500000 shares of Series Preferred Stock par value

$10.00 per share and up to 5000000 shares of Common Stock par value $1.00 per share

As of June 30 2013 1728385 shares of Common Stock were issued and the Company had 427

shareholders of record As of June 30 2013 the Company held 88793 shares of its Common Stock in

treasury

Common Stock

As of June 30 2013 1728385 shares of the Companys Common Stock were issued and 3271615
shares of Common Stock currently remain available for issuance at the discretion of the Board of Directors

These shares may be issued for such purposes as financings acquisitions stock dividends stock splits

employee incentive plans dividend reinvestment plans and other similar purposes However these

additional shares may also be used by the Board of Directors if consistent with its fiduciary responsibilities

to deter future attempts to gain control over the Company

The Companys dividend reinvestment and stock purchase plan is issued under Regulation of the

Securities Act of 1933 Currently Regulation is an exemption for public offerings not exceeding $5

million in any 12-month period This amount is the current requirement and may change from time to time

To rely on this exemption the Company has filed this offering statement with the SEC on Form 1-A

Voting Rights Each share of Common Stock is entitled to one vote on each matter submitted to

vote of the Companys Common shareholders Such shareholders do not have cumulative voting rights with

respect to any matters to be voted upon including the election of Directors

Dividends Under the New York Business Corporation Law dividends are payable out of surplus

only and may be declared and paid by the Company except when the Company currently is insolvent or

would thereby be made insolvent In addition under the New York Banking Law the Bank may only pay
dividends to the Company up to an amount equal to its net profits for that year combined with its retained net

profits of the preceding two years At December 31 2012 the Banks dividend paying ability was

$5167000

The Company paid no dividends during the six months ended June 30 2013 versus $1.99 per share

during the
year

ended December31 2012 Included in the 2012 amount was special dividend of $1.00
per

share paid on December 27 2012 The Company has no current plans to pay additional dividends in 2013
In the past dividends have been paid on the Companys Common Stock on quarterly basis and the usual

quarterly dividend payment dates have been in February May August and November each year

Liquidation Rights In the event of liquidation holders of the Companys Common Stock will be

entitled to receive pro rata any corporate assets remaining for distribution after all other corporate debts and

obligations are satisfied

Preemptive Rights Holders of the Companys Common Stock do not have any preemptive rights

with respect to any additional issuances by the Company of its capital stock or other securities
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Provisions for Corporate Defense The Companys Certificate of Incorporation contains several

provisions designed to assure continuity of management and to discourage sudden changes in control of the

Board of Directors For example it states that the affirmative vote of 75% of the entire Board of Directors or

75% of the Common Shares entitled to vote is required either to amend the provisions in the Bylaws

regulating the number and qualifications of Directors and any restrictions on Directors or remove

Director without cause

Further under the New York Business Corporation Law and in the absence of any additional

requirements imposed by corporations certificate of incorporation mergers consolidations and most other

business combinations must be approved by two-thirds of the outstanding voting common shares Thus

bidder could acquire two-thirds of the outstanding common stock through any combination of private

purchase open market purchase or tender offer and then complete the acquisition by business combination

such as merger sale of assets or other transaction and force out the remaining shareholders However the

Companys Certificate of Incorporation requires the affirmative vote of either 80% of the entire Board of

Directors and 66 2/3% of the outstanding Common Shares entitled to vote or 75% of the outstanding

Common Shares entitled to vote in favor of either any merger or consolidation of the Company or any

subsidiary under the terms of which the Common Shareholders of the Company shall after the transaction

own less than 75% of the resulting entity or ii the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the

Company or any subsidiary

In addition the Companys Certificate of Incorporation requires any Business Combination as

defined in the Certificate with Major Stockholder also therein defined to be approved either by the

Board of Directors prior to the Major Stockholder involved in the Business Combination becoming Major

Stockholder or by unanimous approval of the Board of Directors prior to the Major Stockholder

becoming such as veil as approval by majority of the Continuing Directors as defined in the Certificate

of Incorporation of the Business Combination or by 75% of the total number of Continuing Directors or

by 75% of the outstanding Common Stock of the Company as well as 75% of the outstanding Common

Stock owned by persons other than ally Major Stockholder

Notwithstanding the requirements described in the preceding paragraph the Companys Certificate

of Incorporation provides that no Business Combination with Major Stockholder may be approved unless

the fair market value of the consideration received by the Companys Common Shareholders is not less than

the highest per
share price paid by the Major Stockholder for the Companys stock during the two years

preceding the announcement of the proposed Business Combination

For the purpose of the regulation of Business Combinations in the Companys Certificate of

Incorporation the term Business Combination is defined to include any merger or consolidation with or

sale of assets to directly or indirectly Major Stockholder or an affiliate or associate of Major

Stockholder the term Major Stockholder is defined to include any person which together with its affiliates

and associates is the beneficial owner of 10% or more of the outstanding shares of voting stock of the

Company and the term Continuing Directors is defined to include members of the Board of Directors prior

to the time that Major Stockholder becomes Major Stockholder

Tile Certificate of Incorporation authorizes the Directors of the Company in taking any action

including actions on Business Combinations to consider without limitation both the long term and the

short term interests of the Company and its shareholders employees customers creditors and the

communities in which it operates

While the Company believes that the provisions described above will best serve the interests of its

shareholders the provisions could also discourage takeover attempts which some shareholders might deem

to be in their interest and may tend to perpetuate existing management

Other Mailers American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC Brooklyn New York is the

Companys transfer agent The shares of the Companys Common Stock do not have any redemption or

conversion provisions applicable thereto and tinder New York Business Corporation Law Section 630

during any time in which the shares of the Companys Common Stock are not listed on national securities

exchange or regularly quoted in an over-the-counter market by one or more members of national or an
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affiliated securities association the ten largest common shareholders of the Company will jointly and

severally be personally liable for all debts wages and salaries due and owing to any of the Companys

laborers servants or employees other than contractors for services performed by them for the Company

Except as indicated above no holders of the Companys Common Stock will be personally liable for the

debts of the Company solely by virtue of their ownership or control of shares of Common Stock

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTWE OFFICERS

The Directors and executive officers of the Company and key officers of the Bank as of June 30

2013 are as follows

Current

Position with Principal Occupation During Past

Company Director Five Years and/or Positions Held

Name or Bnnk Since with the Company or Bank

Robert Blades Jr 65 Director 1985 19822010 President of AL Blades and Sons

Inc bridge and road contractor

2010 Present President olBiades Holding

Company Inc

Brenda Copeland 61 President Chief 2003 2003 Present President CEO of Steuben Trust

Executive Officer Corporation and Steuben Trust Company
and Direcwr

Michael Davidson 57 Director 2008 2003 Present President Davidson Bros Inc

Furniture Retailer

Charles Edmondson 71 Director 2005 2000 Present -President Alfred University

Jack Enirick 58 Senior Vice N/A 1992 Present Senior Vice President and Retail

President and Bank Manager-Steuben Trust Company
Retail Bank Manager

Stoner Horey 67 Director 1992 2003 2008 Director of Geriatrics and Extended

Care at Bath VA Medical Center

2009 2011 Hospitalist The Exigence Group

2011 Present Physician Delphi Medical Services

Sue Lacy 58 Senior Vice N/A 1988 Present Human Resources Manager

President and Steuben Trust Company
Human Resources

Manager

Victor Myers 65 Director 2011 2005 2010 SVP Commercial Agricultural

Loan Officer Steuben Trust Company
2011 Present Retired

James Nicoloff 58 Executive Vice N/A 1992 Present Executive Vice President and Chief

President and Chief Financial Officer-Steuben Trust Corporation and

Financial Officer Steuben Trust Company

Charles Oliver 70 Director 1992 Presently is and has been for the past years

General Manager

Charles Oliver Son farm machinery dealer

Amanda Parker 49 Director 2012 Presently is and has been for the pastS years

CPAlPartner Bonadio Company
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Current

Position wit Principal Occupation During Past

Company Director Five Years and/or Positions Held

Name Lor Bjnk Since with the Company or Bank
Amber Phelps 46 Executive Vice N/A 1995 2004 Assistant Vice President Information

President IT Systems Systems Officer-Steuben Trust Company
and Operations Manager 20042006 Vice President Information Systems

Officer-Steuben Trust Company
2006 2012 Senior Vice President Manager

Of Information Technology Department-Steuben

Trust Company

2012-Present Executive Vice President IT Systems

nd Operations Manager-Steuben Trust Company

David Shults 69 Chairman of 1971 Presently is and has been for the past years
the Board and Partner Shults Shults Attorneys

Director General Counsel to Bank

Eric Shults 71 Director 1974 Presently is and has been for the pastS years

Partner Shults Shults Attorneys

General Counsel to Bank

Shern Walton 60 Director 1999 Retired Community Volunteer

Natalie lv Willoughby 58 Senior Vice N/A 20022005 Vice President Relationship

President and Manager The Private Bank of Bank of America

Manager of Trust Rochester NY
Financial Services 08/2005 06/2006 Vice President and Manager
Department of Trust Financial Services Department-Steuben

Trust Company

6/2006 Present Senior Vice President and

Manager of Trust Financial Services Department-
Steuben Trust Company

Gregory Wood 53 Senior Vice President N/A 2005-2009 VP Commercial Lending Bank of Castile

Commercial Loan 2010 Present Senior Vice President Commercial

Manager Lending Steuben Trust Company

Each of the officers of the Company and of the Bank serves at the discretion of its respective Board

of Directors All Directors hold office for one-year term until the next annual meeting of shareholders and

until their successors are elected and have been qualified
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Compensation of Directors

All Directors of the Company are also directors of the Bank During 2012 the Bank held 12 Board

meetings and 28 Committee meetings Beginning in May 2013 directors received $575 for each Board

meeting attended and $350 for each Committee meeting attended Directors also receive $4200 retainer

fee $2000 additional for the board chairman plus an additional $500 for the chairs of the Audit Personnel

Loan Trust and Scholarship committees if they attend at least 60% of the Board meetings

Executive Compensation

The following table sets forth the aggregate annual remuneration that was paid for the year ending

December 31 2012 for each of the five highest paid persons who were then officers of the Company or the

Bank

Capacities in Which Remuneration Aggregate

Name of Individual Received Remuneration

Brenda Copeland President Chief Executive Officer $73 0978
and Director

James Nicotoff Executive Vice President Treasurer $2309ll
and Chief Financial Officer

Gregory Wood Senior Vice President and Commercial 165108
Loan Manager of Steuben Trust Company

Amber Phelps Executive Vice President 142831
IT Systems Operations Manager of

Steuben Trust Company

Hans Kunze Senior Vice President and Commercial 137445
Loan Officer and Farm Department

Manager of Steuben Trust Company

Figures include an accelerated bonus paid December 31 2012

Under the Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement Deferral Agreement with the Company

any officer with title of senior vice president or above is eligible to participate in the plan and have por
tion of their annual compensation deferred Such deferral amounts are placed in an interest-bearing account

and will be repaid to the participants in accordance with the terms of their Deferral Agreement

On April 15 2010 the Companys shareholders approved the adoption of share based

compensation plan the Steuben Trust Corporation 2010 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan the Incentive

Plan for all employees The Incentive Plan permits the granting of non-qualified and incentive stock

options and restricted stock grants and reserves 80000 shares of the Companys stock for issuance

thereunder

The Incentive Plan is administered by committee of the Board of Directors which is responsible for

designating employees to receive awards the type and number of awards granted and establishing the terms

and conditions of the awards Option awards are granted with an exercise price at least equal to the market

price of the Companys common stock at the date of grant those option awards may have vesting periods

ranging up to ten years The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using closed form

option valuation Black-Scholes model
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAH SHAREHOLDERS

The following table sets forth information concerning the number of shares of Common Stock bene

ficially owned directly or indirectly as of June 30 2013 by each of the three highest paid persons who

were then officers and/or Directors of the Company ii all executive officers and Directors of the Company
as group and iii each shareholder that owns more than 10% of the Companys Common Stock

Name and Address of Number of Common Shares Percent of

Beneficial Owner Beneficially Owned Class

Brenda Copeland 11925.962

One Steuben Square

1-lornell New York 14843

James Nicoloff 3700000
One Steuben Square

Hornell New York 14843

Gregory Wood 1100.000

One Steuben Square

Hornell New York 14843

David Shults 245967.764 14.9

Seneca Street

Hornell New York 14843

All Directors and Executive Officers 402522.649 24.5

as Group 19 persons including those

named above

Indicates less than 1% of the Companys issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock

The securities beneficially owned by an individual have been determined in accordance with the

definitions of beneficial ownership affiliate and associate as set forth in SEC Rules 13d-3 and l2b-2

under the Exchange Act and may include securities owned by or for the individuals spouse and minor

children and any other relative who has the same home as well as securities as to which the individual has or

shares voting or investment power or has the right to acquire beneficial ownership within sixty days after

June 30 2013 Beneficial ownership may be disclaimed as to certain of the securities

Includes 11315.527 shares owned directly by Ms Copeland of which 900.000 are shares in

underlying options exercisable on or after February 17 2013 and 10.435 shares owned by Ms Copelands

spouse over which she has voting control as the holder of power-of-attorney

Includes 800.000 shares in underlying options exercisable on or after February 17 2012

Includes 600.000 shares in underlying options exercisable on or after February 17 2013
Includes 800.000 shares in underlying options exercisable on or after April 2013

Includes 200.000 shares in underlying options exercisable on or after February 17 2012

Includes 300.000 shares in underlying options exercisable on or after February 17 2013

Includes 400.000 shares in underlying options exercisable on or after April 2013

Includes 81203.410 shares owned by Mr Shults directly ii21104.181 shares owned by Mr
Shults spouse iii 143660.173 shares owned by members of Mr Shults family over which he has

voting control as the holder of power-of-attorney

36
Page400fl82



The following table

2013

sets forth the shares awarded active officers under the Incentive Plan as of June 30

Name of Holder

Number of shares of

Common Stock Exercise Price Vesting Dates Shares Exercised

All Executive Offic

ers as Group per
sons including those

named above

All Executive Offic

ers as Group per
sons including those

named above

All Executive Offic

ers as Group per
Sons including those

named above

1200
900

900

1200
900

900

1200

900

900

800

600

600

800

600

600

800

600

600

400

300

300

400

300

300

200

200

200

200

200

3200

2400

2400

3400

2550

2550

3320

2570

2570

320

320

$26.00 February 17 2012

February 17 2013

February 17 2014

$27.00 April 2013

April 2014

April 22015
$30.00 May 12014

May 12015

May 12016

February 17 2012

February 17 2013

February 17 2014

April 22013

April 2014

April 22015

May 12014

May 12015

May 12016

$26.00 February 17 2012

February 17 2013

February 17 2014

$27.00 April 22013

April 22014

April 22015
$30.00 May 12014

May 2015

May 2016

May 2017

May 2018

$26.00 February 17 2012

February 17 2013

February 17 2014

$27.00 April 2013

April 22014

April 22015

$30.00 May 12014

May 12015

May 12016

May 12017

May 2018
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CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

No consideration monetary or otherwise including any formal or informal agreement relating to the

payment of compensation in any form has been given or offered to any shareholder officer or Director of

the Company or the Bank or to any member of the immediate family of any of such persons in connection

with the shares offered hereby

The Companys officers and Directors and members of their immediate families and businesses in

which these individuals may hold controlling interests are customers of the Bank and it is anticipated that

such parties will continue to be Bank customers in the future Credit transactions with these parties are

subject to review by the Banks Board of Directors and/or Committee thereof All outstanding loans and

extensions of credit by the Bank to these parties were made in the ordinary course of business on

substantially the same terms and conditions including interest rates and collateral requirements as those

prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons and in the opinion of management did

not involve more than the normal risk of noncollectibility or present other unfavorable features

LITIGATION

The Company is involved in legal proceedings in the normal course of business none of which are

expected to have material adverse impact on the financial condition or results of the operations of the

Company

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Companys principal executive offices are located at One Steuben Square Hornell New York

telephone 607 324-5010

The Company has filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC Regulation

Offering Statement on Form I-A under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended the Securities Act relating

to the shares of Common Stock offered hereby Offering Statement This Offering Circular does not

contain all of the information set forth in the Offering Statement and the exhibits thereto certain portions of

which have been omitted pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC

The Offering Statement may be inspected and copied at prescribed rates at the public reference room

maintained by the SEC at 450 Fifth Street NW Room 1024 Washington D.C 20549 Copies of this

material may also be obtained at prescribed rates by writing to the SEC Public Reference Section 450 Fifth

Street NW Washington D.C 20549

NO PERSON HAS BEEN AUTHORIZED TO GIVE ANY INFORMATION OR TO MAKE
ANY REPRESENTATION NOT CONTAINED IN THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR AND IF GIVEN

OR MADE SUCH INFORMATION OR REPRESENTATION MUST NOT BE RELIED UPON AS

HAVING BEEN AUTHORIZED BY THE COMPANY NEITHER THE DELWERY OF TillS

OFFERING CIRCULAR NOR ANY SALE MADE HEREUNDER SHALL UNDER ANY

CIRCUMSTANCES CREATE ANY IMPLICATION THAT THERE HAS BEEN NO CHANGE IN

THE BUSINESS AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY SINCE THE DATE OF THIS OFFERING

CIRCULAR THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER TO SELL OR
SOLICITATION OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE SECURiTIES OFFERED HEREBY IN

ANY JURISDICTION OR TO ANY PERSON TO WHOM IT IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE SUCH

OFFER

THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR CONTAINS ALL OF THE REPRESENTATIONS BY TilE

COMPANY CONCERNING THIS OFFERING AND NO PERSON SHALL MAKE DIFFERENT OR
BROADER STATEMENTS THAN THOSE CONTAINED HEREIN INVESTORS ARE

CAUTIONED NOT TO RELY UPON ANY INFORMATION NOT EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN

THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR
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NOTICE TO RESIDENTS OF PENNSYLVANIA

STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION COMPANY COMMON SHAREHOLDERS WHO ARE
RESIDENTS OF PENNSYLVANIA ARE WELCOME TO ENROLL AND PARTICIPATE IN THE

COMPANYS DiVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN PLAN TILE

COMPANY IS CLAIMING AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IN PENNSYLVANIA
UNDER SECTION 203n OF THE PENNSYLVANIA SECURITIES ACT OF 1972 HOWEVER TO
COMPLY WITH THE REGULATIONS OF THE PENNSYLVANIA SECURITIES COMMISSION
PENNSYLVANIA RESIDENTS WHO PARTICIPATE IN THE PLAN ARE NOT PERMITTED TO
MAKE VOLUNTARY ADDITIONAL CASH PURCHASES OF THE COMPANYS COMMON
SHARES UNDER THE PLAN

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements of Steuben Trust Corporation and subsidiaries as of December

2012 and 201 and for the years then ended have been included herein in the Form 1-A Offering

Statement in reliance upon the report of Crowe Horwath LLP independent auditors appearing elsewhere

herein and upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing

The validity ol the shares of Common Stock being offered hereby will be passed upon for the

Company by Underberg Kessler LLP Rochester New York
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Independent Auditors Report F-2

F-i
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Crowe Horwath
Crowe Horwath LLP

Indeperdent Member Crowa Howeh ritemetonaI

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Board of Directors and Shareholders

Steuben Trust Corporation

Hornell New York

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Steuben Trust Corporation which comprise

the consolidated statements of financial condition as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated

statements of income comprehensive income changes in shareholders equity and cash flows for the years then

ended and the related notes to the financial statements

Managements Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America this includes the design

implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated

financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Arrierica

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material rnisstatenient

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether due to fraud or

error In making those risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entitys preparation and

fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in

the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entitys internal

control Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by rrianagernent as well

as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our audit

opinion

Opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

financial position of Steuben Trust Corporation as of December31 2012 and 2011 and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America

Crowe Horwath LLP

Cleveland Ohio

February 82013
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

December3l2012 and 2011

In thousands except share amounts

2012 2011

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks 15008 17237

Securities available-for-sale 134743 130378

Securities held-to-maturity fair value $6424 in 2012 and $3413 in 2011 6267 3281

Loans net of allowance of $2875 in 2012 and $2815 in 201 240476 21 8782

Premises and equipment net 7497 6561

Accrued interest receivable 1446 1498

Intangible assets net 102 109

Bank owned life insurance 8534 8265

Other assets 5416 4540

TOTAL ASSETS 419489 390651

LIABILITIES

Deposits

Non-interest bearing 79997 72364

Interest bearing 250037 242071

Total deposits 330034 314435

Subordinated debentures 2062 2062

Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank 41500 29250

Accrued interest payable 97 161

Other liabilities 5073 5656

Total liabilities 378766 351564

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Common stock $1 par value 5000000 shares authorized

1728385 shares issued in 2012

1706574 shares issued in 2011 1728 1707

Additional paid-in capital 4469 3865

Non-controlling interest 314 314

Undivided profits 33464 32358

Accumulated other comprehensive income 2559 2161

Treasury stock at cost 76300 shares in 2012 58326 share5 in 201 181 1318
Total Shareholders Equity 40723 39087

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 419489 390651

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Income

December3l2012 and 2011

In thousands except share amounts

2012 2011

INTEREST IN COME

Loans 11808 11958

Taxable securities 2334 2615

Tax Exempt secUrities 1588 1470

Federal funds sold and other

Total interest income 15730 16045

INTEREST EXPENSE

Savings and time deposits 872 1144

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 409 559

Subordinated debentures 108 135

Total interest expense 1389 1838

Net interest income 14341 14207

Provision for loan losses 166 583

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 14175 13624

OTHER INCOME

Service charges 2600 2460

Trust income 868 854

Gain on sale of investments and other assets 289 522

Other 789 844

Total other income 4546 4680

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and employee benefits 7793 7584

Occupancy 825 821

Depreciation and amortization 458 462

Marketing and public relations 167 1S1

Office supplies printing postage and courier 433 425

Professional fees 204 192

Furniture and equipment maintenance S87 536

Other operating 2229 2288

Total operating expenses 12696 12459

Income before income taxes 6025 5845

INCOMETAXES 1626 1585

NET INCOME 4399 4260

Less Net income attributable to non-controlling interest 28 28

NET INCOME AVAILABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS 4371 4232

Basic Earnings Per Share 2.66 2.58

Diluted Earnings Per Share 2.66 2.58_

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Years Ended December31 2012 and 2011

On thousands except share data 2012 2011

Net Income 4399 4250

Other comprehersswe income

Unrealized gains/losses on securities

Unrealized holding galn/loss arising during the period 206 5483
Reclassification adjustment for gains/losses included in net income 149 334
Tax effect 22 1992
Net of tax 35 3157

Defined benefit pension plans
Net loss gain arising during period 1058 1453
Recla5siflcatiofl adjustment for amortization of

prior service cost and net gein/loss included in

net periodic pension cost 274 169
Curtailment 1375
Tax effect 229 497
Net of tax 363 787

Total other comprehensive income 398 2370

Comprehensive income 4797 6.630

Additional Non-

Common Paid-in Controlling

Stock Capital Interest Total

BALANCE DECEMBER 31 2010 1696 3554 314 29694 2091 1308 33741

Net income 28 4232 4260

Other comprehensive Income 2370 2310

Cash dividends paid

$0955 per Common share 28 1568 1.596

Stock based compensation plan expense

Treasury shares purchased

5.502 Common shares 142 142

Stock sold

16463 Common shares 11 302 132 445

BALANCEDECEMBER312011 1707 3865 314 32356 2.161 1316 39087

Net Income 28 4371 4399

Other comprehensive Income 398 398

Cash dividends paid

S1.990 perCornrnon share 28 3265 3.293

Stock based compensation plan expense 11 11

Stock options exercised Including tax eriefit

1200 Common shares 31 31

Treasury shares purchased

30694 Common shares 804 604
Stock sold

33331 Commonshares 21 593 260 694

BALANCEDECEMBER312012 1.728 4469 314 33.464 2559 1611 40723

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity

Years Ended December3l2012 and2Ol

In thousands exCeptshare data and per share amounts

Undivided

Profits

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive

Income ILosCI

Treasury

Stork
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December31 2012 and 2011

in thousands

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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166

51

149
914

140

11

104
3934
4074
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4487

4260

452

583

60

334
669

158

390
4914
5102

132
190

58
195

5.128
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2012

4399

2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Provision for loan losses

Subsequent write down of other real estate

Gain on sale of securities

Amortization/accretion on securities avaIlable for sale

Gain on sale of loans held for sale

Loss on sale of other real estate

Stock based compensation plan expense

Deferred income tax expense

Net principal disbursed on loans held for sate

Proceeds from sale of loans held for sale

Change in

Accrued interest receivable

Other assets

Accrued interest payable

Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM IN VESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale 4153 10404
Proceeds from maturities and redemptions of securities available for sale 7657 9735

Principal payments on securities available for sale 15250 11512
Purchases of securities available for sale 321 32 57140
Purchases of securities held to maturity 5.706 2047
Proceeds from maturities and redemptions of securities held to maturity 2719 3203
Proceeds from maturities of Interest bearing time deposits

with other financial institutions 147

Net Increase in loans 22014 11341
Proceeds from sale of other real estate 145

Capital expenditures 1320 563
Net cash used in investing activities 31393 35945

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING AC11VITIES

Net increase in deposits 15599 33122

Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank advances 61750 7500
Proceeds from Federal I-tome Loan Bank advances 74000 27250
Common stock issued dividend reinvestment plan 582 289

Treasurystocksoid 343 156

Treasurystockpurchased 804 142
Dividends paid 3293 1596

Net cash provided by financing activities 24677 41579

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2229 10762
CASH AND CASH EQWVALENTS AT BEGiNNING OF YEAR 7237 6475
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 15008 17237

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 2012 2011

Cash paid during the year for

Interest 1453 1896

Incometaxes 1903 1628

Non-cash investing activities

Transfer from loans to Other Real Estate Owned 154 74
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

ORGANIZATION

Steuben Trust Corporation the Company is both bank holding company and financial holding company subject to

regulation by certain federal and state agencies including the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation The Company

through its bank subsidiary Steuben Trust Company the Bank provides financial services to individuals and businesses

primarily in Steuben Aiiegariy Livingston Monroe and Wyoming counties in New York State The Company also has an

investment in subsidiary trust Steuben Statutory Trust II that is not consolidated note 15

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America.The following is description of the significant accounting policies followed by the Company

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned

subsidiary Steuben Trust Company All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in

consolidation

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events for recognition and disclosure through February 82013 which is the date

the financial statements were available to be issued

Use of Estimates

To prepare financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

management makes estimates and assumptions based on available information These estimates and assumptions affect

the amounts reported in the financial statements and the disclosures provided and actual results could differ The allowance

for loan losses and fair value of financial instruments are particularly subject to change

Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of reporting cash flows cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand amounts due from banks and

federal funds sold Net cash flows are reported for customer loan and deposit transactions

Securities

The Company classifies its debt securities as either available for sale or held to maturity Held to maturity securities

are those debt securities carried at amortized cost that the Company has the positive intent and the ability to hold until

maturity All other securities not included in held to maturity are classified as available for sale when the security might be

sold before maturity Securities available for sale are carried at fair value with unrealized holding gains and losses reported

in other comprehensive income net of tax

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment 0111 on at least quarterly basis and more

frequently when economic or market conditions warrant such an evaluation For securities in an unrealized loss position

management considers the extent and duration of the unrealized loss and the financial condition and near-term prospects

of the issuer Management also assesses whether it intends to sell or it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell

security in an unrealized loss position before recovery of its amortized cost basis if either of the criteria regarding intent

or requirement to sell is met the entire difference between amortized cost and fair value is recognized as impairment

through earnings For debt securities that do not meet the aforementioned criteria the amount of impairment is split into

two components as follows OTT related to credit loss which must be recognized in the income statement and OTTl

related to other factors which is recognized in other comprehensive income The credit loss is defined as the difference

between the present value of the cash flows expected to be collected and the amortized cost basis For equity securities

the entire amount of impairment is recognized through earnings

Interest income includes interest earned on the securities and the amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts as

an adjustment to yield using the effective interest method without anticipating prepayments except for mortg age backed

securities where prepayments are anticipated Realized gains and losses on securities are recognized on the trade date are

included in earnings and are calculated using the specific identification method for determining the cost of securities

sold

F-7
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Loans

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are reported

at the principal balance outstanding net of purchase premiums and discounts deferred loan fees and costs and an

allowance for loan tosses Interest Income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance Loan origination fees net of certain

direct origination costs are deferred and recognized in interest income using the level yield method without anticipating

prepaymen ts

Interest income on residential commercial real estate construction and other and commercial loans is discontinued at the

time the loan is 90 day5 delinquent unless the loan is well-secured and in process of collection Consumer loans including

auto and other are typically charged off no later than 120 days past due Past due status is based on the contractual terms

of the loan In all cases loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest

is considered doubtful Nonaccrual loans and loans past due 90 days still on accrual include both smaller balance

homogeneous loans that are collectively evaluated for impairment and individually classified impaired loans loan is

moved to non-accrual status in accordance with the Companys policy typically after 90 days of non-payment

For all classes of loans interest accrued but not received for loans placed on nonaccrual is reversed against interest Income

Interest received on such loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost recovery method until qualifying for return to

accrual Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought

current and future payments are reasonably assured

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is valuation allowance for probable incurred credit losses The Companys provision for loan

losses charged to operations is based upon managements evaluation of the loan portfolio Loan losses are charged against

the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of loan balance is confirmed Subsequent recoveries if

any are credited to the allowance.The allowance for loan losses is maintained at an amount management deems adequate

to provide for probable Incurred loan losses considering the character of the loan portfolio economic conditions analysis

of specific loans and historical loss experience While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans

future additions to the allowance may be necessary based on changes in economic conditions In addition various

regulatory agencies as an integral part of their examination process periodically review the Companys allowance for loan

losses Such agencies may require the Company to recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgments about

information available to them at the time of their examinations Allocations of the allowance may be made for specific

loans but the entire allowance is available for any loan that in managements judgment should be charged off The

allowance consists of specific and general components The specific component relates to loans that are individually

classified as impaired

loan is impaired when based on current information and events it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect

all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement Loans for which the terms have been modified

resulting in concession and for which the borrower is experiencing financial difficulties are considered troubled debt

restructurings and classified as impaired

Factorsconsidered by management in determining impairment include payment status collateral value and the probability

of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due Loans that experience insignificant payment delays

and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired Management determines the significance of payment

delays and payment shortfalls on case-by-case basis taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the

loan and the borrower including the length of the delay the reasons for the delay the borrowers prior payment record

and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed

Commercial and commercial real estate loans over $100000 are individually evaluated for impairment Ifa loan is Impaired

portion of the allowance is allocated so that the loan is reported net at the present value of estimated future cash flows

using the loans existing rate or at the fair value of collateral if repayment is expected solely from the collateral Large

groups olsmallerbalance homogeneous loans such as consumer and residential real estate loans arecollectively evaluated

for impairment and accordingly they are not separately identified for impairment disclosures
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES con tin ued

Troubled debt restructurings are separately identified for impairment disclosures and are measured at the present value of

estimated future cash flows using the loans effective rate at inception If troubled debt restructuring is considered to be

collateral dependent loan the loan is reported net at the fair value of the collateral For troubled debt restructurings that

subsequently default the Company determines the amount of reserve in accordance with the accounting policy for the

allowance for loan losses

The general component covers non-impaired loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for currentfactors The

historical loss experience is determined by portfolio segment and is based on the actual loss history experienced by the

Company over the most recent five years This actual loss experience Is supplemented with other economic factors based on

the risks present for each portfolio segment These economic factors include consideration of the following levels of and

trends in delinquencies and impaired loans levels of and trends in charge-offs and recoveries trends in volume and terms of

loans effects of any changes in risk selection and underwriting standards other changes iii lending policies procedures and

practices experience ability and depth of lending management and other relevant staff national and local economic trends

and conditions indu5try conditions and effects of changes in credit concentrations

description of each segment of the loan portfolio along with the risk characteristics of each segment is included below

Commercial Loans Commercial loans are made to businesses generally located within the primary market area.Those loans are

generally secured by business equipment inventory accounts receivable and other business assets In underwriting commercial

loans we consider the net operating income of the company the debt service ratio and the financial strength expertise and

credit history of the business owners and/or guarantors Because payments on commercial loans are dependent on successful

operation of the business enterprise repayment of such loans may be subject to greater extent to adverse conditions in the

economy We seek to mitigate these risks through underwriting policies which require such loans to be qualified at origination

on the basis of the enterprises financial performance and the financial strength of the business owners and/or guarantors

Commercial Real Estate Loans We originate commercial real estate loans that are secured by properties used for business

purposes where the primary source of repayment is derived from rental income associated with the property.These properties

include office buildings and retail facilities generally located within our primary market area Underwriting policies provide

that commercial real estate loans are in amounts less than the appraised value of the property In underwriting commercial real

estate loans we consider the appraised value and net operating income ofthe property the debt service ratio and the property

owners and/or guarantors financial strength expertise and credit history Because payments on loans secured by commercial

real estate properties are dependent on successful operation or management of the properties repayment of commercial real

estate loans may be subject to greater extent to adverse conditions in the real estate market or the economy

Residential Real Estate Loans Mortgage loans include residential mortgages and home equity loans secured by one to four

family residences located within ourprimary market area Credit approvalforresidential real estate loans requires demonstration

of sufficient income to repay the principal and interest and the real estate taxes and insurance stability of employment and an

established credit record Loans in excess of 80% of the appraised value of the property securing the loan require private

mortgage insurance The Company does not engage in subprime lending

Consumer Loans We originate consumer loans including auto loans to consumers in our primary market area Credit approval

for other consumer loans requires income sufficient to repay principal and interest due stability of employment an established

credit record and sufficient collateral for secured loans Consumer loans typically will have shorter terms and lower balances

with higher yields as compared to real estate loans but generally carry higher risks of default Consumer loan collections are

dependent on the borrowers continuing financial stability and thus are more likely to be affected by adverse personal

circumstances

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been relinquished Control over

transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when the assets have been Isolated from the Company the transferee obtains

the rights free of conditions that constrain it taking advantage of that right to pledge or exchange the transferred assets and

the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets and the Company does not maintain effective

control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before maturity
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned includes property acquired through or in lieu of formal foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value

less costs to sell when acquired which establishes new cost basis After transfer the property is carried at the lower of cost or

fair value less estimated selling expenses If fair value declines subsequent to foreclosure valuation allowance is recorded

through expense Operating costs after foreclosure are expensed

Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost Premises arid equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation is computed

primarily on the straight-line method with useful lives generally ranging from 15 to 39 years for building and related components

and to years for furniture and equipment

Bank Owned Life Insurance

The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain directors and former executive officer Bankowned life insurance

is recorded at the amount that can be realized under the insurance contract at the balance sheet date which is the cash

surrender value adjusted for other charges or other amounts due that are probable at settlement

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income Other comprehensive income consists of

the net unrealized holding gains or losses of securities available for sale and changes in the funded status of the pension plan

net of the related tax effect

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share is net income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted average number

of common shares outstanding during the period Diluted earnings per common share includes the dilutiveeffect of additional

potential common shares issuable under stock options

The factors used in earnings per share computation are as follows in thousands except share and per share data

Basic

Diluted

Net income available to common shareholders

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic earnings per common share

Net income available to common shareholders

Weighted average common shares outstanding

for basic earnings per common share

Add Dilutive effects of stock options

Average shares and dilutive potential

common shares

Diluted earnings per share

O12 O11

4371 4232

1640362 1643234

2.66 258

4371 4232

1640362 1643234

206 179

1640568 1643413

2.66 258

Stock options for 8500 shares of common stock were not considered in computing diluted earnings per
share for 2012 because

they were antidilutive There were no stock options at December 31 2011 that were antidilutive
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Income Taxes

Income tax expense is the total of the current year income tax due or refundable and the change in deferred tax assets and

liabilities Deferred tax assets and Ilabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences

between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences are

expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized in

income in the period which includes the enactment date valuation allowance if needed reduces deferred tax assets to the

amount expected to be realized

tax position is recognized as benefit only if it is more likely than not that the tax position would be sustained in tax

examination with tax examination being presumed to occur The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit that

is greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination For tax positions not meeting themore likely than nottest no tax

benefit is recorded.The Company recognizes Interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense

Retirement Plans

The Bank sponsors non contributory defined benefit retirement plan for full-time employees who have attained the age of 21

and have minimum of one year of service New employees hired on or after March 12009 are excluded from participation in

the plan The plan was frozen and curtailed to new benefit accruals as of December 31 2012 Pension expense is the net of

service and interest cost return on plan assets and amortization of gains and losses not immediately recognized Accrued

pension costs are funded to the extent deductible for federal income tax purposes

The Bank also provides savings and retirement 401k plan for all eligible employees who eLect to participate For the 2010

plan year the Bank adopted provision which provides safe harbormatching contribution equal to 100% of the first 3% of

compensation deferred plus 50% of the next 2% of compensation deferred up to maximum of 4% Employer contributions

are funded as they are accrued There is also discretionary contribution that may be paid to eligible employees This is subject

to approval by the board of directors annually

Stock-Based Compensation

Compensation cost is recognized for stock options Issued to employees based on the fair value of these awards at the date of

grant Black-Scholes model is utilized to estimate the fair value of stock options

Compensation cost is recognized over the required service period generally defined as the vesting period For awards with

graded vesting compensation cost is recognized on straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments

Financial instruments include off-balance sheet credit instruments such as commitments to make loans and commercial Letters

of credit issued to meet customer-financing needs The face amount for these items represents the exposure to loss before

considering customer collateral or ability to repay Such financial instruments are recorded when they are funded
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Long-term Assets

These assets are reviewed for impairment when events indicate their carrying amounts may not be recoverable from future

undiscounted cash flows If impaired the assets are recorded at fair value

Loss Contingencies

Loss contingencies including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business are recorded as liabilities when

the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of loss can be reasonably estimated Management does not believe

there now are such matters that will have material effect on the financial statements

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and other assumptions as more fully

disclosed in separate note Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment regarding interest

rates credit risk prepayments and other factors especially in the absence of broad markets for particular items Changes in

assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect these estimates

Reclassifications

Some items in the prior year financial statements were reclassified to conform to the current presentation Reclassifications

had no affect on prior year net income or shareholders equity

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

In June2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB amended guidance and eliminated the option to present the

components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in shareholders equity The amendment

requires that comprehensive income be presented in either single continuous statement or in two separate consecutive

statementsThe amendments in this guidance are effective as of the beginning of fiscal reporting year and Interim periods

within that year that begins after December 15 2011 Early adoption is permitted.The adoption of this amendment changed

the presentation of the components of comprehensive income for the Company as part of the consolidated statement of

shareholders equity

In April 201 the FASB amended existing guidance for assisting creditor in determining whether restructuring is troubled

debt restructuring.The amendments clarify the guidance bra creditors evaluation of whether it has granted concession and

whether debtor is experiencing financial difficulties With regard to determining whether concession has been granted

the ASU Accounting Standards Update clarifies that creditors are precluded from using the effective interest method

creditor must now focus on other considerations such as the value of the underlying collateral evaluation of other collateral

or guarantees the debtors ability to access other funds at market rates Interest rate Increases and whether the restructuring

results in delay in payment that is insignificant The guidance was effective for reporting periods after June 15 2011 and

was applied retrospectively to the beginning of the annual period of adoption For purposes of measuring impairment on

newly identified troubled debt restructurings the amendments were applied prospectively for the annual period beginning

on or after June 15 2011 The effect of adopting this standard did not have material effect on the Companys operating

results or financial condition
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Notes To Consolidated Financi Statements

SECURITIES

The following table summarizes the amortized cost and fair value of the available-for-sale securities and held-to-maturity

investment securities portfolio at December 31 2012 and 2011 and the corresponding amounts of gross unrealized gains and

losses recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income loss for securities available for sale in thousands

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized

Cost Gains Losses

2012 2011

4153 10404

149 334

The tax provision related to these net realized gains and losses was $58000 and $130000 respectively
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Fair

Value2012

Available-for-sale

United States Agency securities 29938 3305 33243

State and municipal securities 46779 2558 50 49287

U.S Agency Mortgage-backed securities-residential 49352 1839 40 51151

U.S Corporate Bonds 1024 38 1062

Total securities available-for-sale 127093 7740 90 34743

Held-to-maturity

State and municipal securities 6267 157 6424

Total securities held-to-maturity 6267 157 6424

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

2011 Cost Gains Losses Value

Available-for-sale

United States Agency securities 37094 2932 40026

State and municipal securities 39510 2916 42425

U.S Agency Mortgage-backed securities-residential 46181 1746 47927

Total securities available-for-sale 122785 7594 130378

Held-to-maturity

State and municipal securities 3281 132 3413

Total securities held-to-maturity 3281 132 3413

Sales of available-for-sale securities were as follows in thousands

Proceeds

Gross gains

Gross losses
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

SECURITIES continued

Securitjes with unrealized losses at December31 2012 and 201 not recognized in income are as follows in thousands

2012 2011

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Loss For Less Than 12 Months Value Losses Value Losses

Available-for-sale

United 5tates Agency securities

State and municipal securities 5081 50 263

U.S Agency Mortgage-backed securities-residential 7134 40

U.S Corporate Bonds

Total available-for-sale 12215 90 263

Held-to-maturity

State and municipal securities

Total held-to-maturity

There were no securities with unrealized losses greater than 12 months for 2012 and 2011

Unrealized losses on the above securities have not been recognized into Income because the issuers are of high credit quality

management does not intend to sell and it is unlikely that management will be required to sell the securities prior to their

anticipated recovery and the decline in fair value is largely due to fluctuations in interest rates The fair value is expected to

recover as the securities approach their maturity date and/or market rates adjust favorably

The following is tabulation of debt securities by maturity date as of December31 2012 in thousands

Fair

Value

At December 31 2012 and 2011 securities with fair value of $123786000 and $120513000 respectively were pledged to secure

governmental deposits Federal Home Loan Bank advances and for other purposes as required or permitted by law
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Amortized

Cost

Available-for-sale

Due in one year or less 3440 3480

Due after one year through five year5 23533 25091

Due after five years through ten years 48358 52242

Due after ten years 51762 53930

Total available-for-sale 127093 134743

Held-to-maturity

Due in one year or less 4965 4995

Due after one year through five years 1083 1166

Due after five years through ten years 219 263

Dueaftertenyears

Total held-to-maturity 6267 6424
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

LOANS

The following isa summary of loans outstanding at year-end in thousands

2012 2011

Residential mortgages and home equity loans 91811 83177

Commercial loans 90875 93120

Commercial real estate loans 45149 27696

Consumer loans 15091 17167

Total 242926 221160

Net unearned loan origination fees and costs 425 437

Total loans 243351 221597

The recorded investment in loans includes principal outstanding adjusted for net unearned loan origination fees and cost net loan

premiums and discounts and loss on any loan charge-offs The recorded investment in loans does not include accrued interest receivable

as the effect is not considered to be material Commercial real estate loans are delined as loans secured by real estate for which rental

income on the collateral property is the primary source of repayment of the loan

The Companys market area is generallySteuben Allegany Livingston Monroe and Wyoming counties in New York State Most of its loans

are made in Its market area and accordingly the ultimate collectibility of the Companys loan portfolio is susceptible to changes
in market conditions in this area

The Companys concentration of credit risk is shown in the above schedule of loans outstanding The concentration of off-balance

sheet credit risk in commercial letters of credit and mortgage commercial and auto loans commitments is similar to the loans

outstanding above Management is not aware of any material concentrations of credit risk to any industry or individual borrower

The following is summary of changes in the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment as of December 31 2012 and 2011 in thousands

Commercial Residential

2012 Commercial Consumer Unallocated Total

Allowance for loan losses

8eginnlng balance 1454 588 53 270 450 2815

Provision for loan losses 122 264 100 77 166

Loan charge-offs 92 129 221

Recoveries 34 81 115

Totalendingallowancebalance 1274 852 153 223 373 2875

Commercial Residential

Real Real

2011 Commercial Estate Estate Consumer Unallocated Total

Allowance for loan losses

Beginning balance 1093 296 61 337 673 2450

Provision for loan losses 469 302 38 223 583

Loan charge-offs 214 164 383

Recoveries 106 59 165

Total ending allowance balance 1454 588 53 270 450 2815

Real

Estate

Real

Estate
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

LOANS continued

The following table presents the balance in the allowance for loan losses and the recorded investment in loans by portfolio

segment and based on mpairment method as of December 31 2012 and 2011 in thousands

Commercial Residential

Real Real

Estate Estate2012 Commercial Consumer Unallocated Total

Allowance for loan losses

Ending allowance balance attributable to loans

Individually evaluated for impairment 448 448

Collectlvelyevaluatedforimpairment 1274 404 153 223 373 2427

Total ending allowancebalance 1274 852 153 223 373 2875

Loans

lndividuallyevaluatedforimpairment 208 1264 1472

Collectivelyevaluatedforimpairment 90646 43885 92188 15160 241879

Totalendingloanbalance 90854 45149 92188 15160 243351

Commercial Residential

Real Real

2011 Commercial Estate Estate Consumer Unallocated Total

Allowance for loan losses

Ending allowance balance attributable to loans

Individually evaluated for impairment 383 383

Collectively evaluated for Impairment 1454 205 53 270 450 2432

Total ending allowance balance 1454 588 53 270 450 2815

Loans

lndividuallyevaluatedforimpalrment 1264 1264

Collectivelyevaluatedforimpairment 93097 26432 83564 17240 220333

Total ending loanbalance 93097 27696 83564 17240 221597
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

LOANS continued

The following table presents loans individually evaluated for impairment by class of loans as of December31 2012 and 2011

in thousands

Unpaid Allowance for Average Interest Cash Basis

Principal Recorded Loan Losses Recorded Income Interest

Balance Investment Allocated Investment Recoanized Recoanized2012

With no related allowance recorded

Commercial 208 208

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other

Residential

With an allowance recorded

Commercial

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other 1264 1264 448 1264

Residential

Total 1472 1472 448 1264

Unpaid Allowance for Average Interest Cash Basis

Principal Recorded Loan Losses Recorded Income Interest

2011 Balance Investment Allocated Investment Recognized Recognized

Wilh no related allowance recorded

Commercial

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other

Residential

With an allowance recorded

Commercial 10Th

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other 1264 1264 383 253

Residential

Total 1264 1264 383 1269
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

LOANS continued

Nonaccural loans and loans past due 90 days and over and stilt accruing include both smaller balance homogenous loans

that are collectively evaluated for impairment and individually classffied impaired loans

The following table presents the recorded investment in nonaccrual and loans past due 90 days and over and still on

accrual by class of loans as of December31 2012 and 2011 in thousands

2012 2011

Loans Past Due Loans Past Due

9oDaysandOverand 9oDaysandOverand

StillAccruing Nonaccrual Total StillAccruing Nonaccrual Total

Commercial 17 141 158 523 523

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other 1264 1264 1264 1264

Consumer

Auto-direct

Auto-indirect 31 31

Other 24 24 25 25

Residential 70 509 579 431 431

Total 87 1946 2033 2275 2275
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Notes To Consolidated Fin anciaStatements

LOAN continued

The Company has not identified any troubled debt restructurings as of December31 2012 and 201

Credit Quality Indicators

The Company categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability of borrowers to

service their debt such as current financial information historical payment experience credit documentation public

information and current economic trends among other factors The Company analyzes loans individually by classifying

the loans as to credit risk This analysis includes loans with an outstanding balance greater than $100000 and non

homogeneous loans such as commercial and commercial real estate loans This analysis is performed on quarterly

basis The Company uses the following definitions for risk ratings

Special Mention Loans classified as special mention have potential weakness that deserves

managements close attention If left uncorrected these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of

the repayment prospects for the loan or of the institutions credit position at some future date

Substandard Loans classified as substandard are inadequately protected by the current net worth and

paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged if any Loans so classified have well-defined

weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt They are characterized by the distinct

possibility that the institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected

Doubtful Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as substandard

with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full on the basis of

currently existing facts conditions and values highly questionable and improbable
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The following table presents the aging of the recorded investment in past due loans as of December 31 2012 and 2011

by class of loans in thousands

30-59 60-89 Greater than

Days Days 89 days Total Loans Not

Past Due Past Due Past Due Past Due Past Due

399 88 133 620 90234

Total

90854

2012

Commercial

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other 183 1264 1447 43702 45149

Consumer

Other 16 25 7165 7190

Auto-direct 10 18 4240 4258

Auto-indIrect 133 15 15 163 3549 3712
Residential 758 130 288 1176 91012 92188

Total 1488 244 1717 3449 239902 243351

30-59 60-89 Greater than

Days Days 89 days Total Loans Not

2011 Past Due Past Due Past Due PaSt Due Past Due Total

Commercial 157 31 250 438 92659 93097

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other 1264 1264 26432 27696

Consumer

Other 65 22 88 7425 7513

Auto-direct 29 30 4311 4341

Auto-IndIrect 68 22 99 5287 5386
Residential 570 89 168 827 82737 83564

Total 2153 130 463 2746 218851 221597

Troubled Debt Restructurings
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Notes To Consolidated FinancialStatements

LOANS continued

Loans not meeting the criteria above that are analyzed individually as part of the above described process are considered to be

pass rated loans Loans listed as not rated are either less than $100000 or are Included in groups of homogeneou5 loans Loans

categorized as not rated are evaluated based on delinquency which is previously presented As of December 31 2012 and

201 and based on the most recent analysis performed the risk category of loans by class of loans is as follows in

thousands Not Special Sub-

2012 Rated Pass Mention standard Doubtful Total

Commercial 83150 5706 998 90854

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other 41951 1848 1350 45149

Consumer 15160 15160

ResidentIal 92188 92188

Total 107348 125101 8554 2348 243351

Not Special Sub-

2011 Rated Pass Mention standard Doubtful Total

Commercial 84523 7016 1508 50 93097

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other 25460 972 1264 27696

Consumer 17240 17240
Residential 83564 83564

Total 100804 109983 7988 2772 50 221597

FAIR VALUE

Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer
liability exit price in the principal or

most advantageous market for the asset or liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement

date There are three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair values

Level Quoted prices unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the ability to access as

of the measurement date

Level Significant other observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities

quoted prices in markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market

data

Level Significant unobservable inputs that reflect reporting entit/s own assumptions about the assumptions that market

participants would use in pricing an asset or liability

The Company used the following methods and significant assumptions to estimate fair value

Investment Securities

The fair values for investment 5ecurities are determined by quoted market prices If available Level For securities where

quoted prices are not available fair values are calculated based on market prices of similar securities Level

Impaired Loans

The fair value of impaired loans with specific allocations of the allowance for loan losses is generally based on recent real e5tate

appraisal The5e appraisals may utilize single valuation approach or combination of approaches including comparable 5ales

and the income approach Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process by the appraisers to adjust for differences

between the comparable sales and income data available Such adjustments are typically significant and result in Level

classification of the inputs for determining fair value Non-real estate collateral may be valued using an appraisal net book

value per the borrowers financial statements or aging reports adjusted or discounted based on managements historical

knowledge changes in market conditions from the time of the valuation and managements expertise and knowledge of the

client and clients business resulting in Level faIr value classification Impaired loans are evaluated on quarterly basis for

additional Impairment and adjusted accordingly
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE continued

Other Real Estate Owned

Assets acquired through or instead of loan foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value less costs to sell when acquired

establishing new cost basis These assets are subsequently accounted for at lower of cost or fair value less estimated costs to

sell Fair value is corn monly based on recent real estate appraisals.These appraisals may utilize single valuation approach or

combination of approaches including comparable sales and the income approach Adju5tments are routinely made in the

appraisal process by the independent appraisers to adjust for differences between the comparable sales and income data

available Such adjustments are usually significant and typically result in Level classification of the inputs for determining

lair value Real estate owned properties are evaluated on quarterly basis for additional impairment and adjusted accordingly

Appraisals for collateral-dependent impaired loans and real estate owned are performed by certified general appraisers whose

qualifications and licenses have been reviewed and verified by the Company Once received it is reviewed by one of the

Companys appraisal reviewers The assumptions and approaches utilized in the appraisal as well as the overall resulting fair

value in comparison with independent data sources such as recent market data or Industry-wide statistics are reviewed On an

annual basis the Company compares the actual selling price of collateral that has been sold to the most recent appraised value

to determine what additional adjustment should be made to the appraisal value to arrive at fair value

Assets measured at fair value on recurring basis are summarized below in thousands

Fair Value Measurements at

December 312012 Using

Quoted Prices

In Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable

Carrying Assets Inputs Inputs

Financial Assets hj Level Level Level

Securities-available-for-sale

United States Agency securities 33243 33243

State and municipal securities 49287 49287

US Agency mortgage-backed securities-residential 51151 51151

U.S Corporate Bonds 1062 1062

Total investment securities available-for-sale 134743 134743

Fair Value Measurements at

December 31 2011 Using

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable

Carrying Assets Inputs Inputs

Financial Assets Vhte Level 11 Level 21 Level

Securities-available1or-sale

United States Agency securities 40026 40026

State and municipal securities 42425 42425

U.S Agency mortgage-backed securities-residential 47927 47927

Total investment securities available-for-sale 130378 130378

There were no transfers between Level and Level during 2012 or 2011
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statem ents

FAIR VALUE continued

Asset5 measured at lair value on nonrecurring basis are summarized below in thousands

Fair Value Measurements at

December 31 2012 UsIng

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable

Carrying Assets inputs Inputs

Value Level Level Level

Impaired loans

Commercial Real Estate 816 816

Other real estate owned net

Commercial 533 533

Fair Value Measurements at

December31 2011 Using

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable

Carrying Assets Inputs Inputs

Value Level Level Level

lmpaired loans

Commercial Real E5tate 881 881

Other real estate owned net

Commercial Real Estate 525 525

The following table represents quantitative information about Level fair value measurements for financial instruments

measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis at December31 2012

Range

Valuation Weighted

Fair Value Techniques Unobservable Inputs Average

Impaired Loans

Commercial real estate 816 Income approach Capitalization rate 9.0%

Real estate owned

Commercial 475 Market approach Market approach represents 0.0%

recent sales contract for

subject property

Commercial 58 Sales comparison approach Adjustment for differences 3.7%

between the comparable sales
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FAIR VALUE continued

The following represent impairment charges recognized during the period

Impaired loans which are measured for impairment using the fair value of the collateral for collateral dependent loans

had carrying amount of$ 1264000 with valuation allowance of $448000 at December 312012 resulting in an additional

provision for loan losses of $65000 for the year ending December 31 2012 At December 31 2011 impaired loans had

carrying amount of $1264000 with valuation allowance of $383000 resulting in an additional provision for loan losses of

$383000 for the year ending December 31 2011

Other real estate owned which is measured at the lower of carrying or fair value less costs to sell had net carrying amount

of $533000 which is made up of the outstanding balance of $595000 net of valuation allowanceof $62000 at December31

2012 resulting in write-down of $61000 for the year ending December 31 2012 At December 31 2011 other real estate

owned had net carrying amount of $525000 which is made up of the outstanding balance of $700000 net of valuation

allowance of $175000 resulting in write-down of $60000 for the year ending December 31 2011

The carrying amount and estimated fair values of financial instruments at December 31 2012 and 2011 were as follows in

thousands

Fair Value Measurements at

Carrying December31 2012 Using

Amount Level Level Level Total

Financial assets

Cash and due from banks 15008 15008 15008

Securities available-for-sale 134743 134743 134743

Securities held-to-maturity 6267 6424 6424

Net loans 240476 244298 244298

Accrued interest receivable 1446 916 530 1446

Financial liabilities

Demand and savings deposits 232533 232533 232533

Time deposits 97501 97689 97689

Advances from FHLB 41500 41781 41781

Subordinated debentures 2062 1628 1628
Accrued interest payable 97 97 97

December 31 2011

Carrying

Amount Fair Value

Financial assets

Cashandduefrombanks 17237 17237

Securities available-for-sale 130378 30378

Securities held-to-maturity 3281 3413

Net loans 218782 225055

Accrued interest receivable 1498 1498

Financial liabilities

Demand and savings deposits 204633 204633

Time depo5its 109802 110256

Advances from FHL8 29250 29792

Subordinated debentures 2062 1060
Accrued Interest payable 161 161

The estimated fair value approximates carrying amount for all items except those described below Estimated fair value for

securities is based on quoted market values for the individual securities or for equivalent securities
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FAIR VALUE continued

Loans The fair value is estimated using an internally generated cash flow consisting of beginning known or estimated

maturities known or estimated principal payments and assumed prepayments Each months cash flow is then discounted

to the current market or discount rate The discount rate for fair value purposes
is the current offering rate for the same loan

category The sum of the values for each period is aggregated to produce value for the position as whole

Time Deposits The fair value is estimated using internally generated cash flows consisting of beginning known or estimated

maturities known or estimated principal payments and usually small assumed early withdrawal Each months cash flow is then

discounted to that months current market or discount rate modified by constant spread The current market rate varies by month

and is based on the LIBOR/swap curva The sum of the values for each period is aggregated to produce value for the position as

whole

Borrowings The fairvalues of the Companys Federal Home Loan Bank advances are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses

based on the current borrowings for similar types of borrowing arrangements resulting in Level classification The fair values of

the Companys subordinated debentures are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on the current borrowing rates

for similar types of borrowing arrangements resulting in Level classification

Accrued Interest Receivable/Payable The carrying amount of accrued interest approximate fair value resulting in Level or

Level classification is consistent with the classification of the asset or liability they are associated with

Off-balance Sheet Instruments Fair values for off-balance sheet credit -related financial instruments are based on fees currently

charged to enter into similar agreements taking into accountthe remaining term of the agreements and the counter parties credit

standing The fair value of commitments is not material

OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED

Other real estate owned at December31 2012 and 201 was as follows in thousands

2012 2011

Other real estate owned 1440 1285

Valuation allowance 237 176

Net other real e5tate owned 1203 1109

Activity in the valuation allowance was as follows In thousands
2012 2011

BeginningofYear 176 124

Additions charged to expense 61 60

Direct write-downs

End of Year 237 176

Expenses related to foreclosed assets include in thousands
2012 2011

Net loss/gain on sales

Provision for unrealized losses 61 60

Operating expenses net of rental income 29

End of Year 32 56
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PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment at December 31 2012 and 2011 consist of the foflowing in thousands

2012 2011

Land 2151 2141

Bank premises 7747 7174

Furniture and equipment 6503 5766

Cost basis 16401 15OB1

Accumulated depreciation 8904 B520

Net 7497 6561

Depreciation expense was $384000 and $391000 for 2012 and 2011 respectively The Company retired $3421000 in fully

depreciated assets during 2011

Operating Leases

The Company leases certain branch properties and equipment under operation leases Rent expense was $240000 for 2012

and $242000 for 201 Rent commitments before considering renewal options that generally are present were as follows

in thousands

Year Amount

2013 199

2014 137

2015 123

2016 75

2017 47

Thereafter 230

Total 811

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company acquired Canisteo Savings and Loan Association Canisteo on February 202009 As resultof this acquisition

goodwill of $64000 was recorded by the Company An annual impairment analysis of goodwill is performed with any

identified impairment charged to expense Also as result of this acquisition core deposit intangible amount of $65000

was initially recorded by the Company The Company recorded $7000 in amortization expense associated with this item

during 2012 and 2011 The remaining net amount of $38000 is included in intangible assets on the Statement of Financial

Condition.The remaining core deposit intangible will be amortized over more years
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INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expensefbeneflt on operations are as follow5 in thousands

Current Deferred Total

Year ended December31 2012

Federal 1425 85 1340

State 305 19 286

Total 1730 104 1626

Current Deferred Total

Year ended December 31 2011

Federal 1632 319 1313

State 343 71 272

Total 1975 390 1585

The actual and statutory tax rates on operations for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 differ as follows

2012 2011

Statutory rate 34.0 340

Increase decrease resulting from

Tax-exemptinconie 10.2 10.0

State taxes net of federal income tax benefit 3.1 3.1

Other 0.2 0.1

Actual rate 27.1 27.2

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities at December 31 2012 and 2011 are presented below in thousands

2012 2011

Deferred tax assets

Allowance fortoan losses 956 931

Deferred Compensation 930 832

Pension Plan 1345 1574

Other 263 224

Total gross deferred tax assets 3494 3561

Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation 109 92

Net unrealized gain on securities available for sale 2959 2937

Prepaid pen5ion expenses 681 634

Other 184 190

Total gross deferred tax liabilities 3933 3853

Net deferred tax liability 439 292
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INCOME TAXES continued

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income or the existence of sufficient

taxable income within the carryback period valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some

portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized In assessing the need for valuation allowance management considers

the scheduled reversal of the deferred tax liabilities the level of historical taxable income and projected future taxable income

over the periods in which the temporary differences comprising the deferred tax assets will be deductible Based on its

assessment management determined that no valuation allowance is necessary

At December 31 2012 and 2011 the Company had no unrecognized tax benefits The Company does not expect the amount

of unrecognized tax benefits to increase significantly within the next twelve months There were no penalties or interest

related to income taxes recorded in the income statement for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 and no amounts

accrued for penalties as of December 31 2012 and 2011

The Company is subject to U.S federal income tax as well as income tax of the state of New York The Company is no longer

subject to examination by taxing authorities for years before 2009

10 DEPOSITS

Contractual maturities of time deposits at December31 2012 and 2011 were as follows in thousands

2012 2011

Under three months 19132 24683

Three to twelve months 54295 561 53

Over one year to three years 22895 26932

Overthreeyears 1179 2034

Total time deposits 97501 109802

Time deposits of $100000 and over were $37621000 and $47176000 at December31 2012 and 2011 respectIvely Included

in time deposits were $29842000 in brokered deposits at December 31 2012 compared to $13740000 at December 31

2011

11 BENEFIT PLANS

Pension Plan

The Company has funded noncontributory defined benefit pension plan that covers substantially all of its employees The

plan provides defined benefits based on years of service and final average salary The Company uses December 31 as the

measurement date for its pension plan New employees hired on or after March 12009 are excluded from participation in the

plan The plan was frozen and curtailed to new benefit accruals as of December31 2012 This action decreased the projected

benefit obligation of the plan by $1373000
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11 BENEFIT PLANS continued

The following table sets forth the defined benefit pension plans change in benefit obligation and change in plan assets

for the years ended December 31 2012 arid 2011 using the actuarial data measured at December31 2012 and 2011

in thousands

2012 2011

Change in projected benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year 10467 8993

Service cost 558 520

lnterestcost 517 501

Actuarial gainJloss 1381 903

Benefits paid arid plan expenses 453 450

Curtailments 1373
Benefit obligation at end of year 11097 10467

Change in plan a5sets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 8037 7912

Actual return on plan assets 890

Beriefit5 paid and plan expenses 439 443
Contributions 892 572

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 9380 8037

Funded status at end of year plan assets less benefit obllgati on 1717 2430

Amount recognized In accumulated other comprehensive income/loss at December 31 2012 and 2011 consists of

in thousands

2012 2011

Unrecognized net actuarial loss net of tax 2131

The amount of net actuarial loss that will be amortized in 2013 is $225000 The accumulated benefit obligation for the

years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 was $11097000 and $9198000 respectively Pension costs consist of the

following components for the years ended December31 2012 and 2011 in thousands

2012 2011

Service cost 558 520

Interest on projected benefit obligation 517 501

Expected return on plan assets 581 553
Amortization of net loss 274 169

Curtailment loss

Net periodic pension expen5e 771 637

Weighted-average of assumptions used to determine net periodic cost are as follows

2012 2011

Discount rate 5.07% 5.68%

Expected long-term rate of return 7.00% 7.00%

Rate of Compensation Increase 3.00% 3.00%

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine pension benefit obligations at year end are as follows

2012 2011

4.13%Discount rate

Rate of Compen5ation Increase

2494
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11 BENEFIT PLANS continued

The New York State Bankers Retirement Systems The System overall investment strategy is to achieve mix of

approximately 97% of investments for long-term growth and 3% for near-term benefit payments with wide diversification

of asset types fund strategies and fund managers The target allocations for System assets are shown in the next table

Cash equivalents Consist primarily of government Issues and short term investment funds Equity securities primarily

include investments in common stock depository receipts preferred stock and real estate investment trusts Fixed income

securities include corporate bonds government issues mortgage backed securities municipals and other asset backed

securities

The weighted average expected long-term rate of return is estimated based on current trends in Systems assets as well as

projected future rates of return on those assets and reasonable actuarial assumptions based on the guidance provided by

ASOP No 27Selection of Economic Assumptions for Measuring Pension Obligations for long term inflation and the real

and nominal rateof investment return fora specificmix of assetclasses.Thefollowing assumptions were used in determining

the long-term rate of return

Equity securities Dividend discount model the smoothed earnings yield model

and the equity risk premium model

Fixed income securities Current yield-to-maturity and forecasts of future yields

Other financial Instruments Comparison of the specific investments risk to that of fixed

income and equity instruments and using judgment

The long-term rate of return considers historical returns Adjustments were made to historical returns in order to reflect

expectations of future returns These adjustments were due to factor forecasts by economists and long-term U.S Treasury

yields to forecast long-term inflation In addition forecasts by economists and others for long-term GOP growth were

factored into the development of assumptions for earnings growth and per capital income

Effective September 2011 the System revised its investment guidelines The System currently prohibits its investment

managers from purchasing any security greater than 5% of the portfolio at the time of purchase or greater than 8% at

market value in any one issuer In addition the following Investments are prohibited

Equity securities Short sales Unregistered securities and Margin purchases

Fixed income securities Securities of less than Baa2/BBB quality mortgage backed derivatives that have

an inverse floating rate coupon or are interest only securities asset backed

securities that are not issued or guaranteed by the U.S or its agencies or its

instrumentalities securities of less than A-quality may not in the aggregate

exceed 10% of the investment managers portfolio

Other financial instruments Unhedged currency exposure in countries not defined as high income

economies by the World Bank
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11 BENEFIT PLANS continued

Prior to September 2011 investments in emerging countries as defined by the Morgan Stanley Emerging Markets Index and

structured notes were prohibited

AU other investments not prohibited by the System are permitted At December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 the

System holds certain investments which are no longer deemed acceptable to acquire These positions will be liquidated

when the investment managers deem that such liquidation is in the best interest of the System

Weighted-

Average

Percentage of Plan Assets at Expected

Target December31 Long-Term

AssetCategory Allocation2Ol3 2012 2011 RateofReturn

Cash equivalents 0-20% 12.8% 10.69o 038%

Equity securities 40-60% 45.5% 47.9% 3.95%

Debt securities 40-60% 41.7% 41.5% 1.90%

Other financial instruments 0-5%

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair Value is defined under ASC 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures as the exchange price that would be received

for an asset or paid to transfer liability an exit price in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability

in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date Valuation techniques used to measure fair

value under ASC 820 must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.The standard

describes fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs of which the first two are considered observable and the last

unobservable that may be used to measure fair value which are the following

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Inputs other than Level that are observable either directly or indirectly such as quoted prices for similar assets or

liabilities quoted prices in markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by

observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities

Level Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the

assets or liabilities

In instances in which the inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy the fair value

measurement has been determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the lair value measurement in its

entirety Investments valued using the Net Asset Value NAV are classified as level if the System can redeem Its investment

with the investee at the NAV at the measurement date If the System can never redeem the investment with the investee at

the NAy it is considered level If the System can redeem the investment at the NAV at future date the Systems assessment

of the significance of particular item to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment including the

consideration of inputs specific to the asset

The System uses theThomson Reuters Pricing Service to determine the fair value of equities and the pricing service of IDC

Corporate USA to determine the fair value of fixed income securities In accordance with ASC 820 the following tables

rounded to the nearest thousands represent the Plans fair value hierarchy for its financial assets investments measured at

fair value on recurring basis
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11 BENEFIT PLANS continued

The following table represents the Plans assets at fair value by class as of December 312012 and 2011 in thousands

2012

Level Level Level Total

Cash Equivalents

Foreign currencies 10 10

Government Issues 51 51

Shorttermlnvestmentrundsa 1.150 1150

Equities Total Cash Equivalents 10 1201 1211

CommonStock 4131 4131

Depository Receipts 92 92

preferred Stock 18 18

Real Estate Investment Trust 78 18

Fixed Income Sec Total Equities 4259 4259

Auto loan receivable 51 51

Collateralized mortgage obligations 1.017 1.017

Corporate Bonds 886 886

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp 16 16

Federal National Mortgage Assoc 465 465

General National Mortgage Assoc

General National Mortgege AS5oc ii 22 22

Government Issues 1336 1336

MunicIpals 10 10

Other Asset Backed

Total Fixed IncomeSecurittes 3910 3910
Total Investments 4269 5117 9380

Fair value at NAV

2011

Cash Equivalents Level Level Level Total

Foreign currencies 14

Short term Investment funds 839 839

EquitIes Total Cash Equivalents 14 839 853

Common Stock 3.758 3758
Depository Receipts 81 81

PreIerred Stock 12 12

Real Estate investment Trust

Fixed Income Sec Total Equities 3851 3851

Auto loan receivable

Collateralized mortgage obligations 785 785

Corporate Bonds 714 714

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp 139 139

Federal National Mortgage Assoc 428 428

General National Mortgage Assoc

General National Mortgage Assoc II 30 30

Governmentis5ues 1212 1.212

Municlpals

Other Asset Backed

Total Fixed Income Securities 3333 3333
Totallnvestments 3865 4172 8037

Fair value at NAy

At December 31 2012 the portfolio was managed by two investment ærms Control was split approximately 49% and 43% with the

remaining 8% under direct control of the System At December 312011 the portfolio was managed by two investment hrrns Control

was split approximately 46% and 52% with the remaining 2% under the direct control of the System

At December 312012 there was 12% of portfolio concentration In the State Street Bank Trust Co ShortTerm Investment Fund At

December 31 2011 there was 10% of portfolio concentration in the State Street Bank Trust Co Short Term Investment Fund
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BENEFIT PLANS continued

Pension Plan Investment Policies

The System was e5tablrshed in 1938 to provide for the payment of benefits to employees of participating banks The

System is overseen by Board ofTrustees who meet quarterly and set the investment policy uidelines.The Chief Executive

Officer of the Company is member of the Board of Trustees for the System

The System utilizes two investment management firms each investing approximately 50% of the total portfolio The

Systems investment objective is to exceed the investment benchmarks in each asset category Each firm operates under

separate written investment policy approved by the Trustees

Each Firm reports at lea5t quarterly to the Investment Committee and semi-annually to the Board

Contributions

The Company is not required to make contribution in 2013

Estimated Future Benefit Payments of Pension Plan

The following benefit payments which reflect expected future service as appropriate are expected to be paid in

thousands

Pension

Year Benefits

2013 387

2014 430

2015 488

2016 526

2017 602

2018-2022 3668

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company has Deferred Compensation Plan DCP which permits active directors and certain executive officers the

option to defer receipt of portion of their future salary bonus or directors fees The amounts deferred will earn income

at the Prime interest rate reported In the Wall Street Journal and are payable upon retirement Deferred compensation

Liability at December 31 2012 and 2011 was $2404000 and $2151000 respectively Deferred compensation expense

related to this plan was $247000 in 2012 and $209000 in 2011

In conjunction with the DCP the Company entered into split-dollar agreements on certain participants whereby upon

death the participants beneficiary will receive the deferred account balance or death benefit whichever is greater These

split dollar agreements were financed through the purchase of life insurance policies The cash surrender value of these

policies was $8534000 and $8265000 at December31 2012 and 2011 respectively

401k Plan

The Company sponsors defined contribution profit sharing 401k plan covering substantially all employees The

Company matched certain levels of each employees contributions to the plan resulting in an expense of $217000 and

$213000 in 2012 and 2011 respectively
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11 BENEFIT PLANS continued

2010 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan

The Company has share based compensation plan as described below Total compensation cost that has been charged against

income for those plans was $11000 for 2012 and $9000 for 2011 The total income tax benefit was $4000 for both 2012 and

2011

The Companys 2010 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan Plan which is shareholder approved permits the grant of share options

to its employees for up to 80000 shares of common stock Option awards are granted with an exercise price at least equal to the

market price of the Companys common stock at the date of grant those option awards may have vesting periods ranging up to

ten years

committee of the Board of Directors will administer the Plan Their responsibility will include designating participants

determining the type and number of awards granted and establishing the terms and conditions of the awards

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using closed form option valuation Black-Scholes

model that uses the assumptions noted in the table below Expected volatilities are based on historical volatilities of the

Companys common stock The Company uses historical data to estimate option exercise and post-vesting termination

behavior The expected term of options granted is based on historical data and represents the period of time that options

granted are expected to be outstanding which takes into account that the options are not transferable The risk-free interest

rate for the expected term of the option is based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant

The fair value of options granted was determined using the following weighted-average assumptions as of the grant date

2912

Risk-free interest rate 078% 1.83%

Expected term years

Expected stock price volatility 15.48% 13.65

Dividend Yield 3.57% 3.54%

summary of the activity in the stock option plan for 2012 follows

Weighted Average Weighted Average Aggregate

Exercise Remaining Intrinsic

Price Contractual Term ValueShares

Outstanding at beginning of year 8500 26.00 Years

Granted 8500 27.00 Years

Exercised 1200 26.00 1200

Forfeited or expired 500 26.00

Outstanding at end of year 15300 26.56 Years 6800

Fully vested and expected to vest 15300 26.56 Years 6800

Exercisable at end of year 6800 26.00 Years 6800

Information related to the stock option plan during the year follows

2932 29U

Intrinsic value of options exercised 1200

Cash received from options exercised 31200

Tax benefit realized from options exercised 500

Weighted average fair value of option5 granted 1.79 1.82

As of December 31 2012 there was $10000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock options

granted under the Plan The cost is expected to be recogniecJ over weighted average period of years
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12 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Executive officers and directors and their associates were customers of and had other transactions with the Company in

the ordinary course of business summary of the changes in outstanding loans to executive officers and directors or

indirectly made for their benefit for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 is as follows in thousands

2012 2011

Balance of loans outstanding at beginning of year 337 408

New loans and increases in existing loans 209 10

Loan principal payments 187 81

Balanceatendofyear 359 337

Deposits for executive officers directors and their affiliates were $2519000 and $2974000 at December 31 2012 and

2011 respectively

Legal fees incurred in the ordinary course of business that were paid to Shults Shults were $55000 and $56000 for

the years ended December 312012 and 2011 respectively Shults Shult5 is partnership owned by David Shults and

Eric Shults both oIwhom are directors and shareholders of the Company

13 REGULATORY CAPiTAL REQUIREMENTS

The Bank Is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies Failure to

meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory--and possibly additional discretionary actions by

regulators that if undertaken could have direct material effect on the Companys financial statements Under capital

adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action the Bank must meet spedflc capital

guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Banks assets liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as

calculated under regulatory accounting practices The Banks capital amounts and classification are also subject to

qualitative judgments by the regulators about components risk weightings and other factors
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13 REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS continued

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts

and ratios set forth in the table below of total and Tier capital as defined in the regulations to risk-weighted assets as

defined and Tier capital as defined to average assets as defined Management believes as of December 31 2012 that the

Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which It is subject

The most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the New York State Department of Financial

Services categorized the Bank aswell capitatizedunder the regulatory frameworkfor promptcorrectiveaction To be categorized

as well capitalized the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based Tier risk-based and Tier leverage ratios as set forth in

the table There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the Banks

category

The Banks regulatory capital amounts and ratios are presented in the following table in thousands

Minimum To Be Well

Actual Regulatory Capitalized Under

Regulatory Capital Regulatory Capital

Capital Requirement Requirement

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31 2012

Total Capital 42488 17.09 36 19887 8.00 96 24859 10.00 36

to Risk Weighted Assets

Tier Capital 39613 15.94 9944 4.00 14915 6.00

to Risk Weighted Assets

Tier Capital 39613 9.77 16224 4.00 20280 5.00

to Average Assets

As of December 31 2011

Total Capital 41514 17.92 96 18531 8.00 23164 10.00

to Risk Weighted Assets

Tier Capital 38699 16.71 9266 4.00 13898 6.00

to Risk Weighted Assets

Tier Capital 38699 10.15 15255 4.00 19068 5.00

to Average Assets

The Companys ratios are comparable to the Banks stated above The Companys actual Tier capital ratio to Average Assets at

December31 2012 was 9.88% compared to 10.18% for December31 2011

14 SHAREHOLDERSEQUlTV

The Company is dependent on receipt of dividends from the Bank in order to pay dividends to its shareholders Payment of

dividends by the Bank is limited or restricted in certain circumstances According to state banking law approval of the New York

State Department of Financial Services is required for the declaration of dividends by bank iii any year in which the dividends

declared will exceed its net profits for that year combined with its retained net profits of the preceding two years Dividends in

the amount of $5167000 are available from the Bank at December 31 2012 without the approval of the New York State

Department of Financial Services
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SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

On July 16 2007 Steuben Statutory Trust II trust formed by the Company completed pooled private offering of

$2000000 of trust preferred securities The Company issued $2062000 of subordinated debentures to the trust in

exchange for ownership of all common security of the trust and the proceeds of the preferred securities sold by the trust

The trust is not consolidated with the Companys financial statements but rather the subordinated debentures are shown

as liability The Companys investment in the common stock of the trust was $62000 and included in other assets The

Company may redeem the subordinated debentures in whole or in part ri principal amount with integral multiples of

$1 on or after September 15 2012 at 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest The subordinated

debentures are also redeemable in whole or in part from time to time upon occurrence of specific events defined within

the trust indentureThe Company has the option to defer interest payments on the subordinated debentures from time to

time for period not to exceed five consecutive years

The subordinated debentures may be included inhier capital with certain limitations applicable under current regulatory
guidelines and interpretations The subordinated debentures have variable rate of interest equal to the three month
London Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR plus 1.55% This rate resets on quarterly basis and was 1.858% at December31
2012

16 ADVANCES FROM FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York at December 31 2012 and 2011 were as follows

in thousands

2012 2011

Maturities January 2013 through June 2016 fixed rate 41500 29250
at rates from 0.42% to 4.62% averaging 1.06% for

December 31 2012 and 1.73% for December 31 2011

Each advance is payable at its maturity date with prepayment penalty for fixed rate advances The advances were
collateralized by $37277000 and $33193000 of first mortgage loans under blanket lien arrangement at December 31
2012 and 2011 respectively Maturities on these advances as of December 31 2012 are as follows in thousands

Year Amount

2013 29000
2014 7000
2015 3500
2016

2000

Total 41500
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17 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business there are various outstanding commitments and contingent liabilities such as guarantees

and commitments to extend credit which are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements Off-balance sheet risk

to credit loss exists up to the face amount of these instruments although the Company does not anticipate material losses as

result of these transactions Mortgage and other loan commitments outstanding at December31 2012 and 2011 amounted

to $46141000 and $36394000 respectively Fixed interest rates on mortgage and other loan corn mitments outstanding can

change prior to closing only if interest rates decrease Variable rate loans float prior to closing Outstanding commitments on

letters of credit at December 31 2012 and 201 laniounted to $2595000 and $3342000 respectively

In the normal conduct of business the Company Is involved In various litigation matters One of these matters involves

related party of the Company as co-defendant with the bank with respect to trust administration matter In the opinion of

management the ultimate disposition of these matters should not have materially adverse effect nor is material to the

financial position of the Company The Company has accrued $55000 related to this matter at December 31 2012
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

As of June 30 2013 and December31 201 2-Unaudited

In thousands except share amounts

June3O2013 December3l2012

ASSETS

Cashandduefrombanks 13509 15008

Securities available-for-sale 145546 34743

Securities held-to-maturity fair value $7743 in 2013 and $6424 in 2012 7596 6267

Loans net of allowance of $2875 in 2013 and 2012 233820 240476

Premises and equipment net 7357 7497

Accrued interest receivable 1549 1446

Intangible assets net 99 102

Bank owned life insurance 8664 8534

Other assets 5778 5416

TOTAL ASSETS 423918 419489

LIABILITIES

Deposits

Non-interest bearing 83994 79997

Interest bearing 268071 250037

Total deposits 352065 330034

Subordinated debentures 2062 2062

Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank 25000 41500

Accrued interest payable 91 97

Otherliabilities 5155 5073

Total liabilities 384373 378766

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Common stock $1 par value 5000000 shares authorized

1728385 shares issued in 2013

1728385 shares issued in 2012 1728 1728

Additional paid-in capital 4494 4469

Non-controlling interest 314 314

Undivided profits 35703 33464

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss 526 2559

Treasury stock at cost 88793 shares in 2013 76300 shares in 2012 2168 1811

Total Shareholders EquIty 39545 40723

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 423918 419489

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income

Six Months ending June 30 2013 and 201 2-Unaudited

In thousands except share amounts

2013 2012

INTEREST INCOME

Loans 5911 5856

Taxable securities 1130 1216

Tax Exempt securities 816 769

Total interest income 7857 7841

INTEREST EXPENSE

Savings and time deposits 321 485

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 183 218

Subordinated debentures 19 68

Total interest expense 523 771

Net interest income 7334 7070

Provision for loan losses 34 26

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 7300 7044

OTHER INCOME

Service charges 1336 1245

Trust income 420 403

Gain on sale of investments and other assets 178 147

Other 368 376

Total other income 2302 2171

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and employee benefits 3825 3992

Occupancy 422 392

Depreciation and amortization 259 221

Marketing and public relations 72 84

Office supplies printing postage and courier 199 235

Professionalfees 118 85

Furniture and equipment maintenance 255 283

Other operating 1275 1081

Total operating expenses 6425 6373

Income before income taxes 3177 2842
INCOME TAXES 910 779

NET INCOME 2267 2063

Less Net income attributable to non-controlling interest 28 28

NET INCOME AVAILABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS 2239 2035

BasicEarningsPerShare 1.36 1.24

Diluted Earnings Per Share 1.36 1.24

see accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Six Months ended June 30 2013 and 201 2-Unaudited

In thousands except share amounts

2013 2012

Net Income 2267 2063

Other comprehensive income

Unrealized gains/losses on securities

Unrealized holding gain/loss arising during the period 5032 26

Reclassification adjustment for gains/Iosses included in net income 88
Tax effect 1947 24

Total other comprehensive income loss net of tax 3085 38

Comprehensive income loss 818 2025
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity

Six Months Ended June 30 2013 and 2012-Unaudited

In thousands except share data and per share amounts

Additional Non-

Common Paid-in Controlling Undivided

Stock Capital Interest Profits

1707 3865 314 32358

28 2035

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive

Income Loss

2161

38

Treasury

Stock

1318BALANCE DECEMBER 312011

Net income

Other comprehensive income 1055

Cash dividends paid

$0.490 per Common share

Stock based compensation plan expense

Treasury shares purchased

23972 Common shares

Stock sold

5894 Common shares

BALANCE JUNE 302012

Total

39087

2063

28 806

38

834

622 622

147 152

1712 4017 314 33587 2123 1940 39813

BALANCEDECEMBER312012 1728 4469 314 33464 2559 1811 40723

Net income 28 2239 2267

Other comprehensive income loss 3085 3085

Cash dividends paid

None per Common share 28 28

Stock based compensation plan expense

Stock options exercised including tax benefit

1400 Common shares 11 26 37

Treasury shares purchased

15003 Common shares 405 405

Stock sold

1lloCommonshares 22 31

BALPINCEJUNE3O2013 1728 4494 314 35703 526 2168 39545



Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Six Months Ending June 30 2013 and 2012-Unaudited

In thousands

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Provision for loan losses

Subsequent write down of other real estate

Gain on sale of securities

Amortization/accretion on securities available for sale

Gain on sale of loans held for sale

Lo5s on sale of other real estate

Stock based compensation plan expense

Net principal disbursed on loans held for sale

Proceeds from sale of loans held for sale

Change in

Accrued interest receivable

Other assets

Accrued interest payable

Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale 31 12

Proceeds from maturities and redemptions of securities available for sale 3274 1547

Principal payments on securities available for sale 7948 6989

Purchases of securities available for sale 27546 20741

Purchases of securities held to maturity 3616 2525

Proceeds from maturities and redemptions of securities held to maturity 2287 1220

Net increase/decrease in loans 6432 3403

Proceeds from sale of other real estate 51

Capital expenditures 72 1044

Net cash used in investing activities 11242 14845

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net increase in deposits 22031 24263

Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank advances 21000 21250

Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances 4500 5000

Common stock issued dividend reinvestment plan
152

Treasury stock sold 68

Treasury stock purchased 405 622

Dividends paid 28 834

Net cash provided by financing activities 5166 6709

NET CHANGE iN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1499 5725
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 15008 17237

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 13509 11512

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for

Interest

Income taxes

Non-cash investing activities

Transfer from loans to Other Real Estate Owned

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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2013 2012

2267

282

34

29

489

178

2637
2815

103
1495

82

4577

2063

221

26

15

88
432

59

11 13

1172

17

390

13
657

2411

2013 2012

529

652

190

754

1255
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

Steuben Trust Corporation the Company provides full range of commercial banking services to individual and

small business customers through t5 wholly-owned subsidiary Steuben Trust Company the Bank The Banks

operations are conducted in fourteen branches located in Steuben Allegany Livingston Wyoming and Monroe

Counties in New York The Company and the Bank are subject to the regulations of certain federal agencies and

undergo periodic examinations by those regulatory authorities

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2012 was derived from the audited

consolidated financial statements as of and for the year then ended of the Company The consolidated financial

statements at June 30 2013 and for the six months ended June 30 2013 and 2012 are unaudited

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America GAAP for interim financial information Accordingly they do not include all of the

information and notes required by GAAP for complete financial statements In the opinion of management all

adjustments consisting of only normal recurring items necessary for fair presentation of the financial position

and results of operations and cash flows at and for the periods presented have been included Amounts in the

prior years consolidated financial statements have been reclassified whenever necessary to conform to the

current periods presentation These reclassifications if any had no effect on net income or stockholders equity

as previously reported All material inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the

consolidation The results of operations for the six months ended June 30 2013 are not necessarily indicative of

results that may be expected for the entire fiscal year ending December 31 2013 These consolidated financial

statements consider events that occurred through the date the consolidated financial statements were issued

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of

consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting

period Actual results could differ from those estimates Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to

significant change in the near future relate to the determination of the allowance and provision for loan losses

other-than-temporary impairment of investment securities actuarial assumptions associated with the

Companys benefit plans and deferred tax assets and liabilities
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note Investments

The amortized cost and fair value of investments securities with gross unrealized gains and losses are as

follows at June 30 2013 and December 31 2012 in thousands

Amortized Unrealized

Cost Gains

Unrealized

Losses

Fair

ValueJune 30 2013

Available-for-sale

United States Agency securities 38326 1903 452 39777

State and municipal securities 47340 1522 666 48196

U.S Agency Mortgage-backed securities-residential 56240 1099 811 56528

U.S Corporate Bonds 1022 23 1045

Total securities available-for-sale 142928 4547 1929 145546

Held-to-maturity

State and municipal securities 7596 147 7743

Total securities held-to-maturity 7596 147 7743

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

December3l2012 Cost Gains Losses Value

Available-for-sale

United States Agency securities 29938 3305 33243

State and municipal 5ecurities 46779 2558 50 49287

U.S Agency Mortgage-backed securities-residential 49352 1839 40 51151

U.S Corporate 8onds 1024 38 1062

Total securities available-for-sale 127093 7740 90 134743

Held-to-maturity

State and municipal securities 6267 157 6424

Total securities held-to-maturity 6267 157 6424

Sales of available-for-sale securities for the six months ended June 30 2013 and 2012 were as follows in thousands

2013 2012

Proceeds

Gross gains

Gross losses

The tax provision related to these net realized gains was $34000 for the six months ended June 30 2012
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note 2- Investments Continued

The following table sets forth the Companys investment in securities with unrealized losses of less than twelve months

and unrealized losses of twelve months or more at June 30 2013 and December 31 2012 in thousands

June 30 2013 December 312012

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

1055 For Less Than 12 Months Value Losses Value Losses

Available-for-sale

United States Agency securities 9012 452

State and municipal securities 9906 557 5081 50

U.S Agency Mortgage-backed securities-residential 24896 790 7134 40

U.S Corporate Bonds ._

Total available-for-sale 43814 1799 12215 90

Held-to-maturity

State and municipal securities

Total held-to-maturity

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Loss For 12 Months Or More Value Losses Value Losses

Available-for-sale

United States Agency securities

State and municipal securities 3606 109

U.S Agency Mortgage-backed securities-residential 1795 21

U.S Corporate Bonds

Total available-for-sale 5401 130

Held-to-maturity

State and municipal securities

Total held-to-maturity

On quarterly basis the Company preforms an assessment to determine whether there have been any

events or economic circumstances indicating that security with and unrealized loss has suffered other-

than-temporary impairment Consideration is given to 1the length of time and the extent to which the

fair value has been less then the amortized cost basis the financial condition of the issuer and guarantor

if any and adverse conditions specifically related to the security industry or geographic area failure of

the issuer of the security to make scheduled interest or principal payments any changes to the rating of

security by rating agency the presence of credit enhancements if any including the guarantee of the

federal government or any of its agencies whether the Company intends to sell or more likely than not

be required to sell the debt security and if the present value of the expected cash flow is not sufficient to

recover the entire amortized cost

Substantially all of the unrealized losses on the Companys securities were caused by market interest rate

changes from those in effect when the securities were purchased by the Company The contractual terms

of theses securities do not permit the issuer to settle the securities at price less then par value Except for

certain state and local government obligations all securities rated by an independent rating agency carry an

investment grade rating
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note Investments Continued

Financial information related to unrated state and government obligations is reviewed for indications of adverse

conditions that may indicate other-than-temporary impairment Because the Company does not intend to

sell the securities with unrealized losses and it believes it is not likely to be required to sell the securities before

recovery of their amortized cost basis which may be and is likely to be maturity the Company does not consider

these securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired at June 30 201 In addition there were no other-than-

temporarily impaired charges in 2012

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities at June 30 2013 by contractual maturity are shown below

Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or

prepay obligations without call or prepayment penalties in thousands

Fair

Value

Investment securities with carrying amou nts of $142359000 and $123786000 at June 30 2013 and December

31 2012 respectively were pledged to secure deposits as required or permitted by law
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Amortized

Cost

Available-for-sale

Due in one year or less 3955 4016

Due after one year through five years 26478 27893

Due after five years through ten years 56621 57828

Due after ten years 55874 55809

Total available-for-sale 142928 145546

Held-to-maturity

Due in one year or less 6205 6231

Due after one year through five years 1169 1249

Due after five years through ten years 222 263

Dueaftertenyears

Total held-to-maturity 7596 7743



Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note Loans

Loans consist of the following at June 30 2013 and December 31 2012 net of unearned loan origination fees

and costs of $424000 and $425000 respectively in thousands

June 30 December 31

2013 2012

Residential mortgages and home equity loans 85038 92188

Commercial loans 89888 90854

Commercial real estate loans 46529 45149

Consumer loans 15240 15160

Total 236695 243351

Loans held for saletotaled $585000 and none atiune 30 2013 and December 31 2012 respectively and are

included in total loans on the consolidated balance sheets

Loans are considered past due if the required principal and interest payments have not been received as of the

date such payments are due Generally loans are placed on nonaccrual status if the principal and br interest

payments become 90 days or more past due and/or management deems collectability of the principal and/or

interest to be in question as well as when required by regulatory requirements
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note Loans Continued

The following table presents loans past 90 days and over and still accruing and nonaccural loans by classes

of the loan portfolio at June 30 2013 and December 31 2012 in thousands

June 3O 2013 December31 2012

Loans Past Due Loans Past Due

90 Day5 and Over and 90 Days and Over and

Still Accruing Nonaccrual Total Still Accruing Wonaccrual Total

Commercial 38 38 17 141 158

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other 1264 1264 1264 1264

Consumer

Auto-direct

Auto-indirect

Other 35 35 24 24

Residential 23 155 178 70 509 579

Total 23 1492 1515 87 1946 2033

The following table presents past due loans by classes of the loan portfolio at June 30 2013 and December

31 2012 in thousands
30-59 60-89 Greater than

Days Days 89days Total LoansNot

June 30 2013 Past Due Past Due Past Due Past Due Past Due Total

Commercial 630 14 644 89244 89888

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other 186 1264 1450 45079 46529

Consumer

Other 78 79 7062 7141

Auto-direct 25 32 4648 4680

Auto-indirect 45 54 3365 3419

Residential 480 81 127 688 84350 85038

Total 1426 81 1440 2947 233748 236695

30-59 60-89 Greater than

Days Days 89 days Total Loans Not

December3l2012 PastDue PastDue PastDue PastDue PastDue Total

Commercial 399 88 133 620 90234 90854

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other 183 1264 1447 43702 45149

Consumer

Other 16 25 7165 7190

Auto-direct 10 18 4240 4258

Auto-indirect 133 15 15 163 3549 3712

Residential 758 130 288 1176 91012 92188

Total 1488 244 1717 3449 239902 243351
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note Loans Continued

Activity in the allowance for loan losses for the six months ended June 30 2013 and 2012 follows in thousands

Commercial Residential

and Commercial Real

June 302013 Real Estate Estate Consumer Unallocated Total

Allowance for loan losses

Beginning balance 2126 153 223 373 2875

Provision for loan losses 272 14 56 196 34

Loan charge-offs 28 48 12 88

Recoveries 18 36 54

Total ending allowancebalance 2388 119 191 177 2875

Commercial Residential

and Commercial Real

June 30 2012 Real Estate Estate Consumer Unallocated Total

Allowance for loan losses

Beginning balance 2042 53 270 450 2815

Provision for loan losses 34 133 136 26

Loan charge-offs 50 64 114

Recoveries 11 47 58

Total ending allowancebalance 2037 186 248 314 2785
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note 3- Loans Continued

The allocation of the allowance for loan losses by loan segment is as follows at June 30 20 and December

31 2012 in thousands

Commercial Residential

Real Real

June3O2013 Commercial Estate Estate Consumer Unallocated Total

Allowance forloan losses

Ending allowance balance attributable to loans

Individually
evaluated lot impairment 493 493

Cotlectivelyevaluatedlorimpairment 1586 309 119 191 177 2382

Totalendingallowancebalance L5 802 119 191 117 2875

Loans

Individually evaluated for impairment 1264 1264

Collectivelyevaluatedforimpairment 89888 45265 85038 15240 235431

Totalendingloanbalance 89888 46529 85038 15240 236695

Commercial Residential

Real Real

December31 2012 Commercial Estate Estate Consumer Unallocated Total

Allowance for loan los5es

Ending allowance balance attributable to loans

lndividuallyevaluatedforimpairment 448 448

Collectivelyevaluatedlorimpairment 1274 404 153 223 373 2427

Total ending allowance balance 1274 852 153 223 373 2875

Loans

lndividuallyevaluatedforimpairment 208 1264 1472

Collectively evaluated for impairment 90646 43885 92188 15160 241879

Total ending loan balance 90854 45149 92188 15160 243351
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note Loans Continued

Management is committed to early recognition of loan problems and to maintaining an adequate allowance

At least quarterly management reviews all commercial and commercial real estate loans and leases and

agriculturally related loans with an outstanding principal balance of over $100000 that are internally risk related

special mention or worse giving consideration to payment history debt service payment capacity collateral

support strength of guarantors local market trends industry trends and other factors relevant to the particular

borrowing relationship Through this process management identifies impaired loans For loans considered

impaired estimated exposure amounts are based upon collateral vales or present value of expected future cash

flows discounted at the original effective interest rate of each loan For commercial loans and commercial real

estate loans not specifically reviewed and for homogenous loan portfolios such as residential mortgage loans

and consumer loans estimated exposure amounts are assigned based upon historical net loss experience and

current charge-off trends past due status and managements judgement of the effects of current economic

conditions on portfolio performance In determining and assigning historical loss factors to the various

homogeneous portfolios the Company calculates average new losses over period of time and compares this

average to current levels and trends to ensure that the calculated average loss factor is reasonable

Significant factors that could give rise to changes in these estimates may include but are not limited to changes
in economic conditions in the local area concentration of risk changes in interest rates and declines in local

property values While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans future additions

to the allowance may be necessary In addition various regulatory agencies and an integral part of their

examination process periodically review the Companys allowance for loan losses Such agencies may require

the Companyto recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgements about information available to

them at the time of their examination

The above allocation is neither indicative of the specific amounts or the loan categories in which future charge
offs may occur nor is it an indicator of future loss trends The allocation of the allowance to each category does

not restrict the use of the allowance to absorb losses in any category
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note Loans Continued

The following table summarizes information regarding impaired loans by loan portfolio class for the periods

indicated in thousands

With no related afowance recorded

Commercial

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other

As of June 30 2013

Unpaid Allowance for

Principal Recorded Loan Losses

Balance Investment Allocated

For the six months ended June 30 2013

Average Interest Cash Basis

Recorded Income Interest

Investment Recognized Recognized

205

Residential

With an allowance recorded

Commercial

Commercial Real Estate

1469

For the six months ended June 30 2012

Average Interest Cash Basis

Recorded Income Interest

Investment Recognized Recognized

1264
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Construction

Other 1264 1264 493 1264

Residential

Total 1264 1264 493

As of December31 2012

Unpaid Allowance for

Principal Recorded Loan Losses

Balance Investment Allocated

With no related allowance recorded

Commercial 208 208

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other

Residenilal

With an allowance recorded

Commercial

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other 1264 1264 448

Residential

Total 1472 1472 448

1264



Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note Loans Continued

Credit Quality

The Company utihzes an eight grade internal loan rating system for commercial commercial real estate

agriculture and agriculture real estate loans Loans that are rated through 3are considered pass rated loans

with low to average risk

Loans rated are considered special mention These loans have potential weakness that deserves

managements close attention These weaknesses may if not checked or corrected weaken the asset or

inadequately protect the Companys position at some future date Borrowers may be experiencing adverse

operating trends oar an ill-proportioned balance sheet Adverse economic or market conditions may also

support special mention rating Theses assets pose elevated risks but their weakness does not yet justify

substandard classification

Loans rated a5areconsideredsubstandard Generally loan is considered substandard if it is inadequately

protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligors and/or the collateral pledged

Substandard loans have high probability of payment default or they have other well-defined weaknesses They

require more intensive supervision by Company management Substandard loans are generally characterized

by current or unexpected unprofitable operations inadequate debt service coverage inadequate liquidity or

marginal capitalization

Loans rated are considered doubtful Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those

classified as substandard with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full

on the basis of currently existing facts highly questionable and improbable There were no doubtful loans at

June 302013 or December 31 2012

Loans rated are considered uncollectable loss and of such little value that their continuance as loans is

not warranted This classification does not mean that the loan has absolutely no recovery or salvage value but

rather that it is not practical or desirable to defer writing off this basically worthless loan even though partial

recovery may be affected in the future There were no loss loans at June 30 2013 or December 31 2012

On an annual basis or more often if needed the Company formally reviews the ratings on all commercial and

commercial real estate loans The Company also annually engages an independent third party to review

significant portion of loans within these segments Management uses the results of these reviews as part of its

annual review process
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note 3- Loans Continued

Credit Quality continued

The following table presents the classes of the commercial and agriculture loan portfolios summarized by

the aggregate pass rating and the criticized and classified ratings of special mention and substandard within

the Companys internal risk rating system as of June 30 2013 and December 31 2012 in thousands

Sub

standard

2069

Loans within the residential real estate and consumer segments do not have an internal loan rating system

ln5tead they are monitored for pa5t due status Generally if residential real estate or consumer loan

becomes 90 days past due it is placed into nonaccrual status and the accrual of interest is discontinued

Past due status is based on contractual terms of the toan In all cases loans are placed on nonaccrual if

collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful

Not Special

Mention

4198

Doubtful Total

89888

June3O2013 Rated Pass

Commercial 83621

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other 43518 1747 1264 46529

Consumer 15240 15240

Residential 85038 85038

Totdl 100278 127139 5945 3333 236695

Not Special Sub-

December 31 2012 Rated Pass Mention standard Doubtful Total

Commercial 83150 6706 998 90854

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other 41951 1848 1350 45149

Consumer 15160 15160

Residential 92188 92188

Total 107348 125101 8554 2348 243351
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note 4- Pension Plan

The Company participates in the New York State Bankers Retirement System the System non-contributory

defined benefit pension plan the Pension Plan covering substantially all employees hired prior to March

2009.The plan provides defined benefits based on years of service and final average salary New employees

hired on or after March 2009 are excluded from participation in this plan The plan was frozen and curtailed

to new benefit accruals as of December 31 2012

The components of new periodic benefit cost for the six months ended June 30 2013 and 2012 are as follows

in thousands

2013 2012

Service cost 44 279

Interest on projected benefit obligation 224 258

Expected return on plan assets 296 291
Amortizationofnetloss 112 137

Net periodic pension expense 84 383
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note Earnings Per Share EPS

The following table presents reconciliation of the earnings and shares used in calculating basic and

diluted for each of the six months ended June 30 201 and 2012

The factors used in earnings per
share computation are as follows in thousands except share and

per
share data

2013 2012

Basic

Net income available to common shareholders 2239 2035

Weighted average common shares outstanding 1647075 1642766

Basicearningspercommonshare 136 1.24

Diluted

Net income available to common shareholders 2239 2035

Weighted average common shares outstanding

for basic earnings per common share 1647075 1642766

Add Dilutive effects of stock options 1178 166

Average shares and dilutive potential

common shares 1648253 1642932

Diluted earnings per share 1.36 1.24

Stock options for 9100 and 8500 shares of common stock were not considered in computing diluted earnings per
share for the six months

ended June 30 2013 and 2012 because they were antidilutive
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note Fair Value Measurements and Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an a5set or paid to transfer liability exit price in

the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants on the measurement date There are three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair values

Level Quoted prices unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the ability

to access as of the measurement date

Level Significant other observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or

liabilities quoted prices in markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated

by observable market data

Level Significant unobservable inputs that reflect reporting entitys own assumptions about the assumptions

that market participants would use in
pricing an asset or liability

The Company used the following methods and significant assumptions to estimate fair value

Investment Securities

The fair values for investment securities are determined by quoted market prices if available Level For

securities where quoted prices are not available fair values are calculated based on market prices of similar

securlties Level

Impaired Loans

The fair value of impaired loans with specific allocations of the allowance for loan losses is generally based on

recent real estate appraisal These appraisals may utilize single valuation approach or combination of

approaches including comparable sales and the income approach Adjustments are routinely made in the

appraisal process by the appraisers to adjust for differences between the comparable sales and income data

available Such adjustments are typically significant and result in Level classification of the inputs for

determining fair value Non-real estate collateral may be valued using an appraisal net book value per the

borrowers financial statements or aging reports adjusted or discounted based on managements historical

knowledge changes in market conditions from the time of the valuation and managements expertise and

knowledge of the client and clients business resulting in Level fair value classification Impaired loans are

evaluated on quarterly basis for additional impairment and adjusted accordingly

Other Real Estate Owned

Assets acquired through or instead of loan foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value less costs to sell when

acquired establishing new cost basis These assets are subsequently accounted for at lower of cost or fair value

less estimated costs to sell Fair value is commonly based on recent real estate appraisals These appraisals may
utilize single valuation approach or combination of approaches including comparable sales and the income

approach Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process by the independent appraisers to adjust for

differences between the comparable sales and income data available Such adjustments are usually significant and

typically result in Level classification of the inputs for determining fair value Real estate owned properties are

evaluated on quarterly basis for additional impairment and adjusted accordingly Appraisals for collateral-

dependent impaired loans and real estate owned are performed by certified general appraisers whose

qualifications and licen5es have been reviewed and verified by the Company Once received it is reviewed by one

of the Companys appraisal reviewers The assumptions and approaches utilized in the appraisal as well as the

overall resulting fair value in comparison with independent data sources such as recent market data or industry

wide statistics are reviewed On an annual basi5 the Company compares the actual selling price of collateral that

has been sold to the most recent appraised value to determine what additional adjustment should be made to the

appraisal value to arrive at fair value
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note 6- Fair Value Measurements and Fair Values of Financial lnstrument5 Continued

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on Recurring Basis

For financial assets measured at fair value on recurring basis the fair value measurements by level within the

fair value hierarchy used at June 30 2013 and December 31 2012 are as follows in thousands

Fair Value Measurements at

June 302013 Using

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable

Carrying Assets Inputs Inputs

Financial Assets Value Level Level Level

Securities-available-for-sale

United States Agency securities 39777 39777

State and municipal securities 48196 48196

U.S Agency mortgage-backed securities-residential 56528 56528

U.S Corporate Bonds 1045 1045

Total investment securities available-for-sale 145546 145546

Fair Value Measurements at

December 31 2012 Using

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable

Carrying Assets Inputs Inputs

Financial Assets Level Level Level

Securities-available-for-sale

United States Agency securities 33243 33243

State and municipal securities 49287 49287

U.S Agency mortgage-backed securities-residential 51151 51151

U.S.Corporatebonds 1062 1062

Total investment securities available-for-sale 134743 134743

There were no transfers between Level and Level during the six month5 ended June 30 2013 or year ended

December 312012
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note Fair Value Measurements and Fair Values of Financial Instruments Continued

Assets Measured at Fair Value on Nonrecurring Basis

For financial assets measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis the fair value measurements by level within

the fair value hierarchy used at June 30 2013 and December 311 2012 are as follows in thousands

Impaired loans

Commercial Real Estate

Other real estate owned net

Commercial

816

533

The following table presents quantitative information about Level fair value measurements for financial assets

measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis at June 30 2013

Impaired Loans

Commercial real estate

Valuation

Fair Value Techniques

771 Income approach

Range

Weighted

Average

9.0%

Real estate owned

Commercial 475 Market approach Market approach represents

recent sales contract for

subject property

0.0%

F-59
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Fair Value Measurements at

June 30 20132012 Using

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable

Carrying Assets Inputs Inputs

Value Level Level Level

Impaired loans

Commercial Real Estate 771 771

Other real estate owned net

Commercial 475 475

Fair Value Measurements at

December 31 2012 Using

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable

Carrying Assets Inputs Inputs

Value Levell Level LeveI3

816

533

Unobservable Inputs

Capitalization rate



Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note 6- Fair Value Measurements and Fair Values of Financial Instruments Continued

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Companys financial instruments at June 30 2013 and

December 31 2012 are presented in the following table This table includes those financial assets and liabilities

that are not measured and reported at fair value on recurring basis or nonrecurring basis in thousands

Fair Value Measurements at

Carrying June 302013 Using

Amount Level Level Level Total

Financial assets

Cashandduefrombanks 13509 13509 13509

Securities available-for-sale 145546 145546 145546

Securities held-to-maturity 7596 7743 7743

Net loans 233820 235328 235328

Accrued interest receivable 1549 961 588 1549

Financial liabilities

Demand and savings deposits 234081 234081 234081

Time deposits 117984 118139 118139

Advances from FHLB 25000 25269 25269

Subordinated dehentures 2062 1654 1654

Accrued interest payable 91 91 91

Fair Value Measurements at

Carrying December 31 2012 Using

Amount Level Level Level Total

Financial assets

Cashandduefrombanks 15008 15008 15008

Securities available-for-sale 134743 134743 134743

Securities held-to-maturity 6267 6424 6424

Net loans 240476 244298 244298

Accrued interest receivable 1446 916 530 1446

Financial liabilities

Demand and savings deposits 232533 232533 232533

Time deposits 97501 97689 97689

AdvanceslromFHLB 41500 41781 41781

Subordinated debentures 2062 1628 1628

Accrued interest payable 97 97 97

Amounts in the preceding table are included in the con5olidated balance sheets under the applicable captions

The fair values of off-balance sheet financial instruments are not significant
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Steuben Trust Corporation and Subsidiaries

Note 6- Fair Value Measurements and Fair Values of Financial Instruments Continued

Loans The fair value is estimated using an internally generated cash flow consisting of beginning known or

estimated maturities known or estimated principal payments and assumed prepayments Each months cash

flow 15 then discounted to the current market or discount rate The discount rate for fair value purposes is the

current offering rate for the same loan category The sum of the values for each period is aggregated to produce

value for the position as whole

lime Deposits The fair value is estimated using internally generated cash flows consisting of beginning known or

estimated maturities known or estimated principal payments and usually small assumed early withdrawal Each

months cash flow is then discounted to that months current market or discount rate modified by constant spread

The current market rate varies by month and is based on the LIBOR/swap curve The sum of the values for each period

is aggregated to produce value for the position as whole

Borrowings The fair values of the Companys Federal Home Loan Bank advances are estimated using discounted

cash flow analyses based on the current borrowings for similar types of borrowing arrangements resulting in Level

classification The fair values of the Companys subordinated debentures are estimated using discounted cash flow

analyses based on the current borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements resulting in Level

classification

Accrued Interest Receivable/Payable The
carrying amount of accrued interest approximate fair value resulting in

Level or Level classification is consistent with the classification of the asset or liability they are associated with

Off-balance Sheet Instruments Fair values for off-balance sheet credit -related financial instruments are based on

fees currently charged to enter into similaragreements taking into account the remaining term of the agreements

and the counter parties credit standing The fair value of commitments is not material

Note Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned as of June 30 2013 and 2012 was as follows in thousands

2013 2012

Other real estate owned 1569 1368

valuation allowance 237 191

Netotherrealestateowned 1332 1177

Activity in the valuation allowance for the six months ended June 30 2013 and 2012 was as lollows in thousands

2013 2012

Beginning of Period 237 176

Additions charged to expense 29 15

Direct write-downs 29

End of Period 237 191

Expenses related to foreclosed assets for the six months ended June 30 2013 and 2012 include in thousands

2013 2012

Net losslgain on sales

Provision for unrealized losses 29 15

Operating expenses net of rental income 57

End of Period 89 17

F-.6
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STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION
SHARE OWNER DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

The purpose of the STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION the Corporation SHARE OWNER DIVIDEND

REINVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN the Plan is to provide the holders of record of the

Corporations Common Stock the Common Stock with simple and convenient method of investing cash dividends paid

on the Corporations Common Stock in the purchase of as well as enabling them to make additional cash payments to

purchase additional shares of Common Stock The terms and conditions of the Plan are as follows

ELIGIBILITY TO PARTICIPATE IN PLAN All holders of record of Common Stock are eligible to

participate in the Plan Beneficial owners of Common Stock whose shares are held for them in registered names other than

their own such as in the names of brokers bank nominees or trustees should if they wish to participate in the Plan either

arrange
for the holder of record tojoin the Plan or have the shares they wish to enroll for participation in the Plan transferred

to their own names

ELECTION TO PARTICIPATE IN PLAN Any holder of record of Common Stock may elect to

participate in the Plan Participant by returning to American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC the

Corporations Transfer Agent and the Administrator of the Plan the Agent properly completed Authorization Form as

attached hereto The completed Authorization Form appoints the Agent as the Participants agent in the capacity of Plan

Administrator for the Participant and authorizes

the Corporation to pay to the Agent for credit to the Participants account under the Plan Plan

Account all cash dividends payable on the Common Stock Dividends that the Participant has enrolled in the

Plan

the Agent as agent to credit to the Participants Plan Account any Dividends paid as well as any

shares of Common Stock distributed as non-cash dividend or otherwise on the shares of Common Stock credited

to the Participants Plan Account

the Agent as agent to apply all such Dividends received to the purchase of additional shares of

Common Stock and

the Agent as agent to apply all voluntary Additional Cash Payments made by the Participant under the

Plan as further described below to the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock

all in accordance with the further terms and conditions of the Plan

Participants may elect to reinvest Dividends paid on all or only portion of the Common Stock registered in their

names and/or held in their Plan Accounts by designating such election on the Authorization Form The Internal Revenue

Service IRS currently requires Participants to reinvest Dividends on minimum often percent 10% of the Common

Stock registered in their names andlor held in their Plan Accounts Participants electing partial reinvestment of Dividends

must designate the number of whole shares for which they want to receive cash payment of Dividends which must equal

ninety percent 90% or less of the number of whole shares registered in their names and/or held in their Plan Accounts

Dividends paid on all other shares registered in the Participants name and all other shares held in the Participants Plan

Account will be reinvested in additional shares of Common Stock

Participants may at any time deposit any Common Stock certificates in their possession with the Agent to be credited

to the Participants Plan Account Such shares will be transferred into the name of the Agent or its nominee as agent for the

Participant under the Plan and thereafter treated in the same manner as shares purchased through the Plan

Reinvestment levels may be changed from time to time as Participant desires by submitting new Authorization

Form to the Agent To be effective with respect to particular Dividend any such change must be received by the Agent at

least five business days before the record date for that Dividend

PLAN ACCOUNT After receipt of properly completed Authorization Form the Agent will open Plan

Account for the Participant as Plan Administrator and agent for the Participant and will credit to such Plan Account

-1-
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all Dividends received by the Agent from the Corporation on shares of Common Stock registered in the

Participants name and enrolled in the Plan by the Participant commencing with the first Dividend paid following

receipt of the Authorization Form by the Agent which must be received at least five business days prior to the

record date of Dividend to be effective with respect to that Dividend

all Dividends received by the Agent on any full or fractional shares credited to the Participants Plan

Account

all Additional Cash Payments as further described below received by the Agent from the Participant to

purchase additional shares of Common Stock

all full or fractional shares purchased for the Participants Plan Account after making appropriate

deductions for the purchase prices paid for such shares and

any shares of Common Stock distributed by the Corporation as dividend or otherwise on shares

credited to the Participants Plan Account

ADDITIONAL CASH PAYMENTS Any Participant may from time to time elect to purchase additional

shares of Common Stock through the Plan by using Plan Authorization Form to make voluntary additional cash payments

to the Agent of not less than $100.00 nor more than $5000.00 per quarter Additional Cash Payments which will be used

to purchase additional shares on quarterly basis as further described below For purposes of the Plan new quarter
will

begin on the day following dividend payment date All shares purchased with Additional Cash Payments will be credited

to the Participants Plan Account unless the Agent is instructed otherwise by the Participant on the Authorization Form

PURCHASES OF SHARES Dividends credited to Participants Plan Account will be invested in the

purchase of additional shares of Common Stock on or about the payment date for that Dividend Additional Cash Payments

made by Participant will be invested in the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock on or about the payment date

for the next succeeding Dividend following receipt of such payment Since no interest will be paid on Additional Cash

Payments held by the Agent pending the investment of such funds it is suggested that any such payments Participant may

wish to make be sent so as to reach the Agent no later than five business days prior to the record date for the next succeeding

Dividend Any Additional Cash Payments received during quarter will be returned by mail to the Participant at the

address shown on the Agents records if written notification requesting such return is received by the Agent on or before the

last business day prior to the next Dividend record date

All shares purchased hereunder may be purchased on any securities exchange where the Common Stock is traded in

the over-the-counter market in privately negotiated transactions or from Participants who have directed the Agent to sell

their Common Stock and may be on such terms as to price delivery and otherwise and may be executed through such

brokers and otherwise as the Agent shall determine in its sole discretion Additionally whenever and to the extent so

directed by the Corporation from time to time in its sole discretion the Agent shall purchase such shares directly from the

Corporation in accordance with the further terms of this Plan In making purchases hereunder the Agent may commingle

the funds of each Participant with those of the other Participants

For purchases made directly from the Corporation the price of the Common Stock so purchased will be the fair market value

per share of the Corporations Common Stock at the time of such purchase as determined by committee appointed by the

Corporations Board of Directors the Committee This Committee will determine what it in its bestjudgment believes

to be the fair market value of share of the Corporations Common Stock from time to time The Committee may determine

such fair market value from any reasonable criteria it elects to use such as recent sales of shares of Common Stock in the

marketplace the fair market value and recent sales of shares of comparable institutions an independent firm that values the

Common Stock other measures such as return on equity return on assets and book value and any other reasonable criteria

the Committee determines For purchases made in the open market or otherwise than directly from the Corporation the

price at which the Agent shall be deemed to have acquired Common Stock for the Participants Plan Account shall be the

average price of the Common Stock purchased by the Agent with the proceeds of Dividend or with the Additional Cash

Payments being applied to such purchase as the case may be Upon each purchase of shares hereunder the Plan Account of

each Participant will be reduced by the balance to be invested from that Plan Account and credited with number of shares

including fractional shares equal to the balance to be invested from that Plan Account divided by the purchase price

applicable to such transaction determined as described above
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ACCOUNT STATEMENTS As soon as practicable following the end of each quarter in which there is

transaction in Participants Plan Account the Participant will receive detailed statement the Statement showing as

applicable

any Dividend paid on the Participants Common Stock participating in the Plan

any Additional Cash Payments received from the Participant during that quarter

the purchase prices and numbers of shares purchased during that quarter for the Participants Plan Account with

the funds held in such Account

the number of shares withdrawn from the Participants Plan Account and

as of the date of the Statement the total number of shares of Common Stock owned by the Participant that are

participating in the Plan

The last Statement of the year will show the aggregate amount of brokerage fees if any paid by the Corporation in respect of

shares purchased for the Participants Plan Account

ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATES Shares purchased under the Plan will be registered in the name of the

Agent or its nominee as agent for the Participant under the Plan No certificates will be issued to Participant for the

Common Stock in the Participants Plan Account unless requested in writing or the Plan Account is terminated as hereinafter

provided Certificates for any number of whole shares of Common Stock credited to Participants Plan Account will be

issued to Participant upon written request sent to the Agent at the address indicated below Participant may either

furnish separate written instructions to the Agent each time the Participant desires that certificates be issued or furnish the

Agent with blanket instructions covering all whole shares of Common Stock credited to the Participants Plan Account from

time to time under the Plan No certificates for fractional shares will be issued notwithstanding any request therefor but

dividends on fractional interest in shares will be credited to Participants Plan Account

FEES The Corporation has agreed to pay all brokerage commissions and Agent service charges in

connection with the administration and operation of the Plan The Agent may charge Participant for additional services

performed by the Agent at the request of the Participant and not provided for herein

TAXES It is understood that the automatic investment of dividends under this Plan does not relieve the

Participant of any income taxes which may be payable on such dividends The Agent will comply with all applicable IRS

requirements concerning the withholding of taxes on dividend payments and filing of information returns for dividends

credited to each Participants Plan Account Any amounts required to be withheld will be deducted from each Dividend

prior to investment Each Participant will be provided annually with the information provided by the Agent to the IRS that

year either through receipt of duplicate of the informational return filed by the Agent with the IRS or in year-end

Statement each calendar year With respect to foreign Participants whose Dividends are subject to United States income tax

withholding the Agent will comply with all applicable IRS requirements concerning the amount of tax to be withheld which

will be deducted from each Dividend prior to investment The Agent will also report to each Participant the Participants

pro-rata share of the Agents administrative fees paid by the Corporation on behalf of all Participants

10 VOTING OF PLAN SHARES With respect to meetings of the Corporations shareholders for which

proxies are solicited Participant will receive single proxy card covering all shares registered in the Participants name as

well as all shares credited to the Participants Plan Account If no shares are registered in Participants name proxy card

will be furnished to the Participant covering all shares credited to the Participants Plan Account In either situation all

whole and fractional shares held in Participants Plan Account will be voted as directed by the Participant If Participant

does not return signed proxy card as instructed such shares will not be voted

11 TERMINATION Participation in the Plan may be terminated at any time by Participant giving written

notice to such effect to the Agent If the termination request is received less than five business days prior to Dividend

record date the request will not be processed until after that Dividend has been invested and the shares purchased credited to

the Participants Plan Account As promptly as possible following receipt of such notice certificate will be issued for all

whole shares of Common Stock held in the Participants Plan Account The Corporation and the Agent reserve the right to

terminate the Participants Plan Account immediately upon sending written notice to the Participant at the Participants last

known address as shown on the Agents Plan records In every case of termination the Participants interest in any fractional
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shares of Common Stock will be paid in cash based on the fair market value of the Corporations Common Stock on the date

the Agent receives such termination notice In
every case of termination uninvested voluntary cash payments credited to the

Participants Plan Account will be returned to the Participant in cash without interest The Agent shall terminate the

Participants Plan Account upon receipt of written notice of the Participants death or adjudication of incompetency

provided however in the event of any such notice the Agent shall retain all payments received and/or shares of Common
Stock in the Participants Plan Account until the Participants legal representative shall have been appointed and fumished

proof satisfactory to the Agent of his/her right to receive such payments and/or shares of Common Stock

12 CHANGES IN CAPITALIZATION The Common Stock held by the Agent for Participants shall fully

participate in any stock dividend stock split split-up spin-off recapitalization merger consolidation exchange of shares or

other such transaction involving the Common Stock of the Corporation in accordance with the terms of such transaction In

the event that the Corporation makes available to its shareholders rights to purchase additional shares debentures or other

securities each Participant shall have the right to exercise such rights arising from whole shares credited to the Participants

Plan Account in accordance with the terms and conditions of such rights The Agent may in its sole discretion hold the

Common Stock of all Participants together in its name or in the name of its nominee

13 LIABILITY Neither the Agent nor the Corporation nor any of their respective Directors officers

employees or agents shall be liable hereunder for any act or failure to act including without limitation for any claim of

liability arising out of any failure to terminate Participants Plan Account upon such Participants death or adjudication

of incompetency prior to receipt of written notice of such death or incompetency with respect to the prices at which the

Common Stock is purchased or sold for Participants Plan Account or the timing of or terms on which such purchases or

sales are made or with respect to the value at any time of the Common Stock acquired for or credited to Participants

Plan Account It is understood that govemment regulation may require the temporary curtailment or suspension of purchases

under the Plan Neither the Agent nor the Corporation nor any of their respective Directors officers or employees shall

have any liability in connection with any inability to purchase Common Stock or the timing of any purchases

14 SPENDTHRIFT PROVISION Participant may not sell pledge hypothecate or otherwise assign or

transfer any cash or Common Stock credited to the Participants Plan Account nor any other interest therein No attempt to

effect any such sale pledge hypothecation or other assignment or transfer shall be effective

15 NOTICES All notices requests or other communications from Participants relating to the Plan shall be

addressed as follows

American Stock Transfer Trust Company LLC

Attention Dividend Reinvestment Department

6201 15th Avenue

Brooklyn NY 11219

1-800-937-5449

Each Participant agrees to notify the Agent promptly in writing of any change of address Notices requests or other

communications from the Agent to Participant relating to the Plan shall be addressed to the Participant at the Participants

last known address as reflected in the Agents records and shall be deemed given when received by the Participant or five

days after mailing whichever first occurs

16 AMENDMENT TERMINATION The Corporation and the Agent each reserve the right to suspend to

modify subject to any requisite authorization or approval by regulatory agencies having jurisdiction and to terminate the

Plan or any Participants participation in the Plan at any time by written notice given to all Participants or such Participant

as the case may be The Corporation and the Agent each also reserve the right to adopt and from time to time to change

such administrative rules and regulations not inconsistent in substance with the basic provisions of the Plan then in effect

as they deem desirable or appropriate for the administration of the Plan

17 GOVERNING LAW The Plan and all Plan Accounts established thereunder shall be governed by and

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York and the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange

Commission as they may be changed or amended from time to time

Adopted July 11 2013

Page 109 of 182



ANNEX

SHARE OWNER DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

AUTHORIZATION FORM

Page 110 of 182



STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION
Share Owner Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan

Check only one of the following options

FULL DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT
want to reinvest all cash dividends on shares now or subsequently registered in my name and account as well as cash dividends on all

shares credited to my account under the Plan understand that may also make additional cash investments of not less than $100 per

payment up to maximum amount of $5000 per quarter Complete if applicable also wish to make an additional cash investments at this

time and have therefore enclosed check or money order payable to American Stock Transfer Trust Company in the amount of

PARTIAL DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT
want to reinvest cash dividends on some of the shares currently registered in my name and account and continue to receive cash dividends

on the remaining shares Therefore please reinvest the cash dividends on ____________ shares Must be on minimum often 10%
percent of the common stock registered in participants names or held in plan accounts as currently required by the Internal Revenue

Service understand that may also make additional cash investments of not less than $100 per payment up to maximum amount of

$5000 per quarter Complete if applicable also wish to make an additional cash investment at this time and have therefore enclosed

check or money order payable to American Stock Transfer Trust Company in the amount of$___________________
ADDITIONAL CASH INVESTMENT ONLY

wish to make additional cash investments of not less than $100 per payment up to maximum amount of $5000 per quarter have

enclosed check or money order payable to American Stock Transfer Trust Company in the amount of$___________________

understand that regardless of which option have selected above dividends on all shares held in my Plan account will be reinvested

Please sign on other side of this card
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Share Owner Dividend Reinvestment

and Stock Purchase Plan

For Share Owners of

Steuben Trust Corporation

Return to

American Stock Transfer Trust Company LLC

Attention Dividend Reinvestment Department

6201 15th Avenue

Brooklyn NY 11219

Date ________

This is Not Proxy

Signatures of all registered owners
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PART III

EXHIBITS

Exhibit Index

Exhibit Sequential Page

Number Description Location

2.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Steuben Trust 111-5

Corporation as amended

2.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Steuben 111-41

Trust Corporation

3.1 Authorization Form for Companys See Annex to

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan Offering Circular

3.2 Form of Stock Certificate of Steuben Trust Corporation 111-56

3.3 Indenture for Junior Subordinated Debenture

Dated July 16 2007 for Steuben Statutory Trust II

subsidiary of Steuben Trust Corporation

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commissionupon request

6.1 Change in Control Agreement between Steuben Trust

Company and Brenda Copeland dated March 12 2009 Ill-S

6.2 Steuben Trust Corporation 2010 Long-Term

Stock Incentive Plan effective April 15 2010 111-63

6.3 Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee

Agreement between Steuben Trust Company and

Robert Blades Jr dated March 13 2008

omitted but the issuer
agrees to provide to the

Commissionupon request

6.4 First Amendment to the Steuben Trust Company Split

Dollar Agreement between Steuben Trust Company
And Robert Blades Jr dated December 17 2009

omitted but the issuer
agrees to provide to the

Commission upon request

6.5 Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee

Agreement between Steuben Trust Company and

Brenda Copeland dated March 13 2008

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commissionupon request

6.6 Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Steuben

Trust Company and Edward Coil Jr dated

September 1998

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commission upon request
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6.7 Split Dollar Agreement between Steuben Trust

Company and Edward Coil Jr dated December 21
1998

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commission upon request

6.8 Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Steuben

Trust Company and Charles Edmondson dated

December 30 2008

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commissionupon request

6.9 Split Dollar Agreement between Steuben Trust Company
And Charles Edmondson dated November 16 2009

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commission upon request

6.10 Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee Agreement

Between Steuben Trust Company and Stoner Horey

Dated March 13 2008

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commission upon request

6.11 Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Steuben Trust

Company and Stoner Horey dated September 1998

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commission upon request

Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee Agreement

6.12 Between Steuben Trust Company and Charles

Oliver dated March 13 2008

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commission upon request

6.13 Split Dollar Agreement between Steuben Trust Company
And Charles Oliver dated December 21 1998

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commission upon request

6.14 Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee Agreement

between Steuben Trust Company and Kenneth

Philbrick dated March 13 2008

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commissionupon request

6.15 First Amendment to the Split Dollar Agreement

Between Steuben Trust Company and Kenneth

Philbrick dated February 2010

omitted but the issuer
agrees

to provide to the

Commission upon request

6.16 Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee

Agreement between Steuben Trust Company and

David Shults dated March 13 2008

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the
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Commission upon request

6.17 First Amendment to the Split Dollar Agreement

Between Steuben Trust Company and David

Shults dated December 17 2009

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commission upon request

6.18 Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee

Agreement between Steuben Trust Company and

Eric Shults dated March 13 2008

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commission upon request

6.19 First Amendment to the Split Dollar Agreement and

Split Dollar Policy Endorsement between Steuben Trust Company

And Eric Shults dated April 19 2001

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commission upon request

6.20 Amended and Restated Executive Deferred Compensation

Agreement between Steuben Trust Company and

Brenda Copeland dated March 13 2008

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commission upon request

6.21 Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between

Steuben Trust Company and Hans Kunze dated

March 30 2008

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commission upon request

6.22 Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between

Steuben Trust Company and James McCormick

Dated May 30 2008

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commission upon request

6.23 Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between

Steuben Trust Company and Victor Myers dated

May 30 2008

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commission upon request

6.24 Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between

Steuben Trust Company and Kenneth Philbrick

Dated September 1998

omitted but the issuer
agrees to provide to the

Commission upon request

6.25 First Amendment to the Amended September Dollar

Agreement dated December 14 2001 between Steuben

Trust Company and Kenneth Philbrick dated

February 2010

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commission upon request
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6.26 Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between

Steuben Trust Company and Theresa Sedlock dated

June 12008

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commissionupon request

6.27 Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between

Steuben Trust Company and Natalie Willoughby

Dated May 29 2008 omitted but the issuer agrees to

provide to the Commissionupon request

6.28 Retainer Fee Agreement with the law firm of

Shults and Shults dated April 16 2013

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commission upon request

10.1 Consent of Crowe Horwath LLP 111-68

10.2 Consent of Underberg Kessler LLP Included in Exhibit 11

11.1 Opinion of Underberg Kessler LLP

15.1 Power of Attorney 111-69

Omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the Commissionupon request

To Be Filed By Amendment
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Exhibit 2.1

See Attached
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CER2iFICATE OF fl1COR2ORATION

STE1JBEN TRUST COR1ORATION

Under Secian 402 of theBuaiheasCqrporation
Law of th State of New York

2_

COREORkr ION

C.

The undersiqned f.orthe purp of1orminq corpora
tion pursuant to Section 402 of the Business Corporation Law of

.the Stote of New- Ybrk certtfiesr

-The name of the Corporation is STEUBEN TRUST

-The purpose 0_f the Corporation- La to engage in

ny lawful act or activity for which corporations may _be
organized urder .he New York Buaine Corporat.ton Law provided
however that .the.Corporotion La not formed to engage in any acL

-or aciviy requiring the consent or approval of any State

official department bbard agency or..other body without such

coaeut. or approval firt being obtaihd

_3.. .The offce the Corporation Is to be located in
thc County of Steuen7t.te of. New York

.-

4.The aggre ten.imbeo which the Corpor
tion shall- have thority to as-iiIV HUNDREDOUSAND

5OOOO allof.whch .areto-beo one claseo.cooh shareB
with par value of $1 perihare

The Scetary -of State is designated as agent of
the Couon whoim procesa againat It may be aerved The__________
post.ofice address to which the Scretao tate--shall aila________
copy of any procesaagÆinst- the Corpbrat.ion served upon him is 82
Main Street Horrll New York 14843

No Sharehoder of the CorporatIon shall have-any
pre-emptive or pfererttia1 right_gL.sacrption to aty ehare
of any class the Corporation whether now or hereafter

autho1ed or to-any obligations covertible into shares of.any
claBs oL the Corporation j.sued sold itor any .ghtof
subscription to .anythreóf Other tha.n such rihttfanyfldTht
such price sthe Bord of-Directors may- in it _d-i-creiion .-
deterflire and the Boad Directors may issue ..shareB
Corpot-ion or oligationB covertb1e .nto-
oUering such issue either in who1e or 4v

Shareholdors of the Cporation
t4-

_.c
.- --__
....o -.

.- ..1

.y



F.

The ersonaL liability of the directors of thiB
Corporation bereby elixninated to the fullest xtent pz-mitted
by tje1 Bu8ine8s Crporation Law as the same may be amended from
time to tinie Any repeal or modification of the feregoirtg

peragraph by sharehoidrs of the Corporation shall no
..adversly affect Ænyright orrotection of director of the

.Corporation existing at.the timof sch-tepeaJ or modification

The torporaion shall to the fullest extent

pebitted by A.rtice of the Business Corporation Law as the

same may be mened from. time to time indemnify and hold

harmless each perBolI who was or is made party or is threatened
tO be made pazty t.c5 or is otherwise involved in any action
suit or çroceeding whether civil criminal adsinetrat1ve or

invØtigative by reason of the fact that he or she or his or

her teotetor or intestate is or was director officer or

employee of the Crportion or isoroerving at the request
of the Cororaiortas .director officer employee or agent of
anothe corporatIor or of partnership joint vsnture trust
employee benefLt p-lan or other enterprise whether the basis of

such prôceed.Lng is alleged act in an official capacity as

director officer employee age or in any other capacity
while8erving as director ficer employee or agent aganst
all expense liability and los. including without limitation

attàrneys tees judgments fines excise taxeB or penalties and

amOunts paid in settienient incurred or suffered by such

indemnitee in connection therewithy

.1

The nusrir of dLrectors constituting the

Łntire oard of Directors and any qualificatipns.of__andlor
restriction on any.director hllfixed by or pursuant to

_the By-Laws of the çpotion and any yLaw povi.sion
regulàting such nwber alLfications restrictionsiiay be

altered on1y by the affltive teof at least 7of the

entire Board of D-irectore in .he martrerpovided.in the By-Laws

or by ainendxiient thereofadoptedby the aUirxnative vote of at
leaot 75-% of the entire Eoard.ofDirctôrs.or by the affirmative
voteof 75%àLtheShar entitled.tQ vote for the election of

directors voting t9gether asa singleciasa

Newly ceated directhrship resulting from

any iicrease inthe number of iractors end vacancies occurring
in th Board of Di-rectorŁ..f or ny.reaon 8hall filled only-..by

v.ote--of the .Bôard.o Qizectors Ifthe number oV
in f.Cice 898
and vaances be filled by vote of majority ofthe

.die.ctors tiiern cffico..l Any directôrØlØcted inaccordnce
withthe provieiors of th eThti1 .he
next..rneeting Sharldesat wh.reh the Ølection of di

.-

__________________________________
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II

is tn th rgulaç order.of bisi.rieas and until his succ esor has
been elected andqualified No decrease in te number of
directors constitting entire hoard of- Direcora or change
in the.qualificatibns or rstrict4ona.with respect to directors
5hall shorten the term of an incuznbedIecr

Any.or all -the directors may be removed with
or without cau.e vote th -Shareho.dera provided that any
such rzemova hall require the affirmative vote of the holders of
at leaBt 73- of the outstandg sharee.entitled to vote in the
election of directors vtiflg.together as single class
Directors Æy also .be removed ihout cause by action of the
Board of Directors provided that such action shall require the

affirmative vote of at .eaat 75% of the entire oard of
Directors

10 Except.as prvide in Section 9a above the

Board of Directors is authbriEed to adopt lter amend or repeal
the By-Laws of the- CorporaUp-n subject .to the right of the

Shareholders to adopE a.ter end or repeal By-Laws made by the
Board of tUrectors provided however that no ny-Law shall be

adopted alteredainendedor repealed by the Shareholders except
by .theaffirmative vote .of-tFtehOlders -vat laet 7% ofth
issued nd outstaiding Comrnpn Stock of the Corporation

ii Eccept a- requred by Section 12 of this

Certificate of Inborpoation any merger or consolidation

whether ir sing1e traaactioh -ox series of reated
tnctión of thiB COrpcràt.-on or any Subsidiary.with or into

.anothr qorpbraion.oz of another .Corporatton into thlg
--corp9ration or any Subuiaiaj. uider the terms of which the

Shareholder of this Corperatn ahafl after the completion of

such r1erge or corisolidatiOn-n..irect1y or indirectly -b
reasor of- this Cbrporàtio-ri rsKip.of Subsidiary less than
75% of corpration resilting .theiro any sale

..lease xchange or transaction or
.serJs of related .tarisàctio.ne oal1 orsubstantially afl

the a8stsofths Corpôra noranySubuidiary not made iii
the usualor egular cbrse.ofthe busnssactual1y conducted by
this Corporation or iuthSubsidiery shall- require approval
either by 80% of the entLre Board of Diectors of the Corporation
at -a meeting of the Board and -by-twothirds- of the outatanding

Votin9 Stock of the- Corporión entitled to vote or by 75% of
the outstandinq Voting Stock of theCOporation entitled.to vote

12 thepurpose ofSection 12..and..Section 13

of this CertLficatef Incopration5

jl
any Pe.rsOn who dizectry or indirectl.y through contract

.-

L103/904
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arranemerit- understandin9 -relationship -or otherwiae has or
shaes -votin power which.includeo the power to vote or to
direct the votingfany Voting Seàck- and/or ii investment

power- which includes tle-.power dispose or to direct the

tiisposJtion of sny Voting- Stock4 An Person who directly or

indizectLy creates russ trust proxy power of attorney
pôolingarrangement or a-ny other.contract -arangement or device

..wiurse or effect of divesting such person of beneficial
owner-ship of the securit.y .of preventing the vesting of suCh
beneficial- ownership as part plan or scheme to -avoid being
deerned theneficial qwner ehall -be deemed to be beneficial
owner All securities of the same class beneficially owned by
Peroo regardleü of he forth which such beneficial ownership
takes- shell be aggregated in calcäating the nurnbof shares

beneficially -owned by such Person

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions Person
shl1 be -deemed to be the-bneficial owner of shares of the

Corporation if that Person has the right to acquire beneficial
-ownership SUCh shares within sixty days including but not
lirnited to any rJght tocquire through the exercise of any
optioi right qr warrant through the conversion of

security C-puruant tóthe owŁr td revoke trüt
dIscretiorary account or similar arrangement -or pursuant to

the autorntic termination of trust discretionary accdUnt or
siinLltr -arrangement provided howver that .any Per5on who

acquiree 9ecurity or power speciLted in or with
the purpose or efct fchanging or influencing the control of
the Corporation or ir connection with or as -a participant-in any
trancttot -iav-ing- such purpose- or effect .ijriediate upon such

acquisition- ahall be deened to be the beneficial owner of the
shares- which -may be Æcuirethough the execiBe or corwersion
of 8ucheecurityor aer Any securities potfoutBtanding.whiCh
are sub-jŁct to suc opion. arant-- it- ..or conversion
priiLege shall-be -deeed-to be outstanding fàr-the -purpo of

computing the percentage of outetaiding -are of the class -wned
j-iPerEon but shall -rct-be den to be utetanding for the

purpoe of computing the-

.-- ..- -A mejttb of çationa1- ritJa ozchiThhall --.jiotbe deemed- to be -a beneficIal ô%mor ocuities-he1d
directly or -- indirectyby it -on -behalf of another- Per8on solely
beŒause atkch menber Is rØrd_ho3.der of such securities --and

-- pursuant .o the .rü1e8 of ai-d.-exchange may direct .thovote of

-uch seuri-ties out inutri.ictii..cn-other cDri.teBtod
.mates orInaters- t1at hteor- -r
.priv.tle.ges of the holder of tha- securLtIobavotL

I-..

--
__._
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otherwise proc ded by th_le such exchangefomyoting
them without lnstructions

erson who in the ordinaj course of business is

p.edgee.of aecurities under written pledge agrsment shall

not be deemed to be the benficial owner of such securj.ties until

the pledgee has- taken- a14 formal steps necessary which are

requird to declare dflt-aæd determine that the power to

vote to direct the vote or to dispóe or tb direct the

disposition of such pledged securities will be exe
provided the pledge agreement is bona fide and was not
entered i-nto with the purposa nor with the effect of changing or

influencing the controlof- the orporation.nor in connection
with any transaction- havin9 such purpose or effect and ii the

pledge agreement prior to defalt oes not grant the pledges

ak the pqw1er to vote or direc.t the vte of the pledged
securitles -or The power to dispo direct the

disposition of the securities other than the grant of such

powers pufsant to a.pledgagreeent

-V The te Busine8s Combination ahall_

mean -any merger or consolidation whether In single
transaction or eeJee of relatd_traraactiore J.ncludng -a

-seriesoVspâratØ traisaction with a.1jor Stockholder any
Affiliate or Associto thereo such terms are defined in

Rule 12b-2 of the Securitie Exchange Act .1934- as amended or

any similar suçce-sor Rule or any Person acting in concert

therewith of this Corporatien or any Subsidiary with or into

Major Stkholder or of Major S.tockholder into this Corporation
or $ubsidiary any.sälŒ lense excb.age-trnsfer
distribution .o ot.ockholdea .or other.-sJ.tion including
withput- lirhitation amort.gÆge pled any.other ecurity
device ôrwith a.Major$to1tLt.1der.bythe Corporation or-any

its Si.ibsidiaris in aing1e tranactioh or series
related transactions of all ..substantia-lly all- or any
Sybstantial .Part of-the ssets of this -.Corporation or
Subsidiary irtcluding witiout Iimitaton ani securities of
Subsidiary .iii the ptrchase .echange -lease or other

-- acquiaittàn by the -Coporaticn.or-any of-its Subsidiaries in
single trnaactiär or seiea of zelatºdtraneactionB of all_

.nubtantially .l or anySustantial.-.Part- of the assets or

business-of a..MajorStocthôlder Jv- the issuance -oany
securities.or pfany.rigIits.arrarts er otiohs to acquire any
securities of this Corpoationor.e Subsidiary to Maor
Stockholder or the acquisition by- this ..Corpration
Subetdiaryf.anyaecrities or of an.rights arrants or

cpton8 to acquire anycuritie-s of a.4 flajor Stocçholder
any recl-aseifçation oF1VotingStock reapiai2ation or other
t-rsraaction oher than arsdemptioæin accordance with the terms

-V.-
-.--V-V------.-.------- ---S
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of the sc.urity- e4eme which e.ffect directly or
indirectly increasing the -proportionate amo.int of Voting
SLô.ck of the Corporatiop Or any SubBidiary thereof which is

bereffctai1y oed by Major Stockholder- or any partial or
coinplet i1uidation .pin off aptit off of split up of the
Cozpo.rÆtior-i or any Subsidiary thereof and vi any agreement
contract or -other -arrangement providing for any of the
transactions described hereJri

3he term Continuing Director shall
mean aeraon wio s.as.a member otthe Board of Directors of
thi Corporation immedlately prior to the time that any then
existing Major Stockholder l3ecajne Major Stockholdsr or ii
person des.tgnated before initially becoming director as
Continuing Director by majority of the then Continuing
Directors All cferences to vote of the Continuingpirectora
shall mean vote of the tota.nuntber of Continuing Dtrectora of
theCorporation

rhe term Major Stockholder- shall mean
any Persor which together ith its Affilistes and Associates
and any Person acting in concerttherith is the beneficjal
owner of 10% or mora the votes held by theY holders th
outat.sndlr shres of the Voting Stock of thiB Corporation and
any Affiliat.e or Associate of Major Stockholder including
Person-acting in concert therewith The term Major Stockholder
shall not inc hide SubsIdiary of thIs Corporation

The erm Pereon shall mean any
tnd.Lvtdual corporation partnership or other person group or
entity other than the orporatlon any SubeLdi.ary of the
Corporation or truste-holding tôck for the benefit of-.

employees of the Corporation or 1t Subsidiaries or ny one of
them pursunt one .ore employee bØne.it p1an or
arzngemerits. hen-.t%io o.sQe PersonB.cta9.a pa rsh.ip ---
lin%ited partnership eyndiato oe.itisI6r ther group for
the purpose of acquiringholdin or dispooirkg-ôf shares of
stock aucFi pertnrshipsyjcat.aeocjatjon or group will be
deemed Peraon

6..Th Term .Sübsidiry hall mean any
bueinessentiLty 50 or mo-re of .which is beneficially oned by the
Corporati9n

S..

The rerm Pazt as used in
.reference to t1ea8ss Subsidiary.or-

bfany PWjorStockhole meahs asetz havin.g value of more than--
10% of the value 19 to-tel consolidated assets of the
Corpora tion rd it ube..diaries as of the end -of tlie

986OBDCCQt
t._
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.Corporationa most recent fical yeaz ending p1or to the tiie

the.derTninatiofl.5L8-1ade.-------.-

The term Voting Stock shail mean atock

or other acurities ntitled.to vote upon any action to be taken

in connection with any ..BusineS Combination or entitled to vote

generallj in the election of direct-crs including stock or other

securities convertibl5 into oting Stock

Nbtwithetandfng any-other provisions of this

CerticatØ of- Iicorporation and except -as et forth in

subsection of thiSØct either the Corporation nor

-any Sueidiary- shall be party Business Combination unless

The Business ornbirration was approved by

the Board of DirectorB of the .Corporat.idn prior to the 14ajor

Stoccholder involved in the Business CombinationbeCoiflg Major

Stockholder

.2 .he Major .Stockholder involved in the

uBifleBB Combirtstin sought ànd obtained-t urlanimouB prior

-- appro.val of the Board of- .Director-tO becoming Major

Stockholder and the Business Cb-intiOæ was approved by

-- injority ot the Continuing Directors or

TheBuBirlees Combination as approved by

at least 75% of the total number of Continuing Directors of the

Corporation or
--

--

4. The BusineBs Combination wa apprbvd by

a.least 7.5% of the outstandIng Voting St-ock of this Corporation

and by at least .75 pf the outstanding votirg S.ock beneficially

owned by sxockhldersotPe thQn any 4ajor Stockholder

Duringhetirue.a aOr stockholder coritinee

to be a- Major socktolder resolu.icivtO voluntarilydfesolve

the Corporation shald5 notbe adopted uhle9a ppoved by the

vote cf.a-t least .75% o-f the -totalnwTtber of the Continuing

Diretor5- of theCrporatiofl..oci2..h05 vote of.at least.75% of

theoutstanding Voting Stockof.thiS -CoroatIofl and of at.least

75% of the. outztand4ng -V_LnTg S.ock .beflficially-OWfled by
stockholders other thap any Majór8tocchOlde.

As to any particular transaction subject to

this Sectipn 12 the cqntiruing pirectors then in office at1l

have the power and Uuty to determrfle the basis oI infQrmal

known to hem .5

_____ ___
.s .- .. --
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1Theamoun.tof Voting ock beneficially

owned an person

Whether Person is anAffiLiate or

ssciateof0the
.. a_Per8on .is acting In concert

with another

Whe.ther the assets subject to any

BusineSS Combination constiut9 .Substantial Part as herein

defined

Whethdra..ProPed transaction is

subjeCt to the provielOfls ofth1 Section 12 and

Suchothermatt swithrespect to which

adeterTfltflat.i5Ofl is required under this Section 12

ny Suh determination shall be coCluBiV8 and binding for all

purposes -of this SectiOn 12

The afZirmative vote req.iired by this Section

12 is in addition to the vote of the holders of any clas-.or

series of atock of the Corporation otherwise required by law

this Certificate of IncorPOati0fl any resolution which has been

adopted by the oard of OtrectOre providingor the issuance of

clasS -or series of etock or any agreement between the

Corporation and any national 85jti5BeXchge

Th provisions of this Section 12 to the

contrary 0tjthstafldirg no ausirtees CombinAtion may be approved

unless the cash or..falr arkt value of te seturities or other

cons1deratt0 to bereCeiVed FriCh .incl1.id5 eecuritle the

Corpor.tion retaiped by.tB existing Shareholdere in euc1

trarisactiOriin 4hich.the Cr-poratiOTt.i5 tef3UrViViflg_efltitY by

holdrs thCoOfl StoCk
ja-ot eas than

the hihe6t er share p.rice Witi 5ppropriAte adjustefltS fo any

recapJtaliz8tiPn tóckBP4t tôck .dividfld or àistributiop

paid by the Mao Stockhlder in tho acquisition of any -of its

io4ing.-of the Co orati0n. CO1Ofl .k during the two years

preceding the arinounCmeflt -of the proposed uiinQG Cdibti8tit
.5-

13 teiæg action including ithot

iirdatiOn any action h1ch ay involve or relate to any

BuSiflefiB Cou1binAtOn.0r toâ change or

à.ontrolO th Coporat.i0fl .a d.trŁctOr shall be entitled_tO-

consider without limitatiofl both the long term and the 2hort

tr7n intreata.f the_COPOti0fl_

emp 1Q9O-r--CU5 iners crditO re endtheC iiei-ih-4t---------.- .-
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operates or the puro8e of te preceding eneflCO control

sh1-I mean the oseeosiendireC1Y or indirectly the power

tdirec or to ca eth 4irif.te ianagement of poliieB
of the..Crporati0fl hter dnerhip of Voting

Stock by contract-r othi
_____

14 ithetandthg äriythirig. coætained in this

.certiflcate of Incorporation to the contrar the affirmative

vote ofthe ho.lder8O at leet .15% of the outandingVoting

Stock of the cqrppration shafl be require to alter amend or

adoptanyprOViBiOlt thcortsi8teflt with or to repeal Section 11 of

thiB Certi.ficaV.e of IrrcrpraiOn änd the affirmative vote of

the holders of Voting_Stock of

the CorpoatiOfl .and at est 75-o.fhe otitetanding Voting Stock

enefic1ai1y owned by aharehoders oher than any Najor

stoctho1ier.BhaIlbe required.to ater aend-or adopt any

provisiort incon8lBtent itr or Seciona78 1U
i23 14 of thicertifidate 6f IncorporatiOfl

IN WITNES wrnRzcr. the urdereignŁd has eigned this

CØrtifcate of.IncOrpOrati0flOflJafllarY3 1990 and affirms the

etatertents contained herein as true ti te penalties of

perjury 44/14g
Stephei te Sole IncorpOratOr

1800 Lincoln First Tower

Rochester aw York 14604

1.
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DONALD .AVANAGH.- eputy superintendent of Banks

Łf the State of NeYodPO HZPEBY APPROVE pureuant

to Section 301a of theBueifle3e Corporation

Ld as amended the uee of the wore Trust in the

corporate tjtle of Steun Trist corporatiqri
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CERTIFICATE OF ANDNT OF CERTIFICATE OF
INCORPORATION OF

STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION

Under Section 805 of the Business Corporation Law

We the undersigned Kenneth Philbrick President
and Laurie Puffer Secretary of Steuben Trust Corporation
hereby certify

The name of the corporation is Steuben Trust

Corporation It was formed under the name of Steuben Trust

Corporation

The Certificate of Incorporation was filed by the

Department of State on February 1990 under the Business

Corporation Law

The Certificate of Incorporation is amended as

authorized by Section 805 of the Business Corporation Law to

effect the following amendment Article relating to authorized

capital is amended to add Five Hundred Thousand 500000 shares

$10.00 par value preferred stock so as to read in its entirety as

follows

4.a The aggregate number of shares of common shares which

the Corporation shall have authority to issue is FIVE HUNDRED
THOUSAND 500000 all of which are to be of one class of common
shares with par value of $1.00 per share

4.b The aggregate number of shares of preferred stock

which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is FIVE

HUNDRED THOUSAND 500000 $10.00 par value which may be issued

in one or more series The designation and total number of

shares of any series may be fixed by the Board of Directors of

this Corporation

The preferred shares are senior to the common shares and the

common shares are subject to the rights and preferences to the

preferred shares as hereinafter set forth

4.c The preferred shares may be issued from time to time

in one or more series in any manner permitted by law as

determined from time to time by the Board of Directors and stated

in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issuance of

such shares adopted by the Board of Directors pursuant to

SHULISANOSHULTS
authority hereby vested in it each series to be appropriately

ACPNEISANOCOUN5ELOS
designated prior to the issuance of any shares thereof by some

ORNELLNEWYOK distinguishing letter number or title All shares of each

Page 131 of 182



series of preferred shares shall be alike in every particular
except as to the dates from which dividends shall commence to

accrue and all preferred shares shall be of equal rank and have
the same powers preferences and rights and shall be subject to

the same qualifications limitations and restrictions without

distinction between the shares of different series thereof
except only in regard to the following particulars which may be

different in different series

the annual rate or rates of dividends payable on shares
of such series and the dates from which such dividends shall

commence to accrue

the amount or amounts payable upon redemption thereof
and the manner in which the same may be redeemed

the amount or amounts payable to holders thereof upon

any voluntary or involuntary liquidation dissolution or winding

up of the Corporation

the provisions of the sinking fund if any with respect
thereto

the terms and rates of conversion or exchange thereof
if any if convertible or exchangeable and

the provisions as to voting rights if any provided
that the shares of any series of preferred shares having voting

power shall not have more than one vote per share and if the
stated dividends and amounts payable on liquidation are not paid
in full the shares of all series of the preferred shares shall

share ratably in the payment of dividends including
accumulations if any in accordance with the sums which would be

payable on such shares if all dividends were declared and paid in

full and in any distribution of assets other than by way of

dividends in accordance with the sums which would be payable on
such distribution if all sums payable were discharged in full

The designation of each particular series of preferred
shares and its terms in respect of the foregoing particulars
shall be fixed and determined by the Board of Directors in any
manner permitted by law and stated in the resolution or

resolutions providing for the issuance of such shares adopted by
the Board of Directors pursuant to authority hereby vested in it
before any shares of such series are issued and shall be set
forth in full or sununarized on the certificates for such series

SHULIS AND SHULIS
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The Board of Directors may from time to time increase the number
of shares of any series of preferred shares already created by

providing that any unissued preferred shares shall constitute

part of such series or may decrease but not below the number of
shares thereof then outstanding the number of shares of any
series of preferred shares already created by providing that any
unissued shares previously assigned to such series shall no

longer constitute part thereof The Board of Directors is hereby
empowered to classify or reclassify any unissued preferred shares

by fixing or altering the terms thereof in respect of the above
mentioned particulars and by assigning the same to an existing or

newly created series from time to time before the issuance of
such shares

4.d Dividends The holders of preferred shares of each
series shall be entitled to receive out of any funds legally
available for the purpose when and as declared by the Board of

Directors cash dividends thereon at such rate per annum as shall

be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors for such series
and no more payable quarterly on the days fixed by the Board of
Directors for the first series Such dividends shall be

cumulative shall be deemed to accrue from day to day regardless
of whether or not earned or declared and shall commence to

accrue on each preferred share from such date or dates as may be
fixed by the Board of Directors prior to the issue thereof The

Corporation in making any dividend payment upon the preferred
shares shall make dividend payments ratably upon all outstanding

preferred shares in proportion to the amount of the dividends

accrued thereon to the date of such dividend payment
In no event so long as any preferred shares shall remain

outstanding shall any dividend whatsoever other than dividend

payable in shares ranking junior to the preferred shares as to

dividends and assets be declared or paid upon nor shall any
distribution be made or ordered in respect of the common shares
or any other class of shares ranking junior to the preferred
shares as to dividends or assets nor shall any moneys other
than the net proceeds received from the sale of shares ranking

junior to the preferred shares as to dividends and assets be set

aside for or applied to the purchase or redemption through
sinking fund or otherwise of common shares or of any other class

of shares ranking junior to the preferred shares as to dividends

or assets unlessa all dividends on the preferred shares of all

series for past dividend periods shall have been paid and the

full dividend on all outstanding preferred shares of all series
for the then current dividend period shall have been paid or

declared and set apart for payment and the Corporation shall
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have set aside all amounts if any theretofore required to be

set aside as and for sinking funds if any for the preferred
shares of all series for the then current year and all defaults
if any in complying with any such sinking fund requirements in

respect of previous years shall have been made good

4.e Redemption of preferred shares The Corporation at the

option of the Board of Directors may at any time redeem the

whole or from time to time may redeem any part of any series of

preferred shares by paying therefor in cash the amount which

shall have been determined by the Board of Directors in the
resolution or resolutions authorizing such series to be payable

upon the redemption of such shares at such time Redemption may
be made of the whole or any part of the outstanding shares of any
one or more series in the discretion of the Board of Directors
if the redemption be part of series the shares to be

redeemed may be selected by lot or all of the shares of such

series may be redeemed pro rata in such manner as may be

prescribed by resolution of the Board of Directors

Subject to the foregoing provisions and to any

qualifications limitations or restrictions applicable to any
particular series of preferred shares which may be stated in the

resolution or resolutions providing for the issuance of such

series the Board of Directors shall have authority to prescribe
from time to time the manner in which any series of preferred
shares shall be redeemed

4sf Liquidation Upon any liquidation dissolution or

winding up of the Corporation whether voluntary or involuntary
the preferred shares of each series shall be entitled before any
distribution shall be made to the common shares or to any other

class of shares junior to the preferred shares as to dividends or

assets to be paid the full preferential amount or amounts fixed

by the Board of Directors for such series as herein authorized
but the preferred shares shall not be entitled to any further

payment and any remaining net assets shall be distributed ratably
to all outstanding common shares If upon such liquidation
dissolution or winding up of the Corporation whether voluntary

or involuntary the net assets of the Corporation shall be

insufficient to permit the payment to all outstanding preferred
shares of all series of the full preferential amounts to which

they are respectively entitled then the entire net assets of the

Corporation shall be distributed ratably to all outstanding
preferred shares in proportion to the full preferential amount to

which each such share is entitled Neither consolidation nor
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merger of the Corporation with or into any other corporation or
corporations nor the sale of all or substantially all of the
assets of the Corporation shall be deemed to be liquidation
dissolution or winding up within the meaning of this clause

The amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation was
authorized by vote of the Board of Directors followed by vote of
the holders of majority of all outstanding shares entitled to

vote thereon at meeting of shareholders No shares of

preferred stock are outstanding

iN WITNSS $HEREOF we have executed this certificate this
2--day of 1996 jp

7tenneth Philbrick President

aurie Puffer Sedtary
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STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF STEUBEN

Kenneth Philbrick being duly sworn depose and say
that am the President of Steuben Trust Corporation the

Corporation named in and described in the foregoing certificate
and that have read the foregoing certificate and know the

contents thereof to be true except as to the matters therein
stated to be alleged upon information belief and as to those

matters believe them to be

Kyineth
Philbrj.ck

Sworn to be or me this

day of _______ 1996

Notary Publi

MyCornm Exp

STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF STEUBEN

Laurie Puffer being duly sworn depose and say that

am the Secretary of Steuben Trust Corporation the Corporation
named in and described in the foregoing certificate and that

have read the foregoing certificate and know the contents thereof

to be true except as to the matters therein stated to be alleged

upon information and belief and as to those matters believe
them to be true

jJ4
ie Puffer

Swon to be re this

of _________ 1996

Notay Public

MyComm
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT

OF THE

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

OF

STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION

Under Secton 805 of the Business Corporation Law

UNDERBERG KESSLER LLP
1800 Chase Square

Rochester New York 14604
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF THE

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF

STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION

Under Section 805 of the Business Corporation Law

The undersigned Kenneth Philbrick and Laurie Puffer being the President and

Secretary respectively of Steuben Trust Corporation hereby certify

The name of the corporation is Steuben Trust Corporation

The Certificate of Incorporation was filed by the Department of State on

February 1990

The Certificate of Incorporation is hereby amended as follows by the addition

of provisions stating the number designation relative rights preferences and limitations

of the $10.00 par value Preferred Shares of series as fixed by the Board of Directors

before the issuance of such series under authority contained in the Certificate of

Incorporation

S1XTY-FIVE THOUSAND 65000 authorized $10.00 par value

Preferred Shares none of which has been issued shall be issued as series to be

designated Series 8% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock This series is hereafter

referred to as Series Preferred Stock The term Preferred Shares as used in this

Certificate of Amendment shall include all FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND 500000 of the

Preferred Shares authorized by the Certificate of Incorporation of which the Series

Preferred Stock is the first series

The relative rights preferences and limitations of all shares of Series

Preferred Stock insofar as not already fixed by the Certificate of Incorporation shall as

determined by The corporations Board of Directors in the exercise of its authority conferred

by the Certificate of Incorporation and as permitted by Section 502 of the Business

Corporation Law be as follows

The annual dividend rate for The Series Preferred Stock shall

be $8.00 per share1 payable quarterly The dates on which dividends shall be payable if

declared shall be February May August and November of each year and the date

from and after which dividends on the Series Preferred Stock shall be cumulative is

December 16 1996

GAUKS\STEUBEN.G6ERAL\FCCERTh.AMD
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The Series Preferred Stock shall be subject to redemption at

the option of the corporation upon written notice and upon the further terms set forth in this

Certificate and the Certificate of Incorporation on or after January 2001 or as of the

business day immediately prior to change In control as hereafter defined provided that

notice of redemption and payment including accrued and unpaid dividends for shares of

any Series Preferred Stock sought to be redeemed shall occur within ninety 90 days

after any such change in control notwithstanding any prior request for conversion pursuant

to subsection hereof

For purposes of this Certificate only change in control

shall be defined as transaction or series of related transactions occurring within six

months in which seventy-five percent 75% or more of the corporations outstanding

common shares shall become beneficially owned by single person or entity or group of

persons or entities acting together or ii the corporation or any subsidiary thereof shall sell

or transfer all or substantially all of its respective assets

The redemption price to be paid shall be $100.00 per

share of Series Preferred Stock plus redemption premium as follows

Year of Redemption Premium

Redemrtion Per Share

1997-2000 $10.00

2001 -2002 $6.00

2003 $5.00

2004 $4.00

2005 $3.00

2006 $2.00

2007 $1.00

No redemption premium shall be payable with respect to any redemption occurring after

December 31 2007

On or after January 2001 the corporation at its option

may redeem all of the outstanding Series Preferred Stock in single transaction or fifty

percent 50% of such shares each in two separate transactions In the event the

corporation shall redeem fifty percent 50% of the Series Preferred Stock in one

transaction it shall be under no obligation tti redeem the remaining shares in subsequent

transaction

GUS\STEJaEMGENERAL\FCCRTF.AMD
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In the event that the corporation shalt choose to redeem

fifty percent 50% of its outstanding Series Preferred Stock each holder thereof shall be

obUgated to surrender fifty percent 50% of such shares upon the corporations call

Upon any voluntary liquidation dissolution or winding up of the

corporation the holders of the Series Preferred Stock shall be entitled before any

distribution shall be made to any junior shares to be paid from the net assets of the

corporation $100.00 per share plus any unpaid or accrued and unpaid dividends thereon

to the date of final distribution to such holders whether or not earned or declared If any
amounts payable on liquidation are not paid in full then shares of the Series Preferred

Stock shall share ratably in any distribution of assets

Each share of Series Preferred Stock may be converted into

1.5385 shares the Conversion Rate of the corporations $1 .00 par value common stock

the Common Stock on or after January 2003 or upon change in control as defined

in subparagraph above upon the following terms

Any holder of shares of Series Preferred Stock desiring

to convert such shares as herein provided shall deliver duly endorsed in blank certificate

or certificates representing the shares to be converted to the Secretary of the corporation

at its office and at the same time notify the Secretary in writing of such desire to convert

shares of Series Preferred Stock as provided in this Certificate

Upon receipt by the Secretary of the certificate or

certificates representing the shares of Series Preferred Stock to be converted and the

required written notice the corporation shall cause to be issued and delivered to the holder

of the shares of Series Preferred Stock surrendering the same certificate or certificates

representing 1.5385 shares of the corporations Common Stock for each share of Series

Preferred Stock surrendered

In the event that there shall be accrued and unpaid

dividends with respect to the Series Preferred Stock at the time of any conversion thereof

the corporation shall pay such amount in cash or issue .01 54 shares of Common Stock

additional in lieu of each $1.00 of accrued and unpaid dividends

No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issued

Holders of fractional shares shall be paid in cash at the rate of $65.00 per whole share of

Common Stock at the time of any conversion

The Conversion Rate set forth in subsection above

shall be subject to adjustment from time to time as follows

In case the corporation shall at any time pay

dividend or make distribution on shares of its Common Stock in shares of its capital
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stock whether shares of Common Stock or of capital stock of any other class

subdivide or reclassify its outstanding shares of Common Stock into greater number of

securities including shares of Common Stock or combine or reclassify its outstanding

shares of Common Stock into smaller number of shares including shares of Common

Stock the Conversion Rate in effect immediately prior thereto shall be adjusted so that the

holder of record of any shares of Series Preferred Stock thereafter surrendered for

conversion shall be entitled to receive the number of shares of the corporation which the

holder would have owned or have been entitled to receive after the happening of any of the

events described above had such shares of Series Preferred Stock been converted

immediately prior to the happening of such event An adjustment made pursuant to this

paragraph shall become effective immediately after the record date in the case of

dividend and shall become effective immediately after the effective date in the case of

subdivision or combination provided however that in the event no record date is specified

for any dividend such adjustment shall become effective on the payment date for such

dividend If as result of an adjustment made pursuant to this paragraph the holder of

any Series Preferred Stock thereafter converted shall become entitled to receive shares

of two or more classes of capital stock of the corporation the Board of Directors of the

corporation whose determination shall be conclusive shall determine the allocation of the

adjusted conversion rate between or among shares of such classes of capital stock

If at any time as result of an adjustment made to this

paragraph the holders of any Series Preferred Stock thereafter converted shall

become entitled to receive any shares or other securities of the corporation other than

shares of Common Stock thereafter the number of such other shares so received upon

conversion of any Series Preferred Stock shall be subject to adjustment from time to time

in manner and on terms as nearly equivalent as practicable to the provisions with respect

to the shares of Common Stock contained in this subsection 4e and other provisions of

this subsection with respect to the shares of Common Stock shall apply on like term to

any such other shares or other securities

ii In case the corporation shall fix record date for

the issuance of rights or warrants to all holders of its Common Stock or securities

convertible into Common Stock entitling them for period expiring within 45 days after

such record date to subscribe for or purchase Common Stock at price per share or

conversion price per share less than the current market price per share of Common Stock

as defined in paragraph iv below at such record date the Conversion Rate in effect

immediately prior thereto shall be adjusted so that the same shall equal the rate determined

by multiplying the Conversion Rate in effect immediately prior to such record date by

fraction of which the numerator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock

outstanding on such record date plus the number of additional shares of Common Stock

offered for subscription or purchase or into which the convertible securities so offered are

initially convertible and of which the denominator shall be the number of shares of

Common Stock outstanding on such record date plus the number of shares which the

aggregate offering price of the total number of shares so offered or the aggregate initial
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conversion price of the convertible securities so offered would purchase at such current

market price Such adjustment shall be made successively whenever such record date

is fixed and become effective immediately after such record date provided however that

in the event no record date is fixed such adjustment shall be made successively and shall

become effective on the distribution date In determining whether any rights or warrants

entitle the holders to subscribe for or purchase shares of Common Stock at less than such

current market price and in determining the aggregate offering price of such shares there

shall be taken into account any consideration received by the corporation for such rights or

warrants the value of such consideration if other than cash to be determined by the Board

of Directors of the corporation Common Stock owned by or held for the account of the

corporation or any majority owned subsidiary shall not be deemed outstanding for the

purpose of any adjustment required under this paragraph ii

iii In case the corporation shall fix record date for

making distribution to all holders of its Common Stock of evidences of its indebtedness

or assets excluding regular quarterly or other periodic or recurring cash dividends or

distributions and cash dividends or distributions paid from retained earnings or referred to

in paragraph above or rights or warrants to subscribe or purchase capital stock of the

corporation excluding those referred to in paragraph ii above then in each such case the

Conversion Rate shall be adjusted so that the same shall equal the rate determined by

multiplying the Conversion Rate in effect immediately prior to such record date by fraction

of which the numerator shall be the current market price as defined in paragraph iv below

per share of the Common Stock on such record date and the denominator of which shall

be such current market price per share of Common Stock less the then fair market value

as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors whose determination shall be

conclusive of the portion of the assets or evidences of indebtedness so distributed or of

such rights or warrants applicable to one share of Common Stock Such adjustment shall

be made successively whenever such record date is fixed and shall become effective

immediately after such record date Notwithstanding the foregoing in the event that the

corporation shall distribute any rights or warrants to acquire capital stock Rights pursuant

to this paragraph iii the distribution of separate certificates representing such Rights

subsequent to their initial distribution whether or not such distribution shall have occurred

prior to the date of the issuance of such Series Preferred Stock shall be deemed to be

the distribution of such Rights for purposes of this paragraph iii provided that the

corporation may in lieu of making any adjustment pursuant to this paragraph iii upon
distribution of separate certificates representing such Rights make proper provision so that

each holder of such Series Preferred Stock who converts such Series Preferred Stock

or any portion thereof before the record date for such distribution of separate
certificates shall be entitled to receive upon such conversion shares of Common Stock

issued with Rights and after such record date and prior to the expiration redemption or

termination of such Rights shall be entitled to receive upon such conversion in addition to

the shares of Common Stock issuable upon such conversion the same number of such

Rights as would holder of the number of shares of Common Stock that such Series

Preferred Stock so converted would have entitled the holder thereof to purchase in
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accordance with the terms and provisions of and applicable to the Rights if such Series

Preferred Stock were converted Immediately prior to the record date for such distribution

provided however that in the event no record date is fixed such adjustment shall be made

successively and shall become effective on the distribution date Common Stock owned by

or held for the account of the corporation or any majority owned subsidiary shall not be

deemed outstanding for the purpose of any adjustment required under this paragraph iii

iv For the purpose of any computation under

paragraphs ii and iii above the current market price per share of Common Stock at any

date shall be deemed to be the average of the daily Closing Prices for the thirty consecutive

business days commencing forty-five business days before the day in question

Nothing contained herein shall be construed to

require an adjustment in the Conversion Rate as result of the issuance of Common Stock

pursuant to or the granting or exercise of any rights under dividend reinvestment stock

purchase employee stock ownership stock option or any successor or similar plans

providing for the purchase of shares of Common Stock by the corporations shareholders

or employees at price not less than ninety percent 90% of the current market price as

determined from time to time in good faith by the corporations Board of Directors

vi In addition no adjustment in the Conversion Rate

shall be required unless such adjustment would require an increase or decrease of at least

in the Conversion Rate provided however that any adjustments which by reason of this

paragraph vi are not required to be made shall be carried forward and taken into account

in any subsequent adjustment further provided however that any adjustments which by

reason of this paragraph vi are not otherwise required to be made shall be made no later

than years after the date on which occurs an event that requires an adjustment to be

made or carried forward

vii All calculations under this subsection shall be

made to the nearest cent or to the nearest one-hundredth of share as the case may be

Anything in this subsection to the contrary notwithstanding the corporation shall be

entitled to make such increases in the Conversion Rate in addition to those required by this

subsection as it in its discretion shall determine to be advisable in order that any stock

dividends subdivision of shares distribution of rights to purchase stock or securities or

distribution of securities convertible into or exchangeable for stock hereafter made by the

corporation to its shareholders shall not be taxable

viii In any case in which this subsection provides

that an adjustment shall become effective after record date for an event the corporation

may defer until the occurrence of such event delivering to the holder of any Series

Preferred Stock converted after such record date and before the occurrence of such event

the additional shares of stock deliverable upon such conversion by reason of the adjustment

required by such event over and above the Common Stock deliverable upon such
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conversion before giving effect to such adjustment and paying to such holder any
amount in cash in lieu of any fraction pursuant to subsection 4d provided however that

the corporation shall deliver to such holder due bill or other appropriate instrument

evidencing such holders rights to receive such additional shares and such cash upon the

occurrence of the event requiring such adjustment If such event does not occur no

adjustments shall be made pursuant to this subsection

Shares of Series Preferred Stock which have

been converted hereunder shall revert to the status of unissued shares

Shares of the Series Preferred Stock shall have no preemptive

rights with respect to the issuance by the corporation of any of its Common Stock or other

securities

Shares of Series Preferred Stock shall have no voting rights

except as otherwise specifically provided by law

This Certificate of Amendment was authorized by the Board of Directors of the

corporation at meeting of the Board duly held on November 21 1996

IN WiTNESS WHEREOF the undersigned have subscribed this Certificate this

day of December 996 and affirm the truth of the foregoing under penalties of perjury

Inneth Philbrick President

i1ftW J2vL
Laurie Puffer Secretarfr
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CERTIFICATE OF ENDNENT OF CERTIFICATE OF
INCORPORATION OF

STEUBEN TRUST CORORATION

tJnder Section 805 of the Business Corporation Law

We the undersigned Kenneth Philbrick President
and Laurie Puffer Secretary of Steuben Trust Corporation
hereby certify

The name of the corporation is Steuben Trust

Corporation It was formed under the name of Steuben Trust

Corporation

The Certificate of Incorporation was filed by the

Department of State on February 1990 under the Business

Corporation Law

The Certificate of Incorporation is amended as
authorized by Section 805 of the Business Corporation Law to
effect the following amendment Article relating to authorized
capital is amended to add Four Million Five Hundred Thousand
4500000 shares $1.00 par value common stock so as to read in
its entirety as follows

4.a The aggregate number of shares of common stock which
the Corporation shall have authority to issue is FIVE MILLION
5000000 all of which are to be of one class of common shares
with par value of $1.00 per share

4.b The aggregate number of shares of preferred stock
which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is FIVE
HUNDRED THOUSAND 500000 $10.00 par value which may be issued
in one or more series The designation and total number of

shares of any series may be fixed by the Board of Directors of
this Corporation

The preferred shares are senior to the common shares and the

common shares are subject to the rights and preferences to the

preferred shares as hereinafter set forth

4.c The preferred shares may be issued from time to time
in one or more series in any manner permitted by law as

determined from time to time by the Board of Directors and stated
in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issuance of

such shares adopted by the Board of Directors pursuant to

authority hereby vested in it each series to be appropriately
designated prior to the issuance of any shares thereof by some

distinguishing letter number or title All shares of each
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series of preferred shares shall be alike in every particular
except as to the dates from which dividends shall commence to

accrue and all preferred shares shall be of equal rank and have

the same powers preferences and rights and shall be subject to
the same qualifications limitations and restrictions without

distinction between the shares of different series thereof
except only in regard to the following particulars which may be

different in different series

the annual rate or rates of dividends payable on shares

of such series and the dates from which such dividends shall

commence to accrue

the amount or amounts payable upon redemption thereof

and the manner in which the same may be redeemed

the amount or amounts payable to holders thereof upon

any voluntary or involuntary liquidation dissolution or winding

up of the Corporation

the provisions of the sinking fund if any with respect
thereto

the terms and rates of conversion or exchange thereof
if any if convertible or exchangeable and

the provisions as to voting rights if any provided
that the shares of any series of preferred shares having voting

power shall not have more than one vote per share and if the

stated dividends and amounts payable on liquidation are not paid
in full the shares of all series of the preferred shares shall

share ratably in the payment of dividends including
accumulations if any in accordance with the sums which would be

payable on such shares if all dividends were declared and paid in

full and in any distribution of assets other than by way of

dividends in accordance with the sums which would be payable on

such distribution if all sums payable were discharged in full

The designation of each particular series of preferred
shares and its terms in respect of the foregoing particulars
shall be fixed and determined by the Board of Directors in any
manner permitted by law and stated in the resolution or

resolutions providing for the issuance of such shares adopted by
the Board of Directors pursuant to authority hereby vested in it
before any shares of such series are issued and shall be set

forth in full or summarized on the certificates for such series
The Board of Directors may from time to time increase the number

of shares of any series of preferred shares already created by

providing that any unissued preferred shares shall constitute
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part of such series or may decrease but not below the number of
shares thereof then outstanding the number of shares of any
series of preferred shares already created by providing that any
unissued shares previously assigned to such series shall no

longer constitute part thereof The Board of Directors is hereby

empowered to classify or reclassify any unissued preferred shares

by fixing or altering the terms thereof in respect of the above

mentioned particulars and by assigning the same to an existing or

newly created series from time to time before the issuance of

such shares

4.d Dividends The holders of preferred shares of each

series shall be entitled to receive out of any funds legally
available for the purpose when and as declared by the Board of

Directors cash dividends thereon at such rate per annum as shall
be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors for such series
and no more payable quarterly on the days fixed by the Board of

Directors for the first series Such dividends shall be

cumulative shall be deemed to accrue from day to day regardless
of whether or not earned or declared and shall commence to

accrue on each preferred share from such date or dates as may be

fixed by the Board of Directors prior to the issue thereof The

Corporation in making any dividend payment upon the preferred
shares shall make dividend payments ratably upon all outstanding
preferred shares in proportion to the amount of the dividends
accrued thereon to the date of such dividend payment
In no event so long as any preferred shares shall remain

outstanding shall any dividend whatsoever other than dividend

payable in shares ranking junior to the preferred shares as to
dividends and assets be declared or paid upon nor shall any
distribution be made or ordered in respect of the common shares

or any other class of shares ranking junior to the preferred
shares as to dividends or assets nor shall any moneys other
than the net proceeds received from the sale of shares ranking

junior to the preferred shares as to dividends and assets be set
aside for or applied to the purchase or redemption through
sinking fund or otherwise of common shares or of any other class

of shares ranking junior to the preferred shares as to dividends

or assets unlessa all dividends on the preferred shares of all
series for past dividend periods shall have been paid and the

full dividend on all outstanding preferred shares of all series

for the then current dividend period shall have been paid or

declared and set apart for payment and the Corporation shall

have set aside all amounts if any theretofore required to be

set aside as and for sinking funds if any for the preferred
shares of all series for the then current year and all defaults
if any in complying with any such sinking fund requirements in

respect of previous years shall have been made good

Page 149 of 182



4.e Redemption of preferred shares The Corporation at the

option of the Board of Directors may at any time redeem the

whole or from time to time may redeem any part of any series of

preferred shares by paying therefor in cash the amount which
shall have been determined by the Board of Directors in the

resolution or resolutions authorizing such series to be payable

upon the redemption of such shares at such time Redemption may
be made of the whole or any part of the outstanding shares of any
one or more series in the discretion of the Board of Directors
if the redemption be part of series the shares to be

redeemed may be selected by lot or all of the shares of such

series may be redeemed pro rata in such manner as may be

prescribed by resolution of the Board of Directors

Subject to the foregoing provisions and to any

qualifications limitations or restrictions applicable to any

particular series of preferred shares which may be stated in the

resolution or resolutions providing for the issuance of such

series the Board of Directors shall have authority to prescribe
from time to time the manner in which any series of preferred
shares shall be redeemed

4.f Liquidation Upon any liquidation dissolution or

winding up of the Corporation whether voluntary or involuntary
the preferred shares of each series shall be entitled before any
distribution shall be made to the common shares or to any other
class of shares junior to the preferred shares as to dividends or

assets to be paid the full preferential amount or amounts fixed

by the Board of Directors for such series as herein authorized
but the preferred shares shall not be entitled to any further

payment and any remaining net assets shall be distributed ratably
to all outstanding common shares If upon such liquidation
dissolution or winding up of the Corporation whether voluntary
or involuntary the net assets of the Corporation shall be

insufficient to permit the payment to all outstanding preferred
shares of all series of the full preferential amounts to which

they are respectively entitled then the entire net assets of the

Corporation shall be distributed ratably to all outstanding

preferred shares in proportion to the full preferential amount to

which each such share is entitled Neither consolidation nor

merger of the Corporation with or into any other corporation or

corporations nor the sale of all or substantially all of the

assets of the Corporation shall be deemed to be liquidation
dissolution or winding up within the meaning of this clause

The amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation was

authorized by vote of the Board of Directors followed by vote of

the holders of majority of all outstanding shares entitled to

vote thereon at meeting of shareholders
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF we haire executed this certificate this

/____ day 1999

Kirieth PhilbrIck President

L_
Lairie Puffer Secretary
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STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF STEUBEN

Kenneth Philbrick being duly sworn depose and say
that am the President of Steuben Trust Corporation the

Corporation named in and described in the foregoing certificate
and that have read the foregoing certificate and know the

contents thereof to be true except as to the matters therein

stated to be alleged upon information and belief arid to those
matters believe them to be

Kenneth Philbrick

Sworp to before me this

JIday of _J 1999

_VILh%UJt
Notary Public MlcheteLMcLaUghlIfl

Notary Public State of N.Y
My Comm Exp i-tIi i.o1MC5O82111

Steuben County
Commission xpires July 21 L.1J

STATE OF NEW YORK

COUNTY OF STEUBEN

Laurie Puffer being duly sworn depose and say that

am the Secretary of Steuben Trust Corporation the Corporation
named in and described in the foregoing certificate and that
have read the foregoing certificate and know the contents thereof
to be true except as to the matters therein stated to be alleged

upon information and belief and as to those matters believe

them to be true

Laurie Puffer

Sworn to before me this

J-f day of j___ 199

UJC.1JJJL ULLcJi
Notary Public

My Comm Exp
Mithele McLaughlin

Notary Public State of N.Y
No 01MC5082171

QuIifled In Steuben County
Commission Expires July21 ...L

Page 152 of 182



Exhibit 2.2

BYLAWS
of

STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION

Adopted January 11 1990

Amended January 1997

Amended February 17 2000

Amended February 12 2004
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ARTICLE MEETINGS OF SHAREHOLDERS

11 Annual Meetings amended 119/97 The Airnual Meeting of the Shareholders

shall be held on any day each year at such day and time as the Board of Directors may designate

for the election of the Board of Directors and the transaction of such business as may properly

come before the meeting

1.2 Speeial Meetings Special Meetings of the Shareholders for any purpose or purposes

may be called by resolution of the Board of Directors or by the President and shall be called by

the President or Secretary upon the request in writing of majority of the Board of Directors or

of holders of not less than twenty-five percent 25% of shares of stock outstanding entitled to

vote which written request shall state the purpose or purposes of the proposed meeting Nothing

contained herein shall limit the right and power of the Directors and Shareholders to require

Special Meeting for the election of Directors pursuant to Section 603 of the Business Corporation

Law as that Section may from time to time be amended

.3 Place of Mcetings Meetings of Shareholders for any purpose may be held at such

places within or without the State of New York as the Board of Directors shall from time to time

determine

1.4 Notice of Meeting Written or printed notice of the place date and hour of all

meetings of the Shareholders shall be given not less than ten 10 days nor more than fifty 50
days before the day fixed for the meeting to each Shareholder entitled to vote at said meeting In

the case of Special Meetings such notice must also state the purpose or purposes for which the

meeting is called and the names of the person or persons calling the meeting Business

transacted at Special Meetings shall be confined to the purposes set forth in the notice thereof If

any action is proposed to be taken at any meeting which would entitle Shareholders to receive

payment for their shares such notice must speci the proposed action and state the fact that if

the action is taken the dissenting Shareholders shall have appraisal rights The notice of meetings

shall be given to each Shareholder by personal delivery or by delivery at his/her residence or

usual place of business or by postage prepaid mail addressed to him/her at his/her address as the

same appears on the books of the Corporation unless he/she shall have filed with the Secretary

of the Corporation written request that notices intended for him/her be mailed to some other

address in which event the notice shall be mailed to the address designated in such request

notice of meeting shall not be required to be given to any Shareholder who submits signed

waiver of notice in person or by proxy whether before or after the meeting The attendance of

any Shareholder at meeting in person or by proxy without protesting prior to the conclusion of

the meeting the lack of notice of such meeting shall constitute waiver of notice by him/her No

notice of an adjourned meeting of Shareholders need be given unless the Board of Directors

fixes new record date for the adjourned meeting

1.5 Record Dates For the purpose of determining the Shareholders entitled to notice of

or to vote at Shareholders meeting or any adjournment thereof the Board of Directors may fix

date of record which shall not be more than fifty 50 days nor less than ten 10 days before

said meeting date For the purpose of determining Shareholders entitled to express consent to or

dissent from any proposal without meeting or for determining Shareholders entitled to receive
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payment of dividend or the allotment of any rights or for any other action the Board of

Directors may fix date of record which shall not be more than fifty 50 days prior to such

action

.6 Ouorum The presence of the holders of majority of the stock issued and

outstanding and entitled to vote thereat either in person or represented by proxy shall be

required in order to constitute quorum for the transaction of business at all meetings of the

Shareholders except where the presence of greater number of Shareholders is required by

statute The Shareholders present in person or represented by proxy at any meeting shall have the

power to adjourn such meeting from time to time but not for period of over thirty 30 days at

any one time without notice other than announcement at the meeting and despite the absence of

quorum At any such adjourned meeting if quorum shall be present or represented any

business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called

When quorum is once present it shall not be broken by the subsequent withdrawal of any

Shareholder

1.7 Voting At all meetings of the Shareholders each Shareholder entitled to vote

thereat may vote in person or by proxy and shall have one vote for each share standing in

his/her name on the books of the Corporation Voting at all meetings may be by voice vote

except that where demand is made by Shareholders holding ten percent 10% in interest of

shares present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote voting shall be by ballot plurality

of votes cast shall be sufficient to elect Directors and majority of votes cast shall be sufficient

to take any other corporate action except as otherwise provided by statute or the Certificate of

Incorporation of the Corporation or if not inconsistent with the Certificate of Incorporation

these Bylaws

1.8 Proxies To be valid each proxy must be executed in writing by the Shareholder or

by his/her duly authorized attorney No proxy shall be valid after the expiration of eleven 11
months from the date of its execution unless greater duration shall have been specified therein

Each proxy shall be revocable at the pleasure of the person executing it or of his/her personal

representative or assigns except as otherwise provided by statute The authority of the holder of

proxy to act shall not be revoked by the incompetence or death of the Shareholder who

executed the proxy unless before the authority is exercised valid and sufficient written notice of

an adjudication of such incompetence or of such death is received by the corporate officer

responsible for maintaining the list of Shareholders

1.9 Conduct of Meetings Meetings of Shareholders shall be presided over by the

Chairman of the Board of Directors if any or in his/her absence by the President of the

Corporation or in the absence of both of them by chairman to be chosen at the meeting

1.10 Action Without Meeting Unless otherwise provided by statute any action

required or permitted to be taken by the Shareholders at meeting or meetings thereof may be

taken without meeting upon written consent setting forth the actions so taken and signed by

the holders of all outstanding shares entitled to vote thereon Such written consent shall be filed

with the Minutes of the proceedings of the Shareholders and shall have the same effect as

unanimous vote of the Shareholders
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ARTICLE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2.1 Powers Subject to the provisions of any statute the business of the Corporation

shall be managed by its Board of Directors each of whom shall be at least 18 years of age

2.2 Number Oualitications and Election The number of Directors constituting the

entire Board of Directors shall be such number not less than three as shall be designated by

resolution of the Board of Directors prior to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders In the absence

of such resolution the number of Directors to be elected at such Annual Meeting shall be

thirteen No person who is 75 years of age or more shall be eligible for election or re-election as

Director

2.3 Newly Created Directorships and Vacancies Newly created directorships

resulting from an increase in the number of Directors and/or vacancies occurring in the Board for

any reason shall be filled only by vote of majority of Directors then in office even though

such majority is less than majority of the entire Board or the number of Directors then in office

is less than quorum Each Director elected to fill vacancy or newly created directorship shall

hold office until the next Annual Meeting of Shareholders for the election of Directors and until

the election and qualification of his successor No decrease in the number of Directors

constituting the entire Board of Directors or change in the qualifications or restrictions with

respect to directors shall shorten the term of an incumbent director

2.4 Removal Any or all of the Directors may be removed with or without cause by

Vote of the Shareholders entitled to vote on the election of Directors provided that any such

removal shall require the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 75% of the outstanding shares

entitled to vote in the election of directors voting together as single class Directors may also

be removed without cause by action of the Board of Directors provided that such action shall

require the affirmative vote of at least 75% of the entire Board of Directors

2.5 Resignation Director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the

Board the President or the Secretary of the Corporation Unless otherwise specified in the

notice the resignation shall take effect upon receipt thereof by the Board or such officer and the

acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective

2.6 Regular Meetings Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held

following each Annual Meeting of the Shareholders at the place of such Annual Meeting for the

purposes of organization and the transaction of such other business as may properly come before

such meeting Other Regular Meetings of the Board shall be held at such times and places as the

Directors shall from time to time determine All Regular Meetings of the Board may be held

without notice

2.7 Special Meetings Special Meetings of the Board may be called by the Chairman of

the Board or the President and shall be called by the President or Secretary on the written request

of one-third 1/3 of the Directors then in office Notice of the place date and hour of each

Special Meeting of the Board shall be given to each Director at least one day prior to such

meeting by telephone telegraph mail or delivery to his/her residence or usual place of business
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Notice of any such Special Meeting need not be given to any Director who submits signed

waiver of notice whether before or after the meeting or who attends the meeting without

protesting prior thereto or at its commencement the lack of notice to him/her notice or

waiver of notice need not specify the purpose of any Special Meeting of the Board

2.8 Ouorum Except as otherwise stated in the Certificate of Incorporation or these

Bylaws majority of the Board shall constitute quorum for the transaction of business at each

meeting of the Board however if at any meeting of the Board there shall be less than quorum

present majority of Directors present shall have the power to adjourn such meeting from time

to time without notice other than an announcement at such meeting until quorum shall be

present At any such adjourned meeting at which quorum shall be present any business may be

transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called

2.9 Compensation of Directors Directors as such shall not receive any stated salary

for their services however by resolution of the Board fixed sum and expenses of attendance

may be allowed for attendance at each Regular or Special Meeting of the Board or any committee

thereof Nothing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any Director from serving the

Corporation in any other capacity and receiving compensation therefor

2.10 Executive Committee and Other Committees The Board of Directors may in its

discretion by an affinnative vote of majority of the entire Board appoint an Executive

Committee or any other committee to consist of three or more Directors as the Board may
from time to time determine The Executive Committee shall have and may exercise between

meetings of the Board all the powers of the Board in the management of the business and affairs

of the Corporation and other committees shall have such powers as shall be conferred upon them

by the Board except that no committee shall have power

To recommend to Shareholders any action requiring

Shareholder approval

To fill vacancies in the Board or in any committee thereof

To fix compensation of Directors for service on the Board or

any committee thereof

To repeal amend or adopt Bylaws

To amend or repeal any Board resolution which does not by its

terms make it amendable or repealable by such committee

To remove or fix the compensation of officers who are elected

by the Board

In the absence of any member of the Executive Committee or of any other committee the

members thereof present at any meeting may appoint member of the Board previously

designated by the Board as committee alternate to act in the place of such absent member The

Board shall have the power at any time to change the membership of fill vacancies in or dissolve

any committee The Executive Committee and any other committee may make rules for the
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conduct of its business and may appoint such committees and assistants as may from time to

time be necessary unless the Board shall provide otherwise majority of the members of the

Executive Committee and of any other committee shall constitute quorum

2.11 Participation in Meeting by Telephone When permitted by statute any one or

more members of the Board or any committee thereof may participate in meeting of such

Board or committee by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment

allowing all persons participating in the meeting to hear each other at the same time

Participation by such means shall constitute presence in person at meeting

2.12 Action Without Meeting Any action required or permitted to be taken by the

Board or any committee thereof may be taken without meeting if all members of the Board or

the committee consent in writing to the adoption of resolution authorizing the action The

resolution and the written consents thereto by the members of the Board or committee shall be

filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board or committee

2.13 Director Emeritus Amended 2/12/04 Effective May 2003 no director shall

be considered for Director Emeritus status with the exception of those grandfathered

directorships currently existing Those individuals elected Director Emeritus on April 30 2003

shall continue to serve as such Director Emeritus until the next Annual Meeting

Directors Emeriti shall have the right to attend all meetings of the Board and participate

in proceedings without vote and may serve as member but not chairman of Committees nor

may he serve as an officer of the Corporation
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ARTICLE HI OFFICERS

3.1 Election of Officers The Board of Directors shall elect President/CEO and

Secretary Any vacancies in the above offices shall be filled in the same manner Each such

officer shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors and until his/her successor shall have

been duly elected and qualified unless he/she shall die resign or be removed Any two offices

may be held by the same person except that no person shall hold the offices of President and

Secretary concurrently unless all of the outstanding stock of the Corporation is owned by one

person The Board of Directors may elect Chairman of the Board of Directors from among the

Directors of the Corporation Treasurer one or more Vice Presidents and such other officers as

it may determine Each such officer shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors

3.2 Assistant and Subordinate Officers The Board of Directors may elect one or

more Assistant Treasurers one or more Assistant Secretaries and such other subordinate officers

or agents as it may deem proper from time to time who shall hold office only at the pleasure of

the Board of Directors The Board of Directors may from time to time authorize the President to

appoint and remove such assistant and subordinate officers and agents and prescribe the powers

and duties thereof

3.3 Removal Any officer of the Corporation may be removed with or without cause by

the Board of Directors whenever in the Boards judgment the best interests of the Corporation

will be served thereby

3.4 Compensation Amended 2/12/04 The Board of Directors shall fix the

compensation of the President They shall also fix the compensation of all senior vice presidents

and executive vice presidents of the Corporation who are appointed by the Board of Directors

based on the recommendations of the president and CEO and the boards salary and personnel

committee

3.5 Chairman of the Board The Chairman of the Board if there be one shall preside

at all meetings of the Shareholders and Directors and shall perform such other duties as the

Board may direct

3.6 President The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation

and shall have general charge of the business of the Corporation subject to the control and

direction of the Board of Directors hi general the President shall have all the powers and

perform all the duties normally incident to the office of President together with such other

powers and duties as may from time to time be properly prescribed by the Board of Directors If

there be no Chairman of the Board or in his absence or inability to act the President shall

perform all the duties of the Chairman of the Board

3.7 Vice President Any one or niore of the Vice Presidents may be designated by the

Board of Directors as an Executive Vice President or Senior Vice President At the request of

the President or in his/her absence or during his/her disability the first designated Executive Vice

President shall perform the duties and exercise the functions of the President If there be no
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Executive Vice President the Vice President designated by the Board of Directors shall perform

such duties and exercise such functions in such case Each Vice President shall have such other

powers and duties as may from time to time be properly prescribed by the Board of Directors or

the President

3.8 Secretary The Secretary shall attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and of

the Shareholders and shall record all votes in the Minutes of all such proceedings in book to be

maintained for such purpose He/she shall give or cause to be given notice of all meetings of

Shareholders and Special Meetings of the Board of Directors He/she shall be the custodian of

the seal of the Corporation and shall affix the seal to any instrument when authorized by the

Board of Directors He/she shall keep all the documents and records of the Corporation as

required by law or otherwise in proper and safe manner The Secretary shall have such other

powers and duties as may from time to time be properly prescribed by the Board of Directors or

the President

3.9 Trcasurer The Treasurer shall keep correct and complete books and records of

account for the Corporation Subject to the control and supervision of the Board of Directors and

the President or such other officer as the President may designate the Treasurer shall establish

and execute programs for the provision of the capital required by the Corporation including

negotiating the procurement of capital and maintaining adequate sources for the Corporations

current borrowings from lending institutions I-Ic/she shall maintain banking arrangements to

receive have custody of and disburse the funds and securities of the Corporation He/she shall

invest the funds of the Corporation as required establish and coordinate policies for investment

in pension and other similar accounts due the Corporation The Treasurer shall have such other

powers and duties as may from time to time be properly prescribed by the Board of Directors or

the President

3.10 Controller The Board of Directors may appoint Controller Subject to the

control and supervision of the Board of Directors and the President or such officer as the

President may designate the Controller shall establish coordinate and administer an adequate

plan for the financial control of operations including profit planning programs for capital

investing and for financing sales forecasts expense budgets and cost standards together with the

necessary procedures to effectuate such plans The Controller shall compare performance with

operating plans and standards and shall report and interpret the results of operations to all levels

of management
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ARTICLE IV INDEMNIFICATION

All officers and directors of the Corporation shall be indemnified by the Corporation to

the fullest extent permitted by the Business Corporation Law of the State of New York as

required by the Certificate of Incorporation
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ARTICLE CERTIFICATES OF STOCK

5.1 Form and Signature The certificates of stock of the Corporation shall be numbered

and entered on the books of the Corporation as they are issued In addition to other requirements

prescribed by law the certificates shall exhibit the holders name and the number of shares and

shall be signed by the President or Executive Vice President and by the Treasurer Secretary

Assistant Treasurer or Assistant Secretary Where any certificate is signed by transfer agent

and registered by registrar other than the Corporation itself or an employee the signature of

any such officers may be facsimiles engraved or printed In case any officer who has signed or

whose facsimile signature has been placed upon certificate shall have ceased to be such officer

before such certificate is issued such certificate may be issued by the Corporation with the same

effect as if such person were such officer at the date of issue

5.2 Transfer of Shares The shares of the Corporation shall be transferred on the books

of the Corporation by the registered holder tl1ereof in person or by his/her attorney upon

surrender for cancellation of certificates for the same number of shares with proper assignment

and powers of transfer endorsed thereon or attached thereto duly signed by the person appearing

by the certificate to be the owner of the shares represented thereby with such proof of the

authenticity of the signature as the Corporation or its agents may reasonably require Such

certificate shall have affixed thereto all stock transfer stamps required by law The Board of

Directors shall have power and authority to make all such other rules and regulations as it may
deem expedient concerning the issue transfer and registration of certificates for shares of the

Corporation

53 Mutilated Lost Stolen or Destroyed Certificates The holder of any certificate

representing shares of the Corporation shall immediately notify the Corporation of any

mutilation loss theft or destruction thereof The Board of Directors may in its discretion cause

one or more new certificates for the same number of shares in the aggregate to be issued to such

holder upon the surrender of the mutilated certificate or in the case of loss theft or destruction of

the certificate upon satisfactory proof of such loss theft or destruction and the deposit of

indemnity by way of bond or otherwise in such form and amount and with such sureties or

securities as the Board of Directors may require to indemnify the Corporation and transfer agent

and registrar if any against loss or liability by reason of the issuance of such new certificates

Alternatively the Board of Directors may in its discretion refuse to issue such new certificates

save upon the order of some court having jurisdiction in such matters

5.4 Stock Ledgers The stock ledgers of the Corporation containing the names and

addresses of the Shareholders and the number of shares held by them respectively shall be

maintained at the principal office of the Corporation or if there be transfer agent at the office

of such transfer agent as the Board of Directors shall determine

5.5 Transfer Agents and Registrars The Corporation may have one or more transfer

agents and one or more registrars of its stock or of any class or classes of its stock whose

respective duties the Board of Directors may from time to time determine

Page 162 of 182



5.6 Record Holder The Corporation shall be entitled to treat the hoLder of record of any

shares of stock as the holder in fact thereof and accordingly shall not be bound to recognize any

equitable or other claim to or interest in such shares on the part of any other person whether or

not it shall have express or other notice thereof except as expressly provided by statute

57 Stock Certificates of Steuben Trust Company Notwithstanding the preceding

provisions of this Article certificates representing shares of Steuben Trust Company stock

outstanding prior to the acquisition of all shares of Steuben Trust Company by the Corporation

shall represent the ownership of common stock of the Corporation as described in the Plan of

Acquisition of Steuben Trust Company by the Corporation and in materials presented to the

stockholders of Steuben Trust Company relating to said Plan
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ARTICLE VI- FINANCES

6.1 Dividends Subject to any statutory provisions dividends upon the capital stock of

the Corporation may be declared by the Board of Directors payable on such dates as the Board of

Directors may designate

6.2 Reserves Before the payment of any dividend there may be set aside out of the

funds of the Corporation available for dividends such sum or sums as the Board of Directors

may from time to time in its absolute discretion deem proper as reserve to meet contingencies

or for equalizing dividends or for repairing or maintaining any property of the Corporation or

for such other purpose as the Board shall deem conducive to the interests of the Corporation The

Board of Directors may modif or abolish any such reserve in the manner in which it was

created

6.3 Bills Notes etc All checks or demands for money and notes or other instruments

evidencing indebtedness or obligations of the Corporation shall be made in the name of the

Corporation and shall be signed by such officer or officers or such other person or persons as the

Board of Directors may from time to time designate
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ARTICLE VII- SUBSIDIARIES amended 2/12/04

7.1 Creation of Subsidiaries The Board of Directors may from time to time create

Subsidiaries of the Corporation as operational units of the Corporation and may set apart to such

Subsidiaries such
aspects or portions of the business affairs and properties of the Corporation as

the Board of Directors may from time to time determine

7.2 Subsidiary Officers The Board of Directors of the Corporation may appoint as

officers of Subsidiary President one or more Vice Presidents Secretaiy Treasurer and

any other officers all of whom shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors The same

person may hold two or more offices of Subsidiary except the offices of President and

Secretary concurrently and any person holding an office of Subsidiary may also be elected an

officer of the Corporation The officers and all other persons who shall serve Subsidiary in the

capacities set forth in this Article are hereby appointed agents of the Corporation with the powers

and duties herein set forth provided however that the authority of said agents shall be limited to

matters related to the properties business and affairs of the Subsidiary and shall not extend to

any other portion of the properties business and affairs of the Corporation The Board of

Directors may from time to time authorize the President of the Corporation to appoint and

remove all such officers or assistant or subordinate officers and agents and to prescribe the

powers and duties therefor

7.3 Subsidiary Executive The Executive of Subsidiary shall have the responsibility

for the general management of the affairs of the Subsidiary subject to the direction of the Board

of Directors and the President of the Corporation 1-le/she shall see that all orders instructions

policies and resolutions of the Board of Directors and President of the Corporation relating to

the business and affairs of the Subsidiary are carried into effect

7.4 Subsidiary Secretary The Subsidiary Secretary shall have the custody of such

books and papers shall maintain such records and shall have such other powers and duties as

may from time to time be properly prescribed by the Board of Directors the President of the

Corporation and the Subsidiary Executive

7.5 Subsidiary Treasurer Subject to the direction of the Treasurer of the Corporation

and the Subsidiary Executive the Subsidiary Treasurer shall have custody of the funds and

securities of the Subsidiary shall keep full and accurate accounts of receipts and disbursements

in books belonging to the Subsidiary shall deposit all monies and other valuable effects in the

name and to the credit of the Subsidiary in such depositories as may be designated by the Board

of Directors and shall have such other powers and duties as may from time to time be properly

prescribed by the Board of Directors and PresidentlCEO of the Corporation and the Subsidiary

Executive

Pagel65ofl82



ARTICLE VIII- AMENDMENTS

8.1 Power to Amend Except as otherwise stated in the Certificate of Incorporation the

Bylaws of the Corporation may be adopted amended or repealed by vote of the holders of the

shares at any time entitled to vote on the election of Directors The Board of Directors shall also

have the power to adopt amend or repeal the Bylaws of the Corporation by majority vote of the

entire Board of Directors at any meeting thereof however any Bylaws adopted by the Board of

Directors may be amended or repealed at any meeting of the Shareholders by majority of the

votes cast at such meeting by the holders of shares entitled to vote thereon

82 Notice of Amendment Affecting Election of Directors If any Bylaw regulating an

impending election of Directors is adopted amended or repealed by the Board of Directors there

shall be set forth in the notice of the next meeting of Shareholders for the election of Directors

the Bylaw so adopted amended or repealed together with concise statement of the changes

made
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Exhibit 3.1

See Annex to Offering Circular
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ExhIbit 3.2

See Attached
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CHANGE IN CONTROL AGREEMENT

This Agreement by and between STEUBEN TRUST COMPANY New

York Banking Corporation with office and principal place of

business at One Steuben Square Hornell New York 14843

hereinafter referred to as the Bank and

BRENDA COPELAND an individual with residence of 5863

Dineen Road Hornell New York 14066 hereinafter referred to

as the Employee and

WHEREAS the Bank has hired the Employee as its President

and Chief Executive Officer according to the terms and

conditions of the Agreement between the Bank and the Employee

and

WHEREAS the parties desire to enter into an Agreement to

compensate the Employee in the event there is change in

control of the bank and to provide for the noncompetition of

the Employee in the event the Employee leaves her employment

with the Banlc for any reason

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the mutual covenants

hereinafter expressed the parties intending to be bound agree

as follows

In the event there is change in control of the Bank

or its parent Holding Company Steuben Trust Corporation within

the five year period commencing with the date of this Agreement

if the Employee is an Employee of the Bank the Bank shall pay

ULISANDSHULTS the Employee her annual compensation existing at the time of the

flORNEYS AND CQUNSEI.OR5

change in control together with all additional benefits for the
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term of three years from the date of the change in control of

the Bank or its parent Holding Company Steuben Trust

Corporation For purposes of this Agreement change in control

shall mean the possession of the power to elect majority of

the members of the Board of Directors of the Bank or its parent

Holding Company Steuben Trust Corporation through the ownership

of voting securities in the Bank by any person or persons or

organizations not shareholders of the Bank as of the date of

this Agreement

In the event the employee is employed in comparable

capacity andM for equal remuneration at such time by whatever

person or entity obtains the power to elect the majority of

members of the Board of Director as provided herein in the same

or comparable position this change in control agreement shall

be inoperative provided however in the event the employee

voluntarily leaves the employment of whichever person or entity

obtains the power to elect the majority of members of the Board

of Directors within one year period of the date of the change in

control then the terms of this agreement shall have full force

and effect

In consideration of the above provisions the Employee

agrees that upon the termination of her employment for any

reason she will not within the three year period of her leaving

her employment with the Bank or its parent Holding Company

Steuben Trust Corporation reveal or disclose to any person

outside of the Bank without the Banks specific written

SHUtIS AND SHULrS

ATmNs AND COUNSELORS

HORNELL NEW WORK
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authorization whether by private communication or public address

or otherwise information not lawfully available to the public

concerning any of the Banks or the Banks parent Holding

Company Steuben Trust Corporation confidential information

including procedures developments plans methods systems

marketing techniques cost methods or any customer list Upon

the termination of Employees employment for any reason Employee

shall promptly surrender to the Bank all copies of the

foregoing

In further consideration of this Agreement Employee

agrees that during the period ending later than three years from

the date of the termination of her employment for any reason as

per change of control as herein contemplated she will not

directly or indirectly for her own account or as an employee

officer director partner in joint venture or otherwise engage

in the business of banking or otherwise compete with the Bank

or its parent Holding Company Steuben Trust Corporation with

any competitor of the bank competitor of the bank being

defined as any bank or financial institution which has an office

within fifteen mile geographic radius of an existing Steuben

Trust Company office at the time of the change in control with

the following exception the employee may provide limited

consulting services to financial institutions but shall not

solicit any customers in the Counties of Steuben Allegany

SHULJSANDSHWS Monroe and Livingston
ATTDRNEYS N4 COUNSELORS

HORNELL NEW YORK
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This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of the

parties their heirs successors and assigns may not be changed

orally and shall be governed by the Laws of the State of New

York

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have hereunder set their

hands and seals the day and year first above written

STEUBEN TRUST COMPANY

7byid Shults Chairman

Brenda Copland
STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF STEUBEN

On the day __________ in the year Two Thousand Nine
before me the undefsigned personally appeared David Shults
Chairman of Steuben Trust Company personally known to me or

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the

individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and

acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his capacity
and that by his signature on the instrument the individual or

the person upon behalf of which the individual acted executed

the instrument
J-

Notary Pubflc

My Comm Exp
STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF STEUBEN

On the E3- day of flcuj- in the year Two Thousand Nine
before me the undersigned personally appeared Brenda

Copeland personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of

satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is

subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that

she executed the same in her capacity and that by her signature

on the instrument the individual or the person upon behalf of

which the individual acted executed the instrument

IYcuu2_

SHUI.ISANDSHUITS NotaryPUbliC
FIDnNEYSANDCDUNSELORS My Comm Exp.

IOANELL NEWRK

Hfl.flGER Notary Pubflc

Nw York Steuben County
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Exhibit 6.2 Long-Term Stock Incentive

Plan

STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION

2010 LONG-TERM STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

The Steuben Trust Corporation Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan the Plan has been

established by Steuben Trust Corporation the Corporation which term shall include any subsidiaries

of Steuben Trust Corporation to secure for the Corporation and its shareholders the benefits of the

incentive inherent in stock ownership in the Corporation by employees who are responsible for its future

growth and continued success The Plan promotes the success and enhances the value of the Corporation

by linking the personal interests of Participants as defined below to those of the Corporations

shareholders and by providing Participants with an incentive for outstanding performance The Plan is

further intended to provide flexibility to the Corporation in its ability to motivate attract and retain the

services of Participants upon whose judgment interest and special effort the successful conduct of its

operation largely depends

Incentives

Incentives under the Plan may be granted in any one or combination ofa Incentive Stock

Options Nonqualified Stock Options and Restricted Stock Grants collectively incentives
All Incentives shall be subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein and to such other terms and

conditions as may be established by committee of the Board of Directors of the Corporation the

Committee designated to administer the Plan

Participants

All employees who have been determined by the Committee to contribute significantly to the

profits or growth of the Corporation shall be eligible to participate in the Plan if designated by the

Committee the Participants

Administration

The Plan shall be administered by the Committee The Committee shall be responsible for the

administration of the Plan including without limitation determining which Participants receive

Incentives what kind of Incentives are made under the Plan and for what number of shares and the other

terms and conditions oftlie Incentives Determinations by the Committee under the Plan including

without limitation determinations of the Participants the form amount and timing of Incentives the

terms and
provisions of Incentives and the agreements evidencing Incentives need not be uniform and

may be made selectively among Participants who receive or are eligible to receive Incentives hereunder

whether or not such Participants are similarly-situated

The Committee shall have the responsibility of construing and interpreting the Plan and of

establishing and amending any rules and regulations it may deem necessary or desirable for the proper

administration of the Plan Any decision or action taken or to be taken by the Committee arising out of

or in connection with the construction administration interpretation and effect of the Plan and of its rules

and regulations shall to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law be within its absolute

discretion except as otherwise specifically provided herein and shall be conclusive and binding upon the

Corporation all Participants and any person claiming under or through any Participant

Each
person

who is or shall have been member of the Committee or the Board of Directors

shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Corporation against and from any loss cost liability or

expense that may be imposed upon or reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with or resulting
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from any claim action suit or proceeding to which lie or she may be party or in which he or she may be

involved by reason of any action taken or failure to act under the Plan and against and from any and all

amounts paid by him or her in settlement thereof with the Corporations approval or paid by him in

satisfaction ofanyjudgment in any such action suit or proceeding against him provided he shall give the

Corporation an opportunity at its own expense to handle and defend the same before he undertakes to

handle and defend it on his own behalf The foregoing right of indemnification shall be in addition to any

other rights of indemnification to which such persons may be entitled under the Corporations Articles of

Incorporation or by-laws as matter of law or otherwise or any power that the Corporation may have to

indemnify them or hold them harmless

Shares Available for Incentives

Shares Subject to Issuance or Transfer Subject to adjustment as provided in

Section 4b there is hereby reserved for issuance under the Plan 80000 shares of Common Stock The

shares available for granting awards shall be increased by the number of shares as to which options or

other benefits granted under the Plan have lapsed expired terminated or been canceled Shares under

this Plan shall be delivered by the Corporation from its authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock

including shares repurchased by the Corporation

Adjustment of Shares In the event of reorganization recapitalization stock split

stock dividend combination of shares merger consolidation rights offering or other similar change in

the capital structure of the Corporation then the number of shares authorized for issuance under the

Plan and ii the number of shares subject to outstanding Incentives and in the case of Stock Options the

option price will be proportionately adjusted provided that fractions of share will be rounded down to

the nearest whole share

Stock Options

The Committee may grant options qualifying as Incentive Stock Options under the Internal

Revenue Code of 1986 as amended or any successor code thereto the Code and Non-Statutory

Options collectively Stock Options Stock Options shall be subject to the following terms and

conditions and such other terms and conditions as the Committee may prescribe

Option Price The option price per share with respect to each Stock Option shall be

determined by the Committee but shall not be less than 100% of the fair market value of the Common

Stock on the date the Stock Option is granted as determined by the Committee The option price of an

Incentive Stock Option granted to an individual owning more than ten percent of the total combined

voting power of all classes of stock of the Corporation 10% Owner shall not be less than 110% of

the fair market value of the Common Stock

Period of Option The period of each Stock Option shall be fixed by the Committee but

shall not exceed ten 10 years or in the case of 10% Owner five years

Payment No shares shall be issued until full payment of the option price has been made

The option prices may be paid in cash or if the Committee determines in shares of Common Stock or

combination of cash and shares If the Committee approves the use of shares of Common Stock as

payment method the Committee shall establish such conditions as it deems appropriate for the use of

Common Stock to exercise stock option The Committee may establish rules and procedures to permit

an option holder to defer recognition of gain upon the exercise of stock option
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Exercise of Option The Committee shall determine how and when shares covered by

Stock Option may be purchased The Committee may establish waiting periods the dates on which

options become exercisable or vested and exercise periods provided that in no event including those

specified in paragraphs and of this Section shall any Stock Option be exercisable after its

specified expiration period

Termination of Employment Unless otherwise determined by the Committee upon the

termination of Participants employment for any reason other than retirement death or termination for

deliberate willful or gross misconduct Stock Option privileges shall be limited to the shares which were

immediately exercisable at the date of such termination The Committee however in its discretion may

provide that any Stock Options outstanding but not yet exercisable upon the termination of Participants

employment may become exercisable in accordance with schedule as may be determined by the

Committee Such Stock Option privileges shall expire unless exercised within such period of time after

the date of termination of employment as may be established by the Committee but in no event later than

the expiration date of the Stock Option

Retirement Unless otherwise determined by the Committee upon retirement of

Participant Stock Option privileges shall apply to those shares immediately exercisable at the date of

retirement The Committee however in its discretion may provide that any Stock Options outstanding

but not yet exercisable upon the retirement of Participant may become exercisable in accordance with

schedule as may be determined by the Committee Stock Option privileges shall expire unless exercised

within such period of time as may be established by the Committee but in no event later than the

expiration date of the Stock Option

Death Unless otherwise determined by the Committee upon the death of Participant

Stock Option privileges shall apply to those shares which were immediately exercisable at the time of

death The Committee however in its discretion may provide that any Stock Options outstanding but

not yet exercisable upon the death of Participant may become exercisable in accordance with schedule

as may be determined by the Committee Such privileges shall expire unless exercised by legal

representatives within period of time as determined by the Committee but in no event later than the

expiration date of the Stock Option

Termination due to Misconduct If Participants employment is terminated for

deliberate willful or gross misconduct as determined by the Company all rights under the Stock Option

shall expire upon receipt of the notice of such termination

Limits on Incentive Stock Options Except as may otherwise be permitted by the Code

the Committee shall not grant to Participant Incentive Stock Options that in the aggregate are first

exercisable during any one calendar year to the extent that the aggregate fair market value of the Common

Stock at the time the Incentive Stock Options are granted exceeds lOOOOO or such other amount as the

Internal Revenue Service may decide from time to time

Restricted Stock Grants

The Committee may award shares of Common Stock to grantee which shares shall be subject

to the following terms and conditions and such other terms and conditions as the Committee may

prescribe Restric ted Stock Grant

Restrictions on Transfer and Legend on Stock Certificates The Committee may

establish period of time during which the grantee may not sell assign transfer pledge or otherwise
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dispose of the shares of Common Stock Restriction Period Each certificate for shares of Common
Stock issued hereunder shall contain legend giving appropriate notice of the restrictions in the grant

Escrow Agreement The Committee may require the Participant to enter into an escrow

agreement providing that the certificates representing the Restricted Stock Grant will remain in the

physical custody ofan escrow holder until any restrictions are removed or expire

Lapse of Restrictions All restrictions imposed under the Restricted Stock Grant shall

lapse upon the expiration of the Restriction Period The Participant shall then be entitled to have the

legend removed from the certificates

Dividends The Committee may in its discretion at the time of the Restricted Stock

Grant provide that any dividends declared on the Common Stock during the Restriction Period shall

either be paid to the Participant or iiaccumulated for the benefit of the Participant and paid to the

Participant only after the expiration of the Restriction Period

Transferability and Right of First Refusal

Each incentive Stock Option granted under the Plan shall not be transferable other than

by will or the laws of descent and distribution each other Incentive granted under the Plan will not be

transferable or assignable by the recipients and may not be made subject to execution attachment or

similar procedures other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution or as determined by the

Committee in accordance with regulations promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 if

applicable or any other applicable law or regulation

Shares of common stock acquired through the exercise of Stock Options or Restricted

Stock Grants may the discretion of the Committee and as set forth in the document evidencing the

Incentive be subject to right of first refusal by the Corporation

Discontinuance or Amendment of the Plan

The Board of Directors may discontinue the Plan at any time and may from time to time amend or

revise the terms of the Plan as permitted by applicable statutes except that it may not revoke or alter in

manner unfavorable to the grantees of any Incentives hereunder any Incentives then outstanding nor may
the Board of Directors amend the Plan without stockholder approval where the absence of such approval

would cause the Plan to fail to comply with Rule 16b-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 if

applicable or any other requirement of applicable law or regulation Unless approved by the

Corporations stockholders no adjustments or reduction of the exercise price of any outstanding

Incentives shall be made by cancellation of outstanding incentives and the subsequent re-granting of

Incentives at lower price to the same individual No Incentive shall be granted under the Plan after 10

years following the date the Plan is approved by shareholders but Incentives granted under the Plan may
extend beyond that date

No Right of Employment or Participation

The Plan and the Incentives granted hereunder shall not confer upon any Participant the right to

continued employment or otherwise to continue to provide services to the Corporation or affect in any

way the right of the Corporation to terminate the employment of Participant at any time and for any

reason No individual shall have right to be granted an Incentive or having been granted an Incentive

to receive any future Incentives
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10 No Limitation on Compensation

Nothing in the Plan shall be construed to limit the right of the Corporation to establish other plans

or to pay compensation in cash or property in manner which is not expressly authorized under the Plan

11 No impact on Benefits

Except as may otherwise be specifically stated under any employee benefit plan policy or

program no amount payable in respect of any Incentive shall be treated as compensation for purposes of

calculating an employees right under any such plan policy or program

12 No Constraint on Corporate Action

Nothing in the Plan shall be construed to limit impair or otherwise affect the Corporations

right or power to make adjustments reclassifications reorganizations or changes of its capital or business

structure or to merge or consolidate or dissolve liquidate sell or transfer all or any part
of its business or

assets or iiexcept as provided in Section to limit the right or power of the Corporation or any

subsidiary to take any action which such entity deems to be necessary or appropriate

13 Withholding Taxes

The Corporation shall be entitled to deduct from any payment under the Plan regardless of the

form of such payment the amount of all applicable income and employment taxes required by law to be

withheld with respect to such payment or may require the Participant to pay to it such tax prior to and as

condition of the making of such payment In accordance with any applicable adminisflative guidelines it

establishes the Committee may allow Participant to pay the amount of taxes required by law to be

withheld from an Incentive by withholding from any payment of Common Stock due as result of such

Incentive or by permitting the Participant to deliver to the Company shares of Common Stock having

fair market value as determined by the Committee equal to the amount of such required withholding

taxes

14 Governing Law

The Plan and all agreements hereunder shall be construed in accordance with and governed by

the laws of the State of New York

15 Effective Date

The Effective Date of the Plan shall be the date the Plan is approved by shareholders
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Exhibit 10.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the use in this Registration Statement of Steuben Trust Corporation on Form 1-A of our

report dated February 2013 on the consolidated financial statements of Steuben Trust Corporation and

to the reference to us under the heading Experts in the prospectus

Crowe Horwath LLP

Cleveland Ohio

August 22 2013
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STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION
POWER OF ATTORNEY

Is-

The Issuer and each person whose signature appears below hereby appoints Brenda

Copeland and James Nicoloff and each of them as attorneys-in-fact each with full power of

substitution to execute in their names and on behalf of the Issuer and each such person individually and

in each capacity stated below one or more amendments including post-effective amendments to this

Offering Statement as the attorney-in-fact acting on the premise shall from time to time deem appropriate

and to file any such amendment to this Offering Statement with the Securities and Exchange
Commission This Power of Attorney may be executed in counterparts all of which taken together shall

constitute one and the same instrument

Date 2013

Date //2013

SIGNATURES

David Shults Director and

Chairman of the Board

obert Blades Jr Dire or

Victor Myers
Directo/

Charles Oliver Dir

manda Par er Director

G\Microsoft\UKS\STEUBEN\SEC\FORMS\PowerofAttorney2003.doc

Brenda Copelan irector

Michael David6h Director

/fi 2eLzt
aries Edmondson Director

Stoner Horey Director

Date /1 2013

Date 2013

Date 4LL 1J 2013

Date OLi 2013

Date
/1

2013

Date 2013

Date 2013

7-/
Date 2013

Date 2013
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SIGNATURES

The Issuer The Issuer has duly caused this Offering StatemenJo
be signed on its behalf by the un

dersigned thereunto duly authorized in Hornell New York on this day of firf 2013

STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION

By____
James Nicoloff Executive V6 President

and Chief Financial Officer

This Offering Statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates

indicated

Date 2013

Brenda Copeland sident and

Chief Executive Officer Principal Executive Officer

Date /iiS 7-2i 2013 __________________________
Jam Nicoloff Executive \e President

Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer Principal

Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer

Date _____________ 2013

avi4i Shiut Director and

Chairman of the Board

Date JI 2013
kobe des Jr cto

Date 2013

Michael DavidsoDirector

Date uJM 2013

Charles Edmondson Director

Date 2013

Stoner Horey Direcpj

Date 2013
Victor Myers Direct

Date 7/ i/ 2013 i4 224i
Charle Oliver Directo

Date 2013
Amanda Parker Director

Date If 2013 ___________________________
Eric ults Director

Date 2013 __________________
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